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KB (35M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

DaChan Food (Asia) Limited (the “Company”, “DaChan” or
“We") is a conglomerate with operations in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC"). The Company's shares have been
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 2007. The Company (together with its
subsidiaries and its jointly-controlled entities, the “Group”) is a
leading fully integrated animal protein product provider whose
products range from feeds, poultry and advanced nutritional

formulas for animals to processed foods.

The Group adopts a highly vertically integrated business model,
integrating feeds production, chicken hatching and slaughtering,
chicken meat processing and processed food production into
a unified operating platform, with nearly 30 factories in 13
provinces and cities, including Liaoning, Tianjin and Anhui. Its
animal feeds are mainly sold under the brands “Dr. Nupak” (¥
718 E), “Green Knight” (4%53 L) and “SOS", and chicken meat
and processed foods are mainly sold under the brand “Sisters’

Kitchen" ({BERETF).

The Group is a well-known supplier of processed chicken meat
in the PRC. It is one of the designated suppliers of chicken meat
to fast food chains such as “Dicos” (7% *) and “Wallace"
(EE#HT), as well as the designated exporter of quality chicken
meat products in the PRC to “lto Yokado"” ((FEF#HEE) and
7-Eleven convenience store chains in Japan. With the export of
our products to Japan, Singapore and other countries as well as
Hong Kong, China, the Group’s market share is increasing year

by year, creating huge social and economic benefits.

In 2009, the Group officially initiated the “transparent source”
project, a food safety management system providing full
traceability from farm to table throughout, enabling consumers
to trace product information such as the name of the farmers,
the locations of the chicken farms, the animal feeds consumed,
and the processing factories. The Group attaches the utmost
importance to the quality of its food products. The Group's high
standard of quality control has earned the Group numerous
industry awards and recognitions.



2021 RBRER LBR - RETHREER
BRERTRBHEARK _HATIZ - FREH
& A8 BE  ARIBFLAERE
% REERMAKATHE] - TR0 - 5
RUATHEJFER - RBEERHEZEMOHAR
PVEROAER  RBRNEBREEER RM%
2REHEREORRDE

L7155

SRRMEEXBNEBAE  BLHNERER
%~ M RMITEREE - BITHEANHE
BE  AKABLBGE —ERE - ARTTEE
RMEFENUEENINEE  WREEEE
2 EE - REREMRERS o 1IN - AE
Bt TBLRRR  BRETHEEE - &
MELEFRMOHET  RERR - HEREK
IREBH EPENMEREN Eh TS E2 A
BEEABFIR R REBHL -

RENA
Corporate Profile

In 2021, the Company continued its upward development
by investing more than RMB1 billion to initiate the Bengbu
DaChan Phase Il Project in Bengbu, Anhui Province and expand
the breeding of chickens, feeds, slaughter, cooked food and
automatic cold storage projects, etc. With “integrity” and
“modesty” in mind, DaChan Food is always forward-looking
to provide consumers with safe and secure meat and animal
protein products, and it is an environmentally friendly company

committed to quality, food safety and high hygiene standards.
VISION

As a company integrating the entire food production chain,
from agricultural sources in the upstream, food researchers and
manufacturers in the midstream, to mass consumers in the
downstream, DaChan links every section in a devoted manner in
order to enhance the efficiency and the added value of the entire
food production chain, as well as provides consumers with safe,
nutritious and healthy products and services. In addition, the
Group also stresses ecological and environmental protection by
actively fulfilling its social responsibilities. We hope each party
involved in the upstream, midstream and downstream of the
production chain, including our staff, investors and shareholders,

suppliers and farmers at the source, to be proud of our company.

— &= — F 53§ Annual Report 2022
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it F 13 B COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGES

e EAMNIRmMEREEEHARDEN e Market leader in processed chicken meat with high brand

“E awareness

e XBREES 2EXHSUELER o Highly vertically integrated business with a highly efficient

= mode of operation across the entire production chain
o  EREIEEEEED  URAWRES e Strict and high standard of quality control and traceability
system

o HWAEFEKERMEEFAIRE KIS o Stable and long-standing strategic partnerships with
AN
(=)

& 1ERA R nationally and internationally renowned customers
s HBELREERMENERASR e Experienced and dedicated management team members
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HZE2022612A31BHILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
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RMB'000 2022 2021 Changes
KA Turnover 6,195,175 9,350,465 33.7%
/NSl Profit attributable to owners
il of the Company 91,852 155,473 -40.9%
BEME Total assets 3,571,277 3,441,261 3.8%
AEFE Net assets 2,323,107 2,269,547 2.4%
BREREF (AR T Basic profit per share (RMB) 0.09 0.15 -40.9%
AELRERITR%) Return on total assets (%) 3.43% 5.81% -41.0%
1z E1HR (%) Return on equity (%) 5.27% 8.81% -40.2%
*BEEm R *Gearing ratio 16.2% 18.0% -9.6%
BREEFEARET) Net assets per share (RMB) 2.29 2.23 2.4%
* BEERLLE =T BEE TFHEEFE * Gearing Ratio = Interest bearing debt/Average net assets
KBBNARTF R FR R SRR
Turnover and Gross Profit Margin Net Profit and Net Profit Margin
(AR®EER) (AR®BEER)
(RMB million) (%) (RMB million) 33% (%)
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19N ~0- EFIE(%) m FEHRR O #FIZE(%)
Turnover Gross Profit Margin (%) Profit for the year Net Profit Margin (%)
et YNVEST Zigh
Turnover by Business Segment
34.7% .27.5% 22.7% 17.1%
37.8% 60.2%
D B Meat @ AR Feeds to External Customers @ MI&®M Processed Foods
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Chairman’s Statement
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Strengthening the Food Brand,
Driving Integration of Production and Sales

KREBE (M) APFR/2A T DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

In 2022, the international situation was critical and complex. The
epidemic of the century and geopolitical conflicts dealt a severe
blow to the global supply chain, while soaring food and energy
prices, frequent interest rate hikes in the US and other developed
countries triggered rapid international capital flows and sharp
fluctuations in asset prices. With increasing risk of global
economic stagflation, the Chinese economy is under threefold
pressure including contraction of demand, supply shocks and

weakening market expectations.

The Group actively responded to the multiple impact caused to
the consumer market and supply chain by COVID-19, as well as
the serious challenge of rising domestic food prices. Remaining
true to our original aspiration and adhering to the corporate
culture of "Integrity, Modesty and Foresight”, the Group is
committed to enhancing the efficiency and the added value of
the entire food production chain, providing consumers with safe,
nutritious and healthy products and services, and promoting a
benefit-sharing mechanism among all parties involved in the
upstream, midstream and downstream of the production chain,
including shareholders, staff, suppliers and farmers, so as to
achieve sustainable development of the Group while facilitating

the harmonious development of society.

&= — F 53R Annual Report 2022
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KB (35M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

The Group completed the transfer of equity interests in the feeds
segment in Southeast Asia in the fourth quarter of 2021, which
enabled the Group to better balance the capital requirements
for its short-term operational needs and long-term development
amid the challenging external environment in 2022, and counter
the uncertainty of the external economic conditions with the
certainty of high-quality development. The results of the feeds
segment experienced a year-on-year decline due to overcapacity
and intensified competition in the feeds business in the PRC,
rising raw material costs and the impact of the pork cycle, yet
the Group’s meat business maintained steady growth in 2022
underpinned by our optimized operating structure and further
synergies between the foods and meat businesses in the supply
chain and in serving strategic customers. As the leader in driving
the Group's steady growth, the foods business has a traditional
channel advantage in the business-side. In response to the
changes in the market in recent years, the Group has adjusted
its channel strategy in a timely manner. While consolidating
the business-side channel, the Group has been working hard to
increase its resources in the consumer-side market and continue
to increase its share in the consumer-side, expecting to become

the second growth line of the foods business.

In 2022, the Group established a customer-centric guiding
principle for supply chain restructuring and took the lead in
initiating sales and operating planning project management in the
food business to achieve better synergy between production and
sales, increase supply chain flexibility and enhance supply chain
efficiency, so as to serve customer needs in a more timely and
accurate manner. To ensure that the business team can respond
quickly to market competition and changes in customers’
demand from time to time, the Group has further empowered
the business front office of each business in its management
structure, while integrating the middle office of production, R&D,
quality assurance and procurement functions of each business,
and upgrading the back-office support functions such as the
information system, human resources and financial system of
the Group's headquarters, leveraging on the middle and back
offices that built on the ESG system to provide strong support for
sustainable development and risk control for front-office business

units.
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Chairman’s Statement

In 2023, food plant, electrical slaughterhouse and feeds plant
invested by the Group in Bengbu will be put into operation
successively. The additional production capacity will expand
the scale of the Group's industrial clusters around Bengbu
and strengthen the Group’'s market position in the Yangtze
River Delta region. In tandem with the expansion of production
capacity, the Group is also committed to increasing investment
in talents and R&D and initiating the construction of a digital
supply chain system to enhance its relative competitiveness in

the industry.

The economic cycle is bound to go through peaks and troughs.
Despite the uncertainties in the international political and
economic environment in 2023, the Chinese economy is
expected to embark on a new round of growth as stimulated
by various macro policies of the Chinese government for
reviving from the impact brought by COVID-19 in the last three
years. DaChan Food is confident and determined to continue
to cultivate the food market in China, to uphold the principle of
operating with integrity, to provide healthy and safe food, and
to actively implement its corporate environmental, social and
governance responsibilities, hoping to achieve further success in

the post-pandemic era.
Thank you for all your support.

Chairman
James Chun-Hsien Wei

Hong Kong
March 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

—BICHF —T-—fF BB
2022 2021 % change
WA — 5B Turnover — continuing
(AR®TT) operations (RMB'000) 6,195,175 6,530,905 5.1
EN - Gross profit — continuing
(ARETIT) operations (RMB'000) 680,906 661,784 29
EFE —FFELE (%) Gross profit margin — continuing
operations (%) 11.0 10.1
AR R SR (G & Profit attributable to equity
—RHERE (ARETT) shareholders of the
Company — continuing
operations (RMB’'000) 91,852 90,700 1.3
AR AR (G 5 Profit attributable to equity
(AR®FIT) shareholders of the
Company (RMB'000) 91,852 155,473 -40.9
%8 7% Yt 5 N SR T ) ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT AND STRATEGY
DIRECTION
TECCF - RREMOBEEIERA M AAES In 2022, the critical and complex international situation
TEEEN - MABORRBEETL 0 REEH intertwined with the epidemic of the century, coupled with
TR A - BARKES S EEEE%% the volatile geopolitical situation, the downside risks to the
ORGSR ARELERENBHE & global economy have increased. The domestic economy was

Sk 4E - HAEE  JBEE S = SR AHEER repeatedly impacted by multiple factors, such as the spreading

AN

b 2EKLEIERI% - BEAMME - B8 of COVID-19 and extremely high-temperature weather, and
X BB AR AL RT T HHEERMIE R the threefold pressure of shrinking demand, supply shock and

RE o ARVEIEERNIESE  SHBTIE SR weakening expectations continued to evolve. The economy
REE . THEREW  EBMEEESE - m grew at a slower rate of 3% for the year, but still maintained
SR EBRISHEIEEIEE M ESRITEERE LA a relatively fast growth rate compared to major international
BE —E-—F2EERKRAAEAL3,94118 economies. Due to frequent outbreaks of the epidemic in China,

L BRZEZ—FTPE63% °

the consumer market encountered great impact, particularly in
terms of the restriction of consumption based on gatherings and
direct contact. The food and beverage industry was particularly
hard hit by the stringent epidemic management and control
measures implemented in various regions, with national food
and beverage revenue of RMB4,394.1 billion in 2022, recording a
6.3% decrease from 2021.

KB (35M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2022, the national market supply of live pigs was 699 million
heads, representing an increase of 4.3% over the previous
year and already above the 2018 level. Pork production for the
year was 55.41 million tonnes, representing an increase of
4.6% over the previous year. After four years of adjustment,
the live pig industry has largely recovered from the trauma
caused by the African swine fever and has begun to move into
a phase of balanced supply and demand and stable production
capacity. However, despite the steady recovery in overall live
pig production, there have been significant changes in the
industry structure. Small and medium-sized farms, such as free-
range farmers and family farms, suffered heavy losses and cash
flow problems due to the impact of African swine fever in the
beginning and later the low pig prices, and had to reduce their
stocking or withdraw from the market completely. Vertically
integrated large-scale breeding enterprises with strong capital
strength have taken such an opportunity to expand against the
trend and continue to increase their market share in the live pig

industry.

In 2022, the spread of avian influenza abroad and the spread
of COVID-19 in China led to restrictions on international
flights, resulting in a hindrance to the importation of foreign
ancestral chicken breeds. At the same time, the domestic
market of grandparent breeding chicken entered a stage of
rapid development, with three new breeds of white feather
meat chicken, including “Sheng Ze 901", “Guang Ming No. 2"
and "Wo De 188", passing the national certification. The total
number of grandparent breeding chickens in China for the year
was approximately 910,000 sets, recording a 32% decrease
year-on-year. Due to the downturn in the market for commercial
day-old chicks in the first half of the year, parent breeding farms
suffered severe losses and the culling of chickens accelerated,
resulting in a shocking decline in the stock of parent breeding
chickens in production. The total number of white feather meat
chicken produced for the year fell by 3.569% year-on-year, while
the concentration of the industry increased further.

&= —F 5% Annual Report 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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KB (35M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

In response to the repeated impact of COVID-19 on the
consumer market and supply chain, as well as the severe
challenge of rising domestic food prices, the Group has not
blindly pursued the expansion of scale, instead it tended to
maintain stability by reconstructing our customer-centric supply
chain and optimising our business model continuously to
enhance our relative competitiveness, striving to counter the
uncertainties of the economic environment with the certainty
of quality development. In 2022, the operating income for the
year was RMB6,195,175 thousand, representing a decrease
of approximately 5.1% as compared to the restated figure
for the corresponding period of last year. Profit attributable
to shareholders was approximately RMB91,852 thousand,
representing an increase of approximately 1.3% as compared to
that excluding the profit from the feeds business in Southeast
Asia for the same period of last year. The year-on-year decline
in operating income was mainly because the customers of the
feeds business were mostly small and medium-sized farms,
the prolonged downturn in pig prices had created cash flow
problems, and small and medium-sized pig farms have to reduce
the number of inventories or cease to breed, resulting in a year-
on-year decline in feeds sales. On the other hand, the foods and
meat segments benefited from the continued optimisation and

restructuring of operations and showed steady growth.

Looking forward to 2023, the Russia-Ukraine war will continue to
be the major uncertainty affecting the global economy, and the
impact of COVID-19 on the domestic economy may be difficult to
be eliminated in the short term. The Group will continue to look
for new sources of growth led by its foods segment; to maintain
stable sales volume with its feeds segment as a foundation,
and at the same time diversify its market risks by product
diversification. The Group will improve the operational structure
of the meat segment, appropriately adjusting the proportion of
its upstream business, focusing on end-market development
and strengthening its cash flow management. With the synergy
of foods scaling, feeds diversification and meat value-adding
working in tandem, the Group has been progressing steadily
on its digital transformation and supply chain management
optimisation to improve operational efficiency and enhance the
Group's overall industrial competitiveness and anti-cyclicality.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2022, the operating income of the Group was approximately
RMB6,195,175 thousand, representing a decrease of
approximately 5.1% as compared to the restated figure for
the corresponding period of last year, of which, the foods
segment, feeds segment and meat segment accounted for
34.7%, 37.8% and 27.5% of the total operating income of the
Group, respectively. The Group’s gross profit amounted to
approximately RMB680,906 thousand, representing an increase
of approximately 2.9% as compared to the restated figure for the
corresponding period of last year, of which, the foods segment,
feeds segment and meat segment accounted for 61.9%, 21.7%
and 16.4% of the total gross profit of the Group. The food

segment has become the Group's largest source of profit.

A Processed Foods
—EIF —T-—F ERBE DL
2022 2021 % change
KEWAARETT) Turnover (RMB'000)
— B A — Mainland China 1,861,742 1,814,716 2.6
— A — Export 290,026 309,436 -6.3
et Total 2,151,768 2,124,152 1.3
EMARETIT) Gross profit (RMB'000)
— B A — Mainland China 371,158 354,613 4.7
—H0o — Export 50,594 33,932 491
&t Total 421,752 388,545 8.5
FEFE (%) Gross profit margin (%)
—RERH - Mainland China 19.9 19.5
— A — Export 17.4 11.0
et Total 19.6 18.3
&= —F 5% Annual Report 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The processed foods segment includes the production and sales
of prepared foods under the "DaChan” and “Sisters’ Kitchen”
brands, as well as centrifuged and marinated, stewed, pre-
fried, steamed and grilled food items. Customer groups include
customers at end-consumer markets and professional markets.
The sales channels of the processed foods segment are mainly
group catering, bakery, casual catering, feast, international
customers, major chain customers as well as the retail consumer
market. The sales areas of the processed foods segment
cover Northeastern, Northern, Eastern, Southern, Central,
Northwestern and Southwestern of Mainland China as well as

export markets such as Hong Kong China, Japan and Singapore.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2022, the operating income and gross profit of domestic
sales of food increased by approximately 2.6% and 4.7%,
respectively. Despite the growth falling short of expectations
due to the impact of COVID-19 and sluggish consumer demand
in China, the food team persistently invested more resources
in direct sales customers and worked closely with strategic
customers (such as large member shops and large restaurant
chains) in product research and development and supply chain
to enhance the stickiness of major customers to achieve win-
win cooperation. At the same time, the Group has also focused
its resources on increasing the promotion of its family-sized
products in e-commerce platforms, community group purchases,
supermarket chains, community convenience stores, farmers’
markets and other consumer retail channels to further improve

the channel construction and regional network.

Despite the impact of the depreciation of the Japanese Yen,
severe domestic inflation in Japan, and low-price competition
for Thailand's exports to Japan, revenue from exported food
products fell by approximately 6.3% year-on-year in 2022.
However, through continuous research and development,
product mix optimization and production efficiency enhancement,
the foods segment increased its export gross profit by

approximately 49.1% year-on-year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The strengthening of the above fundamentals and the steady
progress of the sales and operating planning project have laid a
solid foundation for the accelerated growth of the Group's foods
segment in the post-epidemic era and have also provided a
strong support for the release of production capacity of the new
Bengbu food factory, which is expected to commence production
in July 2023.

FUTURE STRATEGIES

The core values of the Group's branding are assurance and
traceability. Seizing the opportunities arising from consumers’
concerns over the food safety, the Group has developed a unique
edge for its brand. The processed foods segment will continue to

execute the following strategies:

We will (i) continue to increase its efforts in developing direct
sales customers, and identify more strategic customers through
joint research and development of customized products and
comprehensive supply chain services; (ii) continue to increase its
investment in retail channel resources so as to increase customer
loyalty through consumer brand awareness; (iii) continue to
increase its investment in applied research and development and
keep abreast of market demand so as to explore new production
technologies and expand its product range, striving to create
more hit products; (iv) continue to increase its investment in
capacity expansion, product research and development and
business teams; (v) to leverage digital transformation to improve
supply chain efficiency and better serve the future growth needs
of major customers; and (vi) continue to reduce labour costs

through automation.
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BE R Gk B M%) Livestock Feeds (from External Customers)
—EBCCF T —F R BE D
2022 2021 % change
LW A (ARETFIT) Turnover (RMB’000) 2,340,369 2,811,014 -16.7
EF(AREFIT) Gross profit (RMB’'000) 147,817 220,418 -32.9
EFE (%) Gross profit margin (%) 6.3 7.8
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KB (35M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

The operating income of the feeds segment was primarily
derived from, among others, the sales of pig feeds, broiler
feeds and egg chicken feeds to external customers in Mainland
China. Corn and soybean are the primary raw materials of feeds
segment. The main product brands of this segment are “Dr.
Nupak” and “Green Knight”. The production and sales region of
this segment covered the Northeastern, Northern, Central and
Southwestern China.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Under the dual impact of rising raw material costs and lower
customer farming volumes, the operating income and gross
profit of the feeds segment decreased by approximately 16.7%
and 32.9% vyear-on-year, respectively. As affected by the
international market, the domestic market for bulk raw materials
rose and the cost of feeds for live pig farming increased. At the
same time, the consumer market was hampered by COVID-19
and the price of pigs remained low in the first half of 2022,
resulting in heavy losses in live pig farming. Compared to large-
scale regulatory and modular-type pig breeding enterprises with
relatively more vertical integration, our feeds segment clients,
mostly free-range and family farms, are relatively more vulnerable
to risk. They have started to reduce the number of inventories
or even cease to breed under prolonged losses. As domestic pig
prices rebounded in August 2022, the enthusiasm of free-range
farmers and family farms increased, and the decline in feeds

sales gradually narrowed year-on-year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In order to mitigate the impact of cyclical fluctuations in the pig
price on our results, the feeds segment put more resources
into research and development as well as market development
of poultry feeds and niche products such as ruminant feeds,
actively expanded markets beyond pig feeds, increased
products categories, so as to diversify market risks, leading
to an approximately 21% year-on-year increase in external
sales of broiler feeds. At the same time, in response to rising
raw material prices, the feeds research and development
team actively developed alternative raw material formulations,

effectively controlling cost inflation.
FUTURE STRATEGIES

The feeds segment will continue to pursue the following
strategies: (i) to take advantage of the fermentation technology
for intestinal pre-digestion in biotechnology and to enhance
marketing activities for sow and piglet functional feeds products;
(ii) to intensify the product research and development of
poultry feeds, ruminant feeds and niche market products such
as donkey feeds and meat goose feeds and build up our core
competitiveness in niche products so as to diversify market
risk through diversification; (iii) to select key value customers
and offer them products, technical and service support so as
to enhance their loyalty and contribution to the Group; (iv) to
strengthen the middle office functions of product research
and development, production techniques, quality control and
technical services so as to empower the front office; and (v) to
optimize production technology and lower processing cost so as

to enhance the contract production scale of feeds.
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A Meat Product
—EBCCF T —F R BE D
2022 2021 % change
LW A (ARETFIT) Turnover (RMB'000) 1,703,038 1,595,739 6.7
EFMARETIT) Gross profit (RMB’000) 111,337 52,821 110.8
EFZE(%) Gross profit margin (%) 6.5 3.3

REBT2HEETAK] - [1EIREE | mhRr Kk
R RN~ MINTEBEERN - mARE
B - EHEREE  WE - RENIHEEER
IR - LA RARE R R RS -
WEWEBERZKE - LERFEERIE - #
IERERME  HERKBEREE -

45 ol R

—EC_FARERERRANENRLL DR
HER#6.7%HM110.8%  AmEZEINREEE
AERS  BEEZR(CERFAERARPH
€ ERMERE - EERE LN - —TERE
EARERNMENRERBHA B TARE
TEF - A ERBRRHAENRNEER
REEHTUMBERY - RAREER B2
AEEREBEFERMRIFEER - BBER
MEEBT  AREFEREMTEHEHRE
BESEREMMEZER @ HAERHRL
P - (EBHEREBCARAEREELLR
BEE  ARFEXRENER_T_—FREID
3.2% °

KB (35M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

The Group mainly sells chilled and frozen chicken meat and
lightly processed tender chicken meat under the brand of
“DaChan” and “Sisters’ Kitchen”, and it sells chicken meat to
large member stores, fast food chains, supermarkets, and food
processors and supplies feeds and day-old chicks to contract
farmers, and takes up the grown chickens. The production region
of the segment covers Northeastern, Northern and Eastern China
regions while its sales network covers the entire nation.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2022, the operating income and gross profit of the meat
segment increased by approximately 6.7% and 110.8%,
respectively. The meat segment accelerated the pace of business
model transformation, focusing on the research and development
of differentiated products and sales to major customers to
restructure the supply chain. In the upper reaches of the industry
chain, on the one hand, the Group strategically eliminated poorly
performing parent broods farms and broiler farmers, and on
the other hand, provided comprehensive breeding services to
long-term contract farmers to enhance breeding performance,
establishing a win-win ecosphere for both the Group and the
farmers. By joining hands with the foods segment, the meat
segment actively developed fresh produce chains and member
stores that value quality products and eliminated price-sensitive
customers. Leveraging sales channel optimisation to enhance
product value and brand equity, the gross profit margin of the
meat segment improved by approximately 3.2% compared to
2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE STRATEGIES

The meat segment maintains and will continue to implement its
operating strategy of “eliminating risk” in the future, particular
measures of which include: (i) to focus on fine processing of
meat products and differentiated meat products and increase
production value through close collaboration with major
customers; (ii) to persistently improve the performance of
contract feeds, strengthen animal protection immunization and
epidemic prevention services, assist farmers to strengthen the
rearing and breeding management, and improve the productivity
and reduce the costs of rearing and breading; (iii) to control the
scale of captive breeder and contract broiler farming to build
a flexible supply chain; (iv) to continue promoting projects for
equipment automation in the electrical slaughterhouse; (v) to
continue increasing the proportion of converting the Group's
chicken meat to prepared foods and deep processed foods
products and eliminate the market risk when the meat market is

on the decline.
FINANCIAL REVIEW:

1)  Other Operating Income and Operating Expenses

In 2022, the Group recorded other operating income of
approximately RMB46,463 thousand (2021: approximately
RMB16,708 thousand) which mainly comprised of interest
income and government subsidies. The increase in other
operating income was mainly due to the increase in

government subsidies.

In 2022, other net loss of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB5,921 thousand (2021: net gains of
approximately RMB12,059 thousand). Other net loss mainly
includes net loss on the disposal of assets and impairment
reverse of fixed assets.
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2)

3)
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KB (35M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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2)

3)

4)

Distribution costs accounted for approximately 4.97% of
total turnover (2021: approximately 4.62%).

Administrative expenses accounted for approximately
4.27% of turnover (2021: approximately 3.68%).

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’'s cash and bank
deposit balances amounted to approximately RMB532,274
thousand, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB92,785 thousand from 2021. The Group's interest-
bearing borrowings decreased by approximately
RMB30,252 thousand to approximately RMB377,240
thousand (2021: approximately RMB407,492 thousand). As
at 31 December 2022, the interest-bearing borrowings to
equity ratio was approximately 16.2% (2021: approximately
18.0%). Current ratio was maintained at a healthy level of

approximately 2.02 times (2021: approximately 2.29 times).

Capital Expenditure

In 2022, the Group's capital expenditure on the acquisition
of properties, machinery and equipment amounted to
approximately RMB352,152 thousand which was primarily

paid from internal resources and bank borrowings.
Exchange Rate
The Group's business transactions are mainly denominated

in RMB and USD. During the year under review, RMB
against USD depreciated by approximately 8.46%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Interest

In 2022, the Group’s interest expense amounted to
approximately RMB11,278 thousand (2021: approximately
RMB12,575 thousand), representing a decrease of
approximately 10.3% from 2021. The decrease in interest
expenses was mainly due to the average borrowing

balances fall.
Dividends

To reserve the resources for the Group's business
development, the Board decides not to distribute any
dividend for the year 2022 (2021: no distribution).

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no security
against bank facilities.

Capital Commitment

As at 31 December 2022, the capital expenditure of the
Group contracted for but not provided in the financial
statements was approximately RMB531,809 thousand
(2021: approximately RMB36,668 thousand) and the
capital expenditure authorised but not contracted for was
approximately RMB98,555 thousand (2021: approximately
RMB471,566 thousand).
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KB (35M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND
TRAINING

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 7,936
employees (31 December 2021: 8,099). The Group has paid
remuneration to its staff with reference to the industry practice,
the financial performance of the Group and the employee’s
work performance in order to form a team of professional
staff and management to fulfil the development needs of the
Company. The Group places great emphasis on the training and
development of employees and regards excellent employees
as the Group's core competitiveness. With a view to constantly
enhancing their job skills and industry knowledge, the Group has
offered various training programs to its members of management
and other employees. The Group implemented these programs
not only to enhance the quality of its staff, but also to give best
chances for development of their personal career. The Group
regularly reviews compensation and benefit policies according
to industry benchmarks, financial results as well as the individual
performance of employees so as to offer fair and competitive
compensation packages to the employees. Other fringe benefits
including insurance, medical benefits and provident fund are also
provided to retain loyal employees.
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DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. James Chun-Hsien Wei (22 &), also known as Wei, Chun-
hsien, aged 65, has been appointed as an executive Director
of the Company, the chairman of the board of directors of the
Company, and a member and the chairman of the executive
committee of the Company with effect from 1 March 2021, and
has assumed an additional position of Chief Executive Officer of
the Company with effect from 1 September 2022. Mr. James
Chun-Hsien Wei is an independent director of Taiwan Ta Ya
Electric Wire & Cable Company Limited, a director of ShyaHsin
Packaging Co., Ltd., KSF Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. and a
director of Taixu & DaChan Foods Co., Limited, and a senior
advisor to Blackstone Private Equity Group. Mr. James Chun-
Hsien Wei served as the chief executive officer of the Tingyi
(Caymans Islands) Holding Corp (“Tingyi Holding"), which shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, from
2015 to 2020 and the chief executive officer of food business
of Tingyi Holding from 2013 to 2014. Prior to joining Tingyi
Holding, Mr. James Chun-Hsien Wei was a senior advisor of
CVC Capital Asia Pacific in 2012. From 2009 to 2011, he was the
executive board member and the president of the Asian region
of Beiersdorf Aktiengesellschaft Group. From 2003 to 2009, he
served as the senior vice president of Asia Pacific region of Avon
Products Inc., where he was responsible for the operations in
10 markets, including Japan, Taiwan, Australia, Philippines and
India. Before that, Mr. James Chun-Hsien Wei spent 19 years
at Procter & Gamble, where he was promoted to become the
vice president and general manager of Greater China region,
overseeing the company’s health and beauty care business in

that region.

Mr. James Chun-Hsien Wei holds a bachelor's degree in
Electrical Engineering from National Taiwan University and a
master's degree in Business Administration from the University

of Chicago Booth School of Business in the United States.
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KB (35M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

Mr. Han Chia-Yin (323X ), aged 62, has been appointed as
an executive Director of the Company and a member of the
executive committee of the Company since 27 October 2011.
He was the Chief Executive Officer of the Company from 1
March 2012 to 1 April 2016. He also serves as a director of Great
Wall Enterprise Co., Ltd. (“GWE"), a company incorporated in
Taiwan, with its shares listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation (“Taiwan Exchange”), and it is the indirect controlling
shareholder of the Company. He was the general manager of the
Great Wall Group Food Service Division and held a number of
positions in several associations of the food industry in Taiwan.
He is also a director of Impreza Investments Limited, Great Wall
Dalian Investment Co., Ltd., Dongbei Agri Corporation, Great
Wall Kuang-Ming Investment (BVI) Co., Ltd., Miyasun Great Wall
(BVI) Co., Ltd., Great Wall Northeast Asia Corporation, Great Wall
Nutrition Technologies SDN. BHD, Asia Nutrition Technologies
(VN) Investment Co., Ltd., Taixu & DaChan Foods Co., Limited (&
BAKERBRAR]) and Great Wall Food (Dalian) Co., Limited
(KA R (K3&) BRAA).

Mr. Han Chia-Yin graduated from Feng Chia University in Taiwan
with a bachelor’s degree in Information Engineering & Computer
Science and obtained a master’s degree in Computer Science
from the University of New Haven in USA. He is a younger
brother of Mr. Han Chia-Yau, Mr. Harn Jia-Chen and Mr. Han Jia-

Hwan and an uncle of Mr. Jonathan Fang-Tsu Han.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chao Tien-Shin (#X£), aged 76, has been a non-executive
Director of the Company since 2007. He has served as a director
of GWE since 2007. He is also the chairman and a director of

CTS Investment Corporation and Zhi Fu Investment Corporation.

Mr. Chao Tien-Shin graduated from Tamkang University (%L
KE) with a bachelor’'s degree in irrigation engineering. He has
extensive business management experience in information
technology industry and traditional industries, such as food and

services.

Mr. Han Chia-Yau (¥3XF), aged 73, has been a non-executive
Director of the Company and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company since 2007. Mr. Han Chia-Yau
joined GWE in 1991 and he was the vice chairman of the board
of directors of GWE from 1995 to 2001. Since 2001, he has
been the chairman of GWE. He is also a director of TTET Union

Corporation, which shares are listed on the Taiwan Exchange.

Mr. Han Chia-Yau obtained a bachelor’'s degree from Chung
Yuan Christian University (7 [RI2 T &%) and a master's degree
in Computer Science from the University of Connecticut in 1973
and 1978 respectively. He is an older brother of Mr. Harn Jia-
Chen, Mr. Han Jia-Hwan and Mr. Han Chia-Yin and an uncle of

Mr. Jonathan Fang-Tsu Han.
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Mr. Harn Jia-Chen (3 %J=), aged 68, has been re-designated
as a non-executive Director of the Company with effect from
1 March 2020. He has been a member of the nomination
committee of the Company since 2007, and has been a member
of the remuneration committee of the Company with effect
from 1 January 2019. During the period from 1 January 2019
to 29 February 2020, Mr. Harn Jia-Chen was re-designated as
an executive Director of the Company, and was appointed as
the chairman of the board of directors of the Company and the
chairman of the executive committee of the Company. Since
1984, he has been the vice chairman of the board of directors
of GWE. Since 1995, he has been the chairman of the board
of directors of Great Wall Food (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. (Kik & & K
#) B R A7)), a subsidiary of GWE engaged in flour production.
Since 1999, he has been the chairman of the board of directors
of DaChan Wanda (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. (K& E (K3&) AR A 7).
Since 2003, he has been the chairman of the board of directors
of DaChan Showa Food (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. (KA FI R & CKE)
BIRAF]). From May 2006 to April 2015, he was the president
of Taiwan Asset Enterprise Association of Tianjin (K2 & &
RIS ECERH D). Since May 2015, he has been the honorary
president of Taiwan Asset Enterprise Association of Tianjin. From
April 2007 to May 2010, he was elected as the vice-chairman
of the Association of Taiwan Investment Enterprises on the
Mainland (2B & ERIMIEEDEEEE). From May 2010 to
April 2015, he was elected as the standing vice president of the
Association of Taiwan Investment Enterprises on the Mainland.
Since May 2015, he has been the consultant of the Association
of Taiwan Investment Enterprises on the Mainland. He is also
a director of DaChan Wanda (HK) Limited (KX & (B8)AB
FR2 7)), Hwabei Agri Corporation (4L EZZ 2 7]) and Union
Manufacturing Limited (B4 2iE G R A R)).

Mr. Harn Jia-Chen obtained his master’'s degree in business
administration from the University of New Haven in 1986. He
is an older brother of Mr. Han Jia-Hwan, Mr. Han Chia-Yin,
a younger brother of Mr. Han Chia-Yau and an uncle of Mr.

Jonathan Fang-Tsu Han.
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Mr. Han Jia-Hwan (32X E), aged 67, has been re-designated
as a non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 1
January 2019. He has also been a member of the nomination
committee of the Company since 2007. From 2007 to 2018, Mr.
Han Jia-Hwan had been an executive Director of the Company,
the chairman of the board of directors of the Company, a member
of the remuneration committee and nomination committee and
the chairman of the executive committee of the Company. He
is also the chairman of Taixu & DaChan Foods Co., Limited (&
BERKEMER AR and a director of Taixu & DaChan Foods
Holdings Co., Limited (& & AKX R mIZAXBBR A7), Asia Nutrition
Technologies (VN) Investment Co., Ltd. and Great Wall Agritech
(Liaoning) Company Limited (BVI). Mr. Han Jia-Hwan has over
30 years of experience in feeds and food production business in
the Asia Pacific region. In recognition of his contributions to the
agricultural industry, Mr. Han Jia-Hwan was elected as one of the
Taiwan Ten Outstanding Young Persons (&&+AX£HF ) in

1994.

Mr. Han Jia-Hwan received his bachelor’'s degree in business
administration from National Cheng-chi University (BI3ZBUA KR
&) and a master’s degree in business administration from the
University of Chicago in 1977 and 1983 respectively. He is a
younger brother of Mr. Han Chia-Yau, Mr. Harn Jia-Chen, an older
brother of Mr. Han Chia-Yin and the father of Mr. Jonathan Fang-
Tsu Han.
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Mr. Wei Anning (% 2), aged 60, has been re-designated as
a non-executive Director of the Company since 1 March 2021.
During the period from 31 October 2014 to 29 February 2020,
Mr. Wei Anning was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, and he served as a member of the audit
committee and the nomination committee of the Company, and
the chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company,
thereafter he remained to be a member of the nomination
committee and the remuneration committee of the Company
until 1 March 2020. Mr. Wei Anning was then re-designated as
an executive Director of the Company, and was appointed as the
chairman of the board of directors of the Company, the chairman
and a member of the executive committee of the Company
from 1 March 2020 to 28 February 2021. Mr. Wei Anning is an
executive director and the general manager of Shanghai Gueva
Investment Management Limited (E/8REREETEARA
7)), an independent director of Fortune Fund Management Co.,
Ltd. EEEESEBER A7), Jiahe Foods Industry Corporation
Limited (ERR M IERMBMRAF]), Bondex Supply Chain
Management Co., Ltd. (B2 EHERETERMDAER AT,
Minsheng Securities Co., Ltd. (REZFHFKHBERAF]) and
Bestore Co., Ltd. (R FIRMHER AR . He was an agricultural
economist of the Department of Agricultural and Natural
Resources of the World Bank, a manager of food & agribusiness
research of the Rabobank Group (Northeast Division), and the
Chief Executive Officer (China Region) and president (Shanghai
Branch) of Fortis Bank S.A./ N.V. He was also the executive vice
president of Sichuan New Hope Group (PU)II¥1 &2 £E), the
president of Shandong Liuhe Group (LLE7<F%E &), the chairman
of the board of directors of Chinwhiz Agribusiness Co., Ltd. (I
Hap KPR EZE£E AR A A) and an independent director of Ningbo
Tech-Bank Co., Ltd. () XA MK BRAF]), which shares
are listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange and Orient Securities
Company Limited (BJ77:E5 M7 AR A7), which shares are
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, and a director of Yantai Changyu Pioneer
Wine Company Limited (& & R E B EE BB R A F)), which
shares are listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange and JiangSu
Financial Leasing Corporation Limited (I# & gt ERRMN AR
73 A]), which shares are listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Wei Anning has in-depth understanding and rich experience
in the integration of finance and the agricultural and livestock
food industry, the development of agricultural and livestock
food industry, the operation and management of agricultural and

livestock food corporations.

Mr. Wei Anning obtained his bachelor’'s degree in Economics in
Nankai University in 1982, his master’'s degrees in Economics
in Peking University in 1986 and in Williams College in the
United States in 1991 and his doctorate degree in Agricultural
Economics in University of lllinois at Urbana-Champaign in the
United States in 1997.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Chih (Bf34), aged 69, has been an independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of the nomination committee
of the Company and a member of the audit committee and the
remuneration committee of the Company since 2007. Mr. Chen
Chih had served as the president of GE Healthcare China since
1996. He was promoted to vice president of General Electric
Company in 2001, and he retired from the position in 2009. Mr.
Chen Chih has also been the chairman of SKR Healthcare Group
Limited (tt-/52 @4 & /5 &< B G FR 2 F)) since 2010.

Mr. Chen Chih received his Ph.D. degree in mechanical

engineering from Lehigh University in 1984.
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Mr. Way Yung-Do (B{KE), aged 77, joined the Company in
2008 and is an independent non-executive Director, the chairman
of the audit committee and a member of the nomination
committee and the remuneration committee of the Company.
Mr. Way Yung-Do has over 35 years of experience in financial
advisory, accounting and auditing and served as managing
partner and CEO of an international accounting firm in Taiwan
before retiring from the position in 2007. He was a director of
Synnex Technology International Corporation, which shares are
listed on the Taiwan Exchange, between 2015 and 2021. He
was also a director of Chilisin Electronics Corporation, which
shares are listed on the Taiwan Exchange, between 2018 and
2020. Since 2012, Mr. Way Yung-Do served as the Chairman of
YCSY Co., LTD. GkBEERMHBR A E]). He is also a director of
the following companies which shares are listed on the Taiwan

Exchange:

- Far Eastern Department Stores Co., Ltd.

- MITAC Holdings Corporation

- Vanguard International Semiconductor Corporation
- Iron Force Industrial Co., Ltd.

- Cathay Financial Holding Co., Ltd.

- Taita Chemical Co., Ltd.

Mr. Way Yung-Do graduated from Soochow University (Taiwan)
with a bachelor’s degree in accounting and obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from the University of Georgia.
Mr. Way Yung-Do has the public accountant qualifications in
Taiwan and Georgia, U.S.A. He is also a certified internal auditor
of the Institute of Internal Auditors.
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Mr. Ting Yu-Shan (] E£1l), aged 72, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company, the
chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of
the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee of the Company with effect from 2 March
2020. Mr. Ting Yu-Shan has served as an independent director
and the chairman of the audit committee and the remuneration
committee of GWE since 2016. Mr. Ting Yu-Shan qualified as a
certified public accountant in Taiwan in 1985. Mr. Ting Yu-Shan
has extensive experience in areas such as financial advisory and
accounting. He served as an accountant of Prosperity United
Firm, Certified Public Accountants in Taiwan (&/EE2¥£MA S
sHRIEE5FT) from 1986 to 1998, and an accountant of KPMG
Taiwan (B &% EKEXE A S5TEIEA) from 1999 to 2008.

Mr. Ting Yu-Shan holds a bachelor’'s degree in accounting from
Soochow University and a master’s degree in accounting from

Soochow University.

Mr. Hsia, Li-Yan (E3 F), also known as Andrew L.Y. Hsia, aged
72, has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director
of the Company and served as a member of the remuneration
committee, the audit committee and the nomination committee
of the Company since 1 March 2021. Mr. Hsia, Li-Yan is the
vice president and the spokesperson of Phu My Hung Holdings
Group.

Mr. Hsia, Li-Yan holds a bachelor's degree of law from Fu
Jen Catholic University, a master’s degree of diplomacy from
National Chengchi University and a master’s degree of law from
the University of Oxford in the United Kingdom.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Sun Teh Hong (#1Z%), aged 66, had served as the Vice
Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 1 January 2019
and had been the Chief Executive Officer of the Company with
effect from 1 March 2020, and also serves as the head of the
feed business group and the meat business group at the same
time. Mr. Sun Teh Hong has resigned as the head of the meat
business group with effect from 11 February 2022, the head of
the feeds business group with effect from 1 March 2022, and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect from
1 September 2022. Mr. Sun Teh Hong has nearly 40 years of
experience in food and feeds business in the Asia Pacific region.
Mr. Sun Teh Hong engaged in trading of feed ingredients in
Japanese trading house-Mitsubishi Corporation (HE =ZZ &%
D EBRA A from July 1981 to November 1994. He served as
the general manager of Tongquan Food Industry Co., Ltd. (%
R TERMHABRAR]), a company that engaged in integration
of chicken and duck breeding, processing, and sale, as well as
export of processed duck meat, from November 1994 to June
2000. He worked as the general manager of Wenhao Trading
Co., Ltd. CEHFE AR AR from July 2000 to September
2008. Then, he worked as the special assistant to the general
manager's office of GWE from September 2008 to May 2010. He
has been the general manager of Great Wall Feedtech Co., Ltd.
(RBUOKEEEBERMD AR AT since June 2010 and the general
manager of TNT Biotechnology (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. (ZREEMRHE
(X32) BRA7)) since June 2011.

Mr. Sun Teh Hong graduated from the Department of

International Trade of National Taiwan University in June 1979.
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Mr. Chang Chin-Pyng (5&%F), aged 65, had been the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company with effect from 1 January
2019 and had been the Chief Human Resources Officer of the
Company with effect from 1 July 2020. Mr. Chang Chin-Pyng
has resigned as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company
and the Chief Human Resources Officer of the Company with
effect from 1 June 2022. Mr. Chang Chin-Pyng served as the
account manager of the Taiwan branch of Bankers Trust New
York Corporation (£BI{ZFiE1TEE577) and the fund manager
of China Investment Trust Co., Ltd. (PEREEERNERA
A]) from 1983 to 1989. From 1989 to 1997, he served as the
financial manager of GWE. Since 2003, he has served as the
Chief Financial Officer of Northeast Asia Corp. Group (KA
dbEE# ), which was merged with other national (regional)
businesses of GWE in 2007 to establish the Company, which
was listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Mr. Chang Chin-Pyng was the in-charge person
of the listing of the Company and served as the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company upon its listing until 2009. Subsequent
to 2009, Mr. Chang Chin-Pyng continued to work in GWE until
2011. Mr. Chang Chin-Pyng served as the chairman of China
Securities Investment Advisory Co. (FEZFAKREER QA
from 2011 to the end of 2017. Mr. Chang Chin-Pyng is a certified
finance analyst in Taiwan and has extensive experience in the

fields of finance and investor relationship.

Mr. Chang Chin-Pyng obtained a bachelor’s degree in business
from the National Taiwan University (7 & AKX£) and a
master’'s degree in business administration from the University
of Chicago in 1979 and 1983 respectively.
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Mr. Lan Yung Hsu (8K /8), aged 52, has been the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company with effect from 1 June 2022.
Mr. Lan Yung Hsu served as the Planning Specialist and Finance
Specialist of GWE from August 1996 to May 2005, the Chief
Financial Officer and the Head of Human Resources Department
and Administration Department of Great Wall Food (Dalian) Co.,
Ltd. (KX R MR (KE) B R A7), a subsidiary of the Company, from
June 2000 to July 2003, the Head of Finance and Information
Department of the Company from August 2003 to December
2003, and the Chief Financial Officer and the Head of Human
Resources and Administration of Great Wall Food (Tianjin) Co.,
Ltd. (KB R fa(KE)B R A R]), a subsidiary of GWE engaged in
flour production, from January 2004 to March 2008. Mr. Lan
Yung Hsu served as the Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of the Flour and Catering Service Business Group (the
“Business Group”) in Mainland China of GWE from April 2008
to April 2022, responsible for the overall financial management,
capital planning, investment planning and auditing of the
Business Group. Mr. Lan Yung Hsu has extensive experience in
the field of finance.

Mr. Lan Yung Hsu obtained a bachelor's degree in Commerce
from Taiwan Ocean University(& &8 X&) and a master's
degree in Management from Da-Yeh University(KE K2 in
1994 and 1996, respectively.
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Mr. Jonathan Fang-Tsu Han (8 3518), aged 40, joined the
Company in 2012 and was consecutively responsible for finance,
strategic planning of the Group, operation management of the
feeds business and the meat and food business. Mr. Jonathan
Fang-Tsu Han had been promoted to the vice president of
the Company since 1 April 2017. He had also served as the
deputy director of Finance Resources Group of the Company
since 8 August 2018. Mr. Jonathan Fang-Tsu Han had been re-
designated as Special Assistant to the President of the Company
since 1 January 2019. He also had been the head of International
business group Il of the Company since 1 March 2020. Mr.
Jonathan Fang-Tsu Han has resigned as Special Assistant to
the President of the Company and the head of International
business group Il of the Company and re-designated as Special
Assistant to the chairman of GWE with effect from 1 July 2020,
responsible for vertical integration of the free-range chicken
business and export of the feed business. He is a member of the
executive committee of the Company. Mr. Jonathan Fang-Tsu
Han has extensive experience in operation analysis and strategic

management.

Mr. Jonathan Fang-Tsu Han graduated from Simon Graduate
School of Business (BFIEZ) at the University of Rochester
of the United States in 2012 and obtained a bachelor’s degree in
Computer Science from Northwestern University of the United
States in 2003. He is the son of Mr. Han Jia-Hwan and the
nephew of Mr. Han Chia- Yau, Mr. Harn Jia-Chen and Mr. Han
Chia-Yin.
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KB (35M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

INTRODUCTION

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to
present the corporate governance report for the year ended 31

December 2022 as follows.

The board of Directors of the Company (“Board”) is committed
to enhancing the Group’s corporate governance standards by
improving corporate transparency through effective channels of
information disclosure. The Board believes that good corporate
governance is beneficial for maintaining close and trustful
relations with its employees, business partners, shareholders

and investors.

The Company has adopted a corporate governance code
prepared based on the code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) of
the latest corporate governance code (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules™)
as the guidelines for corporate governance of the Company, and

has taken steps to comply with the Code wherever appropriate.

Terms used in this report shall have the same meaning as
those defined in the Listing Rules unless the context otherwise

requires.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
has complied with the Code Provisions with the following

exceptions:
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Under Code Provision C.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed

by the same individual.

In year 2022, during the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 August
2022, the position of chief executive officer of the Company (the
"Chief Executive Officer”) was held by Mr. Sun Teh Hong and
the position of chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) was held
by Mr. James Chun-Hsien Wei. With effect from 1 September
2022, Mr. Sun Teh Hong has resigned from the position of Chief
Executive Officer due to retirement, and Mr. James Chun-Hsien
Wei (who has been an executive Director and the Chairman) has

assumed an additional position of Chief Executive Officer.

Upon the appointment of Mr. James Chun-Hsien Wei as the
Chief Executive Officer, Mr. James Chun-Hsien Wei performs
both of the roles as the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer. The Board considers that this structure would not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board and
the management of the Company. The Board comprises two
executive Directors (including Mr. James Chun-Hsien Wei), five
non-executive Directors and four independent non-executive
Directors and therefore has a fairly strong independence in its
composition and they meet regularly to discuss issues relating
to the operation of the Company in order to provide adequate
safeguards and protect the interests of the Company and its
shareholders. In addition, after taking into account the past
experience of Mr. James Chun-Hsien Wei, the Board is of the
opinion that vesting the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer in Mr. James Chun-Hsien Wei could facilitate
the execution of the Group’s business strategies and enhance
the effectiveness of its operation. Hence, the aforesaid deviation
is appropriate and in the best interest of the Company at the

present stage.
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Under Code Provision C.6.1, the company secretary should
be an employee of the Company and have the day-to-day
knowledge of the Company’s affairs.

Ms. Cho Yi Ping ("Ms. Cho"), a partner of the Company’s
Hong Kong legal advisers, has been appointed as the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) with effect
from 8 August 2016.

The Company has assigned a member of the senior
management, Ms. Feng Yuxia, the head of legal department of
the Company as the contact person with Ms. Cho. Ms. Cho is
a practicing solicitor of Hong Kong with understanding of the
Listing Rules. Her qualifications meet the requirements of the
Listing Rules in terms of a company secretary of a listed issuer.
Further, whenever necessary, the contact person assigned will
promptly deliver information regarding the performance, financial
positions and other major development and affairs of the Group
to Ms. Cho. Having in place a mechanism that enables Ms.
Cho to get hold of the Group’s development promptly without
material delay and with her expertise and experience, the Board
is confident that having Ms. Cho as the Company Secretary is
beneficial to the Group’'s compliance with the relevant board

procedures, applicable laws, rules and regulations.

COMPLIANCE WITH DEED OF NON-
COMPETITION

The Company has received a confirmation (the “Confirmation”)
from Great Wall Enterprise Co., Ltd ("GWE") signed by it on
7 February 2023 confirming that for the period from 1 January
2022 to 31 December 2022 and up to the date of signing the
Confirmation by the relevant covenantor, it has fully complied
with the deed of non-competition executed by GWE in favour
of the Company dated 14 September 2007 (the “Deed of Non-
Competition”) (as varied by two deeds of variation executed by
GWE and the Company dated 25 June 2010 and 18 December
2012 respectively).
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
Confirmation and all of them are satisfied that the Deed of Non-
Competition has been complied with during the period under

review.
DIRECTORS

THE BOARD

The Board, led by the Chairman, steers the Company’s business
direction. It is responsible for formulating the Company’s long-
term strategies, setting business development goals, assessing
results of management policies, monitoring the management'’s
performance, and ensuring effective implementation of risk

management measures on a regular basis.

The Directors meet regularly to review the Group's financial
and operational performance and to discuss and formulate
future development plans. Regular Board meetings are
attended by Directors in person or through electronic means of

communication.
BoARD COMPOSITION

During the period from 1 January 2022 and up to the date
of this report, there were 11 Directors, all being industry
veterans, responsible to the shareholders for formulating the
overall business development targets and long-term company
strategies, assessing results of management policies and
monitoring performance of the management. During the period
from 1 January 2022 and up to the date of this report, the Board

comprised the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. James Chun-Hsien Wei (Chairman and as from 1 September
2022, also the Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Han Chia-Yin
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Non-executive Directors
Mr. Han Chia-Yau

Mr. Han Jia-Hwan

Mr. Harn Jia-Chen

Mr. Chao Tien-Shin

Mr. Wei Anning

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Way Yung-Do

Mr. Chen Chih

Mr. Ting Yu-Shan

Mr. Hsia, Li-Yan

An updated list of the Directors by category identifying their
role and function is at all times available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. The list specifies whether a
Director is an independent non-executive Director and expresses
the respective membership of each Director in each board

committee.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material or relevant relationship(s)) among members of the
Board and between the Chairman and the chief executive, with
the exception that Mr. Han Chia-Yau, Mr. Harn Jia-Chen,
Mr. Han Jia-Hwan and Mr. Han Chia-Yin are brothers, and that

the Chairman is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

The Company identifies the independent non-executive Directors
in all corporate communications which disclose the names of

Directors.

Details of the biographies of the Directors are given under the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile” of

this annual report on pages 23.
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The independent non-executive Directors play an important role
on the Board. Accounting for more than one-third of the Board
members, they are experienced professionals in their respective
fields. They are responsible for ensuring that the Board maintains
high standards of financial and other mandatory reporting as well
as providing adequate checks and balances for safeguarding
the interest of shareholders of the Company and the Group as a
whole. Throughout the year of 2022, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors with
at least one of them possessing appropriate professional
qualifications on accounting or related financial management
expertise; and the number of independent non-executive

Directors has represented at least one-third of the Board.

The Company has established proper mechanisms to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board. For
example, Mr. Wei, who chairs the Board, has no relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material or
relevant relationship(s)) with other members of the Board.
The Nomination Committee will assess the independence of
candidates to be nominated as the Company’s independent non-
executive directors by considering their time commitments to the
Company as well as their professional qualifications. In addition,
sufficient number of independent non-executive Directors
are maintained so that views from different perspectives are
available to the Board. External independent professional advice
would be rendered from time to time if the Board is in need of
such advice. In particular, the Company has appointed external
professional as the Company’s consultant to review our ESG

policy and the effectiveness of its implementation.

The Company’'s mechanisms have been reviewed and
considered as effective at present. The Board would review the
implementation and effectiveness of such mechanisms on an

annual basis.
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NUMBER OF MEETINGS ATTENDED/ELIGIBLE TO ATTEND IN 2022

During the year of 2022, the Board held 4 regular meetings at

approximately quarterly intervals.

As regards general meetings, the Company held the annual

general meeting on 29 June 2022.

A table of summary in regard to the Directors’ participation at the
various board meetings and board committee meetings and the

Company’s general meetings is set out below:

FE ENZEE HMzag REZEE HiTzE8 N

Board Audit  Remuneration Nomination Executive General
Meetings Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting(s)
HTES Executive Directors
BRELE Mr. James Chun-Hsien Wei 444 TER iR TER 1414 "
N/A N/A N/A
BFEAE Mr. Han Chia-Yin 44 TR TEA TER 14/14 i
N/A N/A N/A
FHTES Non-executive Directors
BRRRE Mr. Harn Jia-Chen 444 TER N 23 TER 01
N/A N/A
ERERE Mr. Han Jia-Hwan 3/4 TER TR 23 TER 0N
N/A N/A N/A
BRFEE Mr. Han Chia-Yau 44 TER N TEE TER N
N/A N/A N/A
BRERE Mr. Chao Tien-Shin 4f4 TER TEf TER TR 17
N/A N/A N/A N/A
FHZERE Mr. Wei Anning 44 TER TER TER TER 01
N/A N/A N/A N/A
BUEHTES  Independent Non-executive Directors
WKERE Mr. Way Yung-Do 44 44 10 3B TiEA 17
N/A
Ratk Mr. Chen Chih 44 44 n 33 il i
N/A
TEWLRE Mr. Ting Yu-Shan 4/4 44 i 33 TEfA n
N/A
BUEEAE Mr. Hsia, Li-Yan 4/4 44 17 33 TER 17
N/A
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Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors
at least 14 days before the meeting, while reasonable notice is

generally given for other board meetings (if any).

Agenda and accompanying board papers together with all
appropriate, complete and reliable information are sent to all
Directors in a timely manner, and at least 3 days before the
intended date of each Board or board committee meeting, except
agreed otherwise among the members, to ensure that they
have sufficient time to review the board papers and adequately
prepare for the meeting, to keep the Directors apprised of the
latest developments and financial position of the Company and
to enable them to include any matter in the agenda and to make

informed decisions.

The Board and each Director, upon reasonable request, have
access to independent professional advice to assist them in
performing their duties to the Company, at the Company's
expense. When needed and upon making request to the Board,
Directors may obtain independent professional advice at the

Company’s expense in carrying out their duties.

Minutes of all the meetings of the Board, the audit committee
of the Company (the “Audit Committee"”), the remuneration
committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”, together with the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and other committee(s) of the Board,
the “Board Committees”) of the Company are kept by the
appointed secretary. All of the above minutes record the matters
considered and the discussions and decisions reached by the
relevant members in sufficient detail, including any concerns
raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Any Director
may inspect the minutes at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice.
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Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors or members of
the relevant committee for comment within a reasonable time
after each meeting and the final versions thereof are sent to all
Directors or committee members for their record.

The Company has maintained appropriate insurance cover in

respect of legal action against its Directors.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

In year 2022, during the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 August
2022, the position of Chief Executive Officer was held by
Mr. Sun Teh Hong. With effect from 1 September 2022,
Mr. Sun Teh Hong has resigned from the position of Chief
Executive Officer due to retirement and Mr. James Chun-Hsien
Wei (who has been an executive Director and the Chairman) has

assumed an additional position of Chief Executive Officer.

Despite Mr. James Chun-Hsien Wei performs both of the
roles as the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, the
Company considers that such an arrangement does not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company. As the Chairman, Mr. Wei leads
the Board which collectively formulates the Company’s long-term
strategies and monitor the management’s performance. As the
Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Wei is responsible for the day-to-
day management of business, the important decisions of which
are discussed among and determined by the members of the
Executive Committee collectively. Further, more than 1/3 of the
Board members are independent non-executive Directors and the
Board consists of 11 members, all of whom has no relationship
with Mr. James Chun-Hsien Wei. Therefore, it is the Company’s
opinion that such an arrangement does not compromise the

overall interests of the Company and its shareholders.

The core duties of the Chairman include (among others):

° overseeing the development of the long-term strategies,

objectives and policies for the Company;
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ensuring, with the assistance of the management, that the
Directors receive adequate, accurate, clear, complete and
reliable information in a timely manner and are appropriately

briefed on issues to be discussed at Board meetings;
providing leadership for the Board;

ensuring that the Board works effectively, performs its
responsibilities, and discusses all key and appropriate
issues in a timely manner, with good corporate governance
practices and procedures;

taking primary responsibility for ensuring that good
corporate governance practices and procedures are in

place;

ensuring, (where appropriate) with delegation to Company
Secretary or a designated Director, that the agenda for each
Board meeting is drawn up and approving the same, taking
into account matters proposed by other Directors;

encouraging all Directors to fully and actively contribute to
the Board's affairs and taking the lead to ensure that it acts
in the best interests of the Company;

encouraging Directors with different views to voice their
concerns, allowing sufficient time for discussion of issues
and ensuring that Board's decisions fairly reflect Board's

consensus;

promoting a culture of openness and debate and facilitating
the effective contribution of Directors, in particular, non-
executive Directors, and ensuring the constructive relations

between executive and non-executive Directors;

holding meeting(s) at least annually with the independent
non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors. The Board regarded such meeting(s) as opinion
exchange gathering whereby a broad range of strategic and
performance matters were openly discussed,;
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o ensuring appropriate steps are taken to provide effective
communication with shareholders and that views of

shareholders are communicated to the Board as a whole;

° attending the annual general meeting of the Company
and arranging for the chairmen of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
(as appropriate) or in the absence of the chairmen of such
committees, another member of same committee or failing
this, his duly appointed delegate, to be available to answer
guestions at the annual general meeting of the Company;
and

o deciding whether a resolution at a general meeting of the
Company relating purely to a procedural or administrative
matter should be excluded from the requirement for voting

by poll.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF MEMBERS OF THE

BoOARD

The Company has entered into service contracts with or issued
letters of appointment to its Directors setting out the key terms

and conditions of their appointments.

Under article 108 of the Company's Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
time being shall retire from office by rotation and every Director,
including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years while those
retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election. Any Director
who has not been subject to retirement by rotation in the 3 years
preceding the annual general meeting shall retire by rotation at
such annual general meeting. Any further Directors so to retire
shall be those who have been longest in office since their last re-
election or appointment and so that as between persons who
became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day those
to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves)

be determined by lot.
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In accordance with the said provision of the Articles of Association
of the Company and the Code Provision B.2.2, one-third of the
Directors (namely Mr. Wei Anning, Mr. Han Chia-Yau, Mr. Harn
Jia-Chen and Mr. Chao Tien-Shin) retired from office by rotation
and were re-elected as Directors at the last annual general
meeting of the Company (“AGM") held on 29 June 2022.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
received an annual written confirmation from each independent
non-executive Director of his independence to the Company.
The Company has assessed the independence and considers all
of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent
based on the independence criteria in accordance with the
requirements in the Listing Rules, their non-involvement in the
daily operation and management of the Group and the absence
of any relationships which will interfere with the exercise of their

independent judgment.

The Company confirms that as at the date of this annual report,
the years of service of all independent non-executive Directors
are less than 9 except Mr. Way Yung Do and Mr. Chen Chih.
Should the Board wish to seek for the further appointments
of those independent non-executive Directors serving more
than 9 years from the shareholders, separate resolutions will
be proposed to the shareholders and the reasons to justify
their independency despite the length of their services will be

contained in relevant papers to the shareholders.
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Name of Non-executive Directors/

Independent Non-executive Directors

FHTES BUFPTESHSR

Non-executive Directors
The current term of appointment for the non-executive Directors

(including independent non-executive Directors) are as follows:

Term of Appointment
E55

BRREXE
Mr. Harn Jia-Chen

BERFEE
Mr. Han Chia-Yau

BRELE

Mr. Han Jia-Hwan

HRENSE
Mr. Chao Tien-Shin

BkE L
Mr. Way Yung-Do

OGS
Mr. Chen Chih

TE%kE
Mr. Ting Yu-Shan

Bt
Mr. Wei Anning

EVELE
Mr. Hsia, Li-Yan
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B - At NEBEE T -_HFREBFASLER
From 29 June 2022 to the conclusion of the AGM of 2025

BT —FRNAHtNABRE T -_AFHRERAFTFRSER
From 29 June 2022 to the conclusion of the AGM of 2025

B - XAt NBEE T -_NFEREBEFASLER
From 29 June 2021 to the conclusion of the AGM of 2024

BT —FRNAHtNABRE T -_AFRERAFRSER
From 29 June 2022 to the conclusion of the AGM of 2025

BE-E - —FXRXAtNHBRE-_ZE-_NFRFEAFAGSHE
From 29 June 2021 to the conclusion of the AGM of 2024

BT —F A+t NARBE T -_NFRERFRASTER
From 29 June 2021 to the conclusion of the AGM of 2024

BE-E_ZEF X NA-tHRBRE_ZE-_—FREAFTAGER
From 30 June 2020 to the conclusion of the AGM of 2023

BZE - —FRAZTNERBREZT-_RAFRIEBFRLLER
From 29 June 2022 to the conclusion of the AGM of 2025

BE-E - —FXRXAtTNHBRE_ZE-_NFRFEAFTAGHE
From 29 June 2021 to the conclusion of the AGM of 2024
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board has established the Nomination Committee to provide
a framework and set the standards for the appointment of high
quality Directors who should have the capacity and ability to lead
the Company towards achieving sustainable development. It
considers matters regarding the nomination and/or appointment

or re-appointment of director(s).

Details of the Nomination Committee are set out in the sub-

section headed “Nomination Committee” below.
RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

The management of the Company works closely with the newly
appointed Director(s) (if any) both immediately before and after
his appointment to acquaint the newly appointed Director(s) with
the duties and responsibilities as a Director and the business

operation of the Company.

A package compiled and reviewed by the Company’'s legal
advisors setting out such duties and responsibilities under the
Listing Rules, Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of Laws
of Hong Kong) and other related law and relevant regulatory
requirements of Hong Kong is provided to each newly appointed
Director. The Company also provides information relating
to the operations and business of the Group to each newly
appointed Director. The Directors are updated with the latest
developments in laws, rules and regulations relating to the duties
and responsibilities of directors from time to time. Guidelines for
directors issued by the Company Registry of Hong Kong have
been forwarded to each Director for his information and ready

reference.
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The Board views that the non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) are well-aware of their
functions and have been actively performing their functions
including but not limited to exercising their independent
judgment at the Board meetings, taking the lead where
potential conflicts of interest arise, scrutinizing the Company's
performance in achieving agreed corporate goals and objectives,
monitoring performance report and providing constructive and
informed advice on the business strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments, standards of
conduct and management of the Company. They regularly review
the financial information, monitor the operational performance of
the Company and serve on the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee.

The Directors have disclosed to the Company at the time of their
respective appointments, and in a timely manner for any change,
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organisations and other significant commitments. They have
also informed the Company of the name of any other public
companies or organisations they serve and the term of office

involved in these public companies or organisations.

All Directors have devoted their time and attention to the
affairs of the Company with their hands-on knowledge and
expertise in the areas and operation in which he is in charge
with. The contribution made by the Directors to the affairs of
the Company is measured in terms of time as well as quality
of the attention and the ability of the Directors with reference
to his necessary knowledge and expertise. The attendance
of Board meetings, general meeting(s) and Board Committee
meetings indicates the constant participation of all Directors,
including executive, independent non-executive and other non-
executive Directors and ensures the better understanding of the
views of shareholders by all Directors. The extent of participation
and contribution should be viewed both quantitatively and

qualitatively.
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To fulfil their duties properly, where they consider it as necessary
to obtain additional information other than that is provided by
the management, the Directors made inquiries during the Board
meetings and Board Committee meetings. The queries raised by

Directors have received a prompt and full response.
INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Directors are continually updated with legal and regulatory
developments, and the business and market changes to facilitate
the discharge of their responsibilities through various Board
meetings, resolutions, memos and Board papers. According to
the records maintained by the Company, the Directors received
the following training (arranged by the Company) with an
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a director of a
listed company in compliance with the requirement of the Code
on continuous professional development during the period from
1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022:

ETEY/ E-learning/
HEWTE Attend seminars/
) BIEMA BNE Directors Read materials briefings
BITES Executive Directors
EEBRAE V Mr. James Chun-Hsien Wei
BERHELE Mr. Han Chia-Yin
FBTES Non-executive Directors
BRERAE v v Mr. Han Jia-Hwan v v
BRFRAE v v Mr. Han Chia-Yau v v
BRRAE v v Mr. Harn Jia-Chen v v
HRERAE \ V Mr. Chao Tien-Shin v v
RRELE \/ v Mr. Wei Anning v v
BUFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
KB LA v v Mr. Way Yung-Do v v
Bk E v v Mr. Chen Chih V \
TELEAE v v Mr. Ting Yu-Shan v v
BUERE v v Mr. Hsia, Li-Yan V \
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS GUIDELINES

The Board has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transaction on terms no less exacting than the required
standard as set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in

Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiries have been made with all Directors and they
have confirmed that throughout the year ended 31 December
2022, they complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code and the Company’s code of conduct regarding

directors’ securities transactions.

The Directors’ interests in shares of the Company as at 31
December 2022 are set out on pages 87 to 89 of this annual

report.

The Board has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code for the relevant employee,
including any employee or a director or employee of a subsidiary
or holding company of the Company who, because of his office
or employment, is likely to possess inside information in relation
to the Company or its securities, in respect of their dealings in

the Company’s securities.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board delegates its powers and authorities from time to
time to the Board Committees in order to ensure the operational
efficiency and specific issues are being handled by relevant
expertise. All Board Committees are provided with accurate and
sufficient information in timely manner so as to enable the Board
Committees to make informed decisions for the benefit of the

Company and sufficient resources to discharge their duties.

The functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to the
management have been set out in the Director's Memorandum
In Discharging Director’'s Duties (the “Director’'s Memorandum™)
adopted by the Board on 23 March 2012. The Board has
reviewed the said memorandum on periodically basis to ensure
that it remains appropriate. The policy for segregation of duties
and responsibilities between the Board and the permitted
delegates has been clearly defined and provided in the Director’s

Memorandum as internal guidelines of the Company.

The types of decisions which are to be taken by the Board
include those relating to (among others):

° corporate and capital structure;
° corporate strategy;
° significant policies affecting the Company as a whole;

° material changes to policies adopted by the Board;
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o business plan including major production and marketing

plans, budgets and publication of announcements;

o key financial matters;

o change to the structure, size and composition of the Board;

o appointment, removal or reappointment of Board members,

senior management and auditors;

° remuneration of Directors and senior management; and

° communication with key stakeholders, including

shareholders and regulatory bodies.

Each Director has a copy of the Director’'s Memorandum and

clearly understood the above delegation policy of the Company.

For aspects of management and administration functions
delegated to the management, the Board has given clear
directions as to the management’'s power, particularly as
to where management should report back and obtain prior
Board approval before making decisions or entering into any

commitments on behalf of the Company.

BoARD COMMITTEES

In 2022, the Board had 4 Board Committees including the
Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee, the Executive
Committee and the Nomination Committee, all with specific
terms of reference, to oversee particular aspects of the Group's
affairs.
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RZBEZZF  BEFLESHEBENERESE Attendance of the relevant members of the Board Committee at
Bge@mmbEaaEImT the meetings of the committees in 2022 is as follows:
HITZEEER EVZE8EE yzEgeE REZEEER
Executive Audit Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Committee Committee
Meeting(s) Meeting(s) Meeting(s) Meeting(s)
HTES Executive Directors
EEBEA(ERR  Mr James Chun-Hsien Wei 14114 TR NIA T NA TR NA
B-Z-C-F (Chairman and as from 1
JLA—B#E7R September 2022, also the Chief
EAERHIE) Executive Officer)
BRERE Mr. Han Chia-Yin 14114 TEA NIA T NA TR NA
FBTES Non-Executive Directors
BRRLE Mr. Ham Jia-Chen EA NIA B NIA 7 2/3
BRERE Mr. Han Jia-Hwan AR NA AR NA TERA NA 213
BRFEE Mr. Han Chia-Yau B NIA MERA NIA 7 TERA NIA
HRERE Mr. Chao Tien-Shin ERA NIA B NIA AER N/A TERA NIA
FZELE Mr. Wei Anning B NIA B NIA ER NA AR NIA
BYFHTES Independent Non-Executive
Directors
KERE Mr. Way Yung-Do TERA NIA 4/4 17n 33
[ ¥ep e Mr. Chen Chih T NA 444 111 33
TEL%EE Mr. Ting Yu-Shan TER N/A 4/4 17 33
BUEHRE Mr. Hsia, Li-Yan TEA NA 4/4 17n 33
BRHTE Chief Executive Officer
BER (H2022F9A1 Mr. Sun Teh Hong (resigned as 10/10 TEAN/A TEANIA TEAN/A
BEEHIEEINTE)  the Chief Executive Offier on 1
September 2022)
BHER Chief Financial Officer
REF(2022F6A1 Mr. Chang Chin-Pyng (resigned as 6/6 TERNA TEENIA MEANA
HEHIEER) the Chief Financial Officer on 1
June 2022)
Bk B% 4 (8202246 Mr. Lan Yung Hsu (Chief Financial 8/8 TERA NA AERA NA ER NA
BIE#RETSBER)  Officer as from 1 June 2022)
ek Vice President
BRAKE Mr. Jonathan Fang-Tsu Han 1414 TEA NA AR NA TER NA
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 14 September
2007. During the period from 1 January 2022 and up to the date
of this report, the Nomination Committee was chaired by Mr.
Chen Chih (an independent non-executive Director) with other 5
members, including Mr. Han Jia-Hwan (a non-executive Director),
Mr. Harn Jia-Chen (a non-executive Director), Mr. Way Yung-
Do (an independent non-executive Director), Mr. Ting Yu-Shan
(an independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Hsia Li-Yan (an
independent non-executive Director), the majority of whom are

independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee is governed by its terms of reference
(adopted on 9 August 2013), which are closely aligned with the
relevant Code Provisions requirements and are available at both
the Company’s website www.dfa3999.com and HKEx's website

www.hkex.com.hk.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the

following (among others):

o to review the structure, size and diversity of the Board
at least annually and to make recommendations to the
Board regarding any proposed changes to implement the

Company'’s corporate strategy;

o to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and to select or to make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for

directorships;

° to assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors;

to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and succession planning for
Directors; and
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o to review the Board Diversity Policy (details of the Board
Diversity Policy are set out in the sub-section headed

“Diversity” below).

Throughout the year ended 2022, 3 Nomination Committee
meetings were held on 28 April 2022, 4 August 2022 and 3
November 2022 respectively, to which the following tasks were

performed by the Nomination Committee:

o considered the change of the chief financial officer (who is

also a member of the Executive Committee);

o reviewed the current Board structure, diversity and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and

experience);

o assessed the independence of all independent non-

executive Directors;

o reviewed the diversity of the Board taking into account a

number of factors as set out in the Board Diversity Policy;

o reviewed the necessary time for the Directors to discharge

their duties and responsibilities; and

° considered change in the chief executive officer of the

Company.
The Nomination Committee has been advised that it may seek

independent professional advice at the expense of the Company

wherever necessary.
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Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (“Nomination
Policy”) on 13 December 2018 which sets out the principles
and procedures for selection and nomination of members to the
Board, to ensure the Board has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of

the Company's business.

The Nomination Committee shall nominate suitable candidates
to the Board for it to consider and make recommendations to
shareholders for election as directors of the Company at general
meetings or appoint as directors to fill casual vacancies (as the

case maybe).

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:

o Reputation for integrity;

o Accomplishment and experience in the principal business

of the Company;

o Commitment in respect of available time and relevant

interest;

o Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,

knowledge and length of service; and

o Independence (in respect of independent non-executive

Directors).

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the

discretion to nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.
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Nomination Committee shall convene a meeting and invite the
candidate(s) to attend the meeting for consideration and enquiry

by members of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee will continually review the
Nomination Policy and reserves the right to update, amend,

modify and/or cancel the Nomination Policy.
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

During the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022
and up to the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee
was chaired by Mr. Ting Yu-Shan (an independent non-executive
Director) with other 5 members, including Mr. Harn Jia-Chen
(@ non-executive Director), Mr. Han Chia Yau (a non-executive
Director), Mr. Way Yung-Do (an independent non-executive
Director), Mr. Chen Chih (an independent non-executive Director)
and Mr. Hsia, Li-Yan (an independent non-executive Director), the

majority of whom are independent non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is governed by its terms of
reference adopted on 23 March 2012, which are closely aligned
with the relevant Code Provisions requirements. The terms of
reference are made available on the Company’s website www.

dfa3999.com and HKEx's website www.hkex.com.hk.

The Remuneration Committee was established on 14 September
2007 pursuant to Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules. It meets from
time to time to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors
and senior management, and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee also reviews and
approves the performance-based remuneration by reference
to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board from
time to time, and determines, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and

senior management.
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Throughout the year ended 2022, 1 Remuneration Committee
meeting was held on 3 November 2022, to which the following

tasks were performed by the Remuneration Committee:

o reviewed a report prepared by the management regarding
the human resources and remuneration policy and

workforce optimization measures of the Company in 2022.

The management provides administrative support and
implements the approved remuneration packages and
other human resources related decisions approved by the
Remuneration Committee.

Emolument Policy and Long-Term Incentive Plan

To attract and retain talent and calibre, the Company provides
a competitive remuneration package to its executive Directors
and senior management. This comprises base monthly salary,
guaranteed cash benefits and allowances, special allowances,
bonuses, and is paid half-yearly or yearly relative to performance
delivered through plans and objectives which have pre-
determined criteria and standards.

The fees and any other reimbursement or emolument payable
to the Directors by band and senior management are set out in
notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements.

It is the Company’s policy to ensure that remuneration is
fair and appropriate and aligns with the goals, objectives and
performance of the Company and its subsidiaries. It is also the
Company'’s policy to ensure that remuneration levels should be
fair and sufficient to attract and retain people of high caliber to

oversee the Company's business and development.
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AupIT COMMITTEE

During the period from 1 January 2022 and up to the date of
this report, the Audit Committee was chaired by Mr. Way Yung-
Do with other 3 members including Mr. Chen Chih, Mr. Ting Yu-
Shan and Mr. Hsia Li-Yan, all of whom are independent non-

executive Directors.

Mr. Way Yung-Do is the chairman of the Audit Committee and
has accumulated substantial experience in financial advisory,
accounting and auditing. Details of Mr. Way's biography are set
out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management

Profile” in this annual report.

The Audit Committee usually meets 4 times a year to review the
Company'’s quarterly, interim and annual results and the integrity
of the Group’s financial statements. The Audit Committee is
accountable to the Board and assists the Board in meeting its
responsibilities in ensuring an effective and adequate system is
in place for internal controls and for meeting its external financial
reporting obligations and compliance with other legal and
regulatory requirements. The Audit Committee also reviews and
monitors the scope and effectiveness of the work of external
auditors.

The Audit Committee is governed by its terms of reference
adopted and amended on 23 March 2012 and 30 October 2015
respectively, which are closely aligned with the relevant Code
Provisions requirements. The terms of reference are made
available on the Company’'s website www.dfa3999.com and

HKEx's website www.hkex.com.hk.
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The Audit Committee meetings are normally attended by the
Company's Chief Financial Officer. When meetings concern
the routine finance control, the head of the internal control
department of the Company also attends the meeting to report
on the problems identified during the internal control audits and
recommendation of methods to alleviate and solve the problems
identified. The external auditor is often present on discussion of
the audit of financial results and audit planning.

Throughout the year ended 2022, the Audit Committee held 4
meetings on 23 March 2022, 28 April 2022, 4 August 2022 and 3
November 2022 respectively, during which the following matters

were reviewed and considered by the Audit Committee:

o the auditing work performed by external auditor;

° the internal control reports submitted by the internal audit
department of the Company and the effectiveness of the
systems of internal control and risk management of the
Group;

° the report on taxation related matters of the Company;

o the completeness and accuracy of the 2021 annual and
2022 quarterly and interim financial statements;

° the developments in accounting standards (if any) and the

effect on the Company;

o review internal control measures and defects (if any);

o the audit fees payable to external auditor, the scope and
timetable of the audit for year 2022;

° the recommendations to the Board, for the approval by
shareholders, for the reappointment of Messrs. KPMG as
the external auditor, which the Board agreed and accepted;
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o the aggregate value, pricing policy and other terms of
the continuing connected transactions carried out by the

Company;

the facility arrangement(s) by the Company and its

subsidiary;

o the recommendation to the Board for the approval of anti-

fraud and whistleblowing mechanism system; and

° the appointment of consultant for the ESG report of the
Company.

The Audit Committee has been advised that it may seek
independent professional advice at the expense of the Company
wherever necessary. The Audit Committee is also supported
by the staff of the internal audit department and the external

auditor.

ExXEcUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board established the Executive Committee on 14
September 2007 with specific written terms of reference. The
Board has delegated responsibilities to the Executive Committee
for making certain decisions for the management of the

Company.

The Executive Committee is bound by its terms of reference,
which have been revised by the Board on 12 March 2010,16
December 2016 and 22 March 2019. The English version of the
terms of reference is available on the Company's website at

www.dfa3999.com.

In accordance with its terms of reference, members of the
Executive Committee shall be appointed by the Board from
amongst the executive Directors and senior management of the
Company only. The Executive Committee shall consist of no
more than 7 members, which include the executive Directors,
the chief operation officer or the chief financial officer of the

Company and other senior management of the Company.
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During the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 May 2022, the
Executive Committee comprised the following members:

Executive Director
Mr. James Chun-Hsien Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Han Chia-Yin

Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Sun Teh Hong

Chief Financial Officer & Chief Human Resources Officer
Mr. Chang Chin-Pyng

Vice President

Mr. Jonathan Fang-Tsu Han

During the period from 1 June 2022 to 31 August 2022, the
Executive Committee comprised of the following members:

Executive Director
Mr. James Chun-Hsien Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Han Chia-Yin

Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Sun Teh Hong

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Lan Yung Hsu

Vice President

Mr. Jonathan Fang-Tsu Han
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During the period from 1 September 2022 to 31 December
2022 and up to the date of this report, the Executive Committee

comprises of the following members:

Executive Director
Mr. James Chun-Hsien Wei

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Han Chia-Yin

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Lan Yung Hsu

Vice President
Mr. Jonathan Fang-Tsu Han

The work completed by the Executive Committee during 2022
included consideration of the following matters:

o approving any routine matters or matters concerning day-

to-day operation of the Group;

o formulating for the Board's review the Group’s overall

corporate governance policy and investor relation policy;
o implementing the annual business plan, operating and
capital expenditure budgets of the Company as approved

by the Board; and

o implementing the strategic plans and long-term objectives
as approved by the Board.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had net assets of
approximately RMB2,323 million and the Company recorded a
profit attributable to equity holders of the parent of approximately
RMB92 million for the year ended 31 December 2022.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board aims to present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment in annual and interim reports, inside information
announcements and other financial disclosures required under

the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibility for the
preparation of the accounts for each financial period which give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the
results and cash flows for that period.

The statement by the external auditor of the Company regarding
its reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the “Independent Auditor's Report” on page
103.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that
the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and hence decide that it is
appropriate to prepare the financial statements set out on pages
112 to 268 on a going concern basis. The Board is not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern.
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The bases on which the Company generates or preserves value
over the longer term and the strategy for delivering its objectives
are explained in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” set

out in pages 10 to 22 in this annual report.

The management provides the Board with sufficient explanation
and information, such as the Group’s major business activities
and key financial information, to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment of the financial information and other

information of the Company put before the Board for approval.

The management also provides all Directors with monthly
updates giving them a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Company’'s performance, position and prospects in
sufficient detail to enable the Board as a whole and each Director
to discharge their duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of the
Listing Rules.

Ri1SK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the Group's risk
management and internal control systems and oversees the said
system and is responsible for reviewing their effectiveness. The
Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight and
corporate governance roles in the Group’s financial, operational,
compliance, risk management and internal controls, and the

resourcing of the finance and internal audit functions.

In addition to the Board's oversight responsibilities, the Company
has also developed a risk management process and internal
control systems to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks (including ESG risks) and to resolve material internal control

defects (if any).
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The management establishes a specified management system
for the risks of the Company. Members of the internal audit
department of the Company report to the management on a
regular basis to review and assess risks and discuss solutions to
address material internal control defects (if any), including any
improvement relevant to a given year. Results of such reports
and discussions are organized with ratings of each risk and
written response plans. The risk assessment is reviewed by
the management and presented to the Audit Committee or the
Board for their review.

Appropriate policies and controls have been designed and
established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against
improper use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are
adhered to and complied with, reliable financial and accounting
records are maintained in accordance with relevant accounting
standards and regulatory reporting requirements, and key risks
that may impact on the Group’s performance are appropriately
identified and managed. The systems and internal controls can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives.

The management is responsible for supervising enterprise risk
management works and reviewing significant aspects of risk
management of the Group. The operating units of the Group,
as risk bearer, identify, evaluate, mitigate and monitor their own
risks, and report such risk management activities to the risk
management and compliance department on a quarterly basis.
The risk management and compliance department assesses and
presents regular reports to the management at each regularly
scheduled meeting.
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The internal audit department of the Group reports to the
Audit Committee or the Board at the meeting(s) of the Audit
Committee or the Board, the results of their works during the
preceding period pertaining to the adequacy and effectiveness
of internal controls, including but not limited to, indicating any
failures in implementing any internal control systems or material
weaknesses in those systems. The Board has reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems and the effectiveness
of such systems for the year 2022 and considers such systems
effective and adequate.

For the procedures relating to the handling and publishment
of inside information, the management of the Company is
responsible for assessing the potential impact of any significant
urgent situations on the share price of the Company and its
transaction volume, and reports to the Board so that the Board
determines whether such information is considered as inside
information and is required to disclose as soon as practicable in

accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Company has employed its own internal auditors to perform
regular and systematic reviews of the Group’s internal control
system. The reviews provide reasonable assurance that the
internal control system continues to operate satisfactorily and

effectively within the Group and the Company.

Each year, the Audit Committee reviews the findings made
by the external auditor in respect of issues encountered by it
in preparation of the audit report, which often covers issues
relating to internal control. The Audit Committee also reviews
the risk management and internal control report submitted by
the Company’s internal audit department. The Audit Committee
will then review the actions performed or the plans to be
carried out by the management in addressing the issues.
The issues identified and the corresponding remedial plans
and recommendations are then submitted to the Board for

consideration.
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For the year of 2022, no critical internal control issues have been
identified.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company is committed to ensuring compliance with
regulatory requirements under the Listing Rules, applicable
laws and regulations in handling connected transactions.
Accordingly, the Company implemented various internal control
mechanisms to identify and monitor connected transactions to
ensure that connected transactions are conducted under normal
commercial terms or on terms that are fair and reasonable
and properly disclosed and (if necessary) approved by the
independent shareholders in accordance with the Listing Rules.
The connected persons will be required to abstain from voting in
the general meetings. Details of the connected transactions of
the Company during the year are set out in the section headed

“Report of the Directors” of this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year under review, the remuneration paid for services

BRI XA T provided by the Company's external auditor is roughly as follows:
£58 Amount
(AR®F ) RMB’000
ENZIRTE 3,700 Audit services 3,700
RS Non-audit services
- ESGH AR 133 — ESG Consultation Service 133
- HAb AR 700 — Other services 700

KB (35M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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DIVERSITY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”) on 9 August 2013 which sets out its approach
to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. With
a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the
Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from
a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

The Board Diversity Policy provides measurable objectives
for selection of Board candidates from diversity perspectives
(including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service).

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the Board
Diversity Policy and will discuss any revisions that may be
required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board for

consideration and approval.
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At present, all the Directors being of the same gender, the
Nomination Committee considers that the current composition
of the Board is characterised by diversity after taking into
account the business model of the Group and specific industrial
characteristics, whether considered in terms of educational
and professional background and industry experience. The
Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and skills, including
knowledge and experience in the areas of feeds production, food
production, food and beverage services, information technology,
aviculture, medicine, financial consultancy, auditing and
accounting. They obtained degrees in various majors including
business administration, engineering, computer science,

accounting and economics.

As of 31 December 2022, approximately 49% of the Company's
workforce (including senior management) is female. The
Company considers that the current composition of the
workforce is characterized by diversity taking into account
the business model of the Group and specific industrial
characteristics. The Company will continue to strive to enhance
female representation and achieve an appropriate balance of
gender diversity with reference to the shareholders’ expectation
and international and local recommended best practices. At
present, the Board has not set any measurable objectives.

The Company recognizes the importance of female
representation in the Board and strives to achieve an appropriate
balance of gender diversity to meet the shareholders’ expectation
as well as the international recommended best practices.
Regarding the Company’s objective to achieve gender diversity
in respect of the Board, the Company will appoint at least one
female director in the Board no later than 31 December 2024.
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Except for the composition of the Board, the Company will
ensure that there is gender diversity when recruiting employees
at management level as well as staff at mid-level. The Company
is committed to provide a promising career path for female
employees to reach the Company’s senior management level
even become potential candidates to the Board in near future.
All-rounded trainings to female employees will be provided in
near future so that they could adapt to the Company’s different

positions, being operation role or management role etc.
COMPANY SECRETARY

The position of Company Secretary is held by Ms. Cho Yi Ping,
a practising solicitor of Hong Kong who is not an employee of
the Company. The Company Secretary can contact the Company
through the head of legal department of the Company, Ms. Feng
Yuxia. The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board and
reports to the Chairman from time to time. All Directors have
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to
ensure that board procedures, and all applicable laws, rules and

regulations are followed.

Being the Company Secretary, Ms. Cho Yi Ping has to take no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
year 2022. She has fulfiled the requirement during the year under

review.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company endeavours to uphold a high level of corporate
transparency. Keeping shareholders, investors, analysts, bankers
and other stakeholders informed of our corporate strategies and
business operations has been one of the key objectives of our
investor relations team.

The general meetings of the Company provide the best
opportunity for communication between the Board and the
shareholders, where under article 64A of the Articles of
Association of the Company, shareholders have the right to
speak. The Company complied with the required notice periods
for general meetings under the Code Provisions, the applicable

laws, rules and regulations.

Also, separate resolutions for each substantially separate issue

were proposed at the AGM.

The chairpersons of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and the Audit Committee or, in their absence, other
members of the respective committees and, where applicable,
the independent Board committee, are available to answer

questions at the general meetings of the Company.

The representatives of the external auditor of the Company,
Messrs. KPMG also attended the AGM held on 29 June 2022 to
answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation
and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and

auditor independence.
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VoTING BY PoLL

The Company expresses in each relevant corporate
communication that the shareholders shall vote by poll so as
to allow the shareholders to have one vote for every share of
the Company held. The chairman of the meeting would explain
the voting procedure and answer any questions from the
shareholders regarding voting by poll in the general meetings.
The poll voting results of the general meetings were published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
respectively on the same day after the general meetings were
held.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS TO CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY

GENERAL MEETING

Under article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings shall be convened on the
requisition of one or more shareholders of the Company
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, 10% or more
of the voting rights, on a one vote per share basis, in the share
capital of the Company, and that they shall be entitled to add
resolutions to such meeting’'s agenda. Shareholder’ requisition
shall be made in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary
for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. The relevant extraordinary general
meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be

reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND PROCEDURES FOR

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

Based on the requirement of the Code, a Shareholders’
Communication Policy was formulated and adopted on 23 March
2012 and thereafter amended on 23 March 2022 in order to
ensure the shareholders are provided with ready, equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information about
the Company. The Board has taken appropriate steps to provide
effective communication with shareholders. The effectiveness
of shareholders’ communication under the Shareholders’
Communication Policy will be reviewed by the Board on an

annual basis.

All published information, including all the statutory
announcements, press releases and event calendars, is promptly
posted on the Group’s website www. dfa3999.com. Investors
can also make enquiries to the Board or senior management by
contacting the Company either through the Company Investor
Relations Department on telephone number (86)-10-59047569
or by email at investors@dachan.com.cn or directly by raising
questions or proposals at general meetings of the Company. The
Company’s team dedicated to investor relations takes a proactive
approach to communicate with existing and potential investors
in a timely manner by making regular face-to-face meetings and
conference calls with investors.

The Company considers the latest Shareholders Communication
Policy to be effective and has been implemented smoothly
throughout the year ended 31 December 2022. Shareholders’
voices were heard either from general meetings or from the
Company Investor Relations Department; where concerns have
been addressed and resolved satisfactorily in time. As a channel
to further promote effective communication, dedicated officers
from Company Investor Relations were assigned to handle

inquiries and feedback from shareholders.
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DivipEND PoLICY

On 13 December 2018, the Company has adopted its dividend
policy (“Dividend Policy”). The Dividend Policy is as follows:

The general policy for distribution of dividend is that the Company
shall enable the shareholders to enjoy the profits of the Company
whilst ensure adequate reserve for future development of the

Company.

The following factors will be taken into account by the Board
when declaring dividend or recommending distribution of
dividend:

the Company's actual and expected financial performance;

° retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

o the Group's expected working capital requirements, capital

expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

° the Group's cash flow situation, the Group's debts to equity
ratio and any restrictions on financial ratios that may be

imposed by the loan agreements with financial institutions;

o general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group's
business and other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance

and position of the Company; and
o any other factors that the Board deem appropriate.
Declaration and distribution of dividend by the Company will be

subject to Articles of Association of the Company and all laws
and regulations applicable to the Company.
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The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy and
reserve the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update,
amend, modify and/or cancel the Dividend Policy, and the
Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Company in respect of its future dividend
and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at

any time or from time to time.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

At the annual general meeting held by the Company on 29
June 2022, a special resolution was passed to approve the
proposed amendments to the existing Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company to align them with the
new requirements under the latest Listing Rules, details of which
were set out in the Company's circular dated 28 April 2022. The
said amendments took effect on 29 June 2022. A copy of the
latest consolidated version of the Memorandum of Association
and Articles of Association are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

CONCLUSION

Going forward, the Company will continue to work diligently to

maintain the highest level of corporate transparency possible.
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Report of the Directors

The Board submits the annual report together with the audited

financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment
holding and operation of a highly vertically integrated business
encompassing feeds production, chicken meat processing and

supply of processed foods through its subsidiaries.
BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

REVIEW OF THE GROUP’S BUSINESS AND PERFORMANCE

Details of the fair review (including an analysis using key financial
performance indicators) and the possible future development
trend of the Group’s business are set out in the sections
headed “Financial Highlights”, “Chairman’s Statement” and

“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Food safety is the most significant risk faced by the Group's
business. In this regard, the Group has always been focusing on
building and perfecting a traceable platform, and adhering to the
principle of 100-1=0. The Group lists food safety as one of the
key tasks of the ESG team and establishes a three-level defense
line for quality control so as to avoid the potential adverse impact
of food safety incidents that may occur in the operation of the

Group.

Exchange rate fluctuation is also a market risk which the Group
seeks to actively handle. The Group has adjusted the currency of
borrowings as and when appropriate to minimise unnecessary

loss arising from change of currency.
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year, the Group was not aware of any violation of the
relevant laws and regulations which may have significant impact
on it.
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DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

Since 31 December 2022, the Board was not aware of any
significant event affecting the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

Promoting the sustainable development is a social responsibility
incumbent upon the Group. The Group has always been
committed to the resources conservation and emission reduction
and has replaced coal-fired boilers with clean energy boilers by
batches since 2015.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

“Integrity, Modesty and Foresight” are the core values of the
Group. The Group maintains a good cooperation relationship and
establishes a prospective cooperation model with its suppliers
and customers by persistently acting with integrity and with a
humble attitude.

The employees of the Group are principally engaged in feed
and animal nutrition segment, poultry and value meat segment,
global food segment and various supporting segments and
are responsible for relevant duties respectively in sales and
marketing management, product manufacturing, product
planning and marketing, administrative and human resources,
financial and operation analysis, audit and legal risk management
and control, material procurement and logistics management,
information technology technical support, product research and

development, quality and safety management and so on.
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The Group has been upholding the following principles when

selecting, training, employing and retaining talents:

1. recruiting and selecting individuals who are suitable for
the Company's corporate culture and job position based
on working plans and key performance indicators of the

position;

2. designing specific training courses and launching
corresponding training plans according to different
positions and ranks of employees to continuously enhance
employee’'s management and professional skills and to
provide a reservoir of outstanding talents for the Group;

3. designing and implementing different performance
appraisal systems and conducting suitable post adjustment
and job rotation based on different job natures to place
talents in suitable positions and optimise their performance;

4. determining employees’ remuneration levels based on their
experience and performance as well as the market salaries
and implementing performance bonus incentive programs
for employees in different positions and also selecting
important talents every year for appropriate reward.

There is no significant dispute between the Group and its
employees. The Group commits to build an effective and
efficient team and enable its employees to share the results of
its operation.

SUBSIDIARIES

A list of subsidiaries together with their places of operations
and incorporation and particulars of their issued share capital/
registered capital are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
and the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 112 to
268.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB91,852 thousand (2021: profit of approximately
RMB155,473 thousand) have been transferred to reserves. Other
movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company are
set out on page 239 of the annual report and note 27(d) to the
financial statements.

To reserve the resources for the Group's business development,

the Board decides not to distribute any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: no dividend).

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 116
to 117.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the

year are set out in note 27(c) to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata

basis to the existing shareholders.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
RMB279,000.
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Report of the Directors

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in fixed assets during the year are set out
in note 14 to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFT

Particulars of bank loans and overdrafts of the Group as at
31 December 2022 are set out in note 24 to the financial
statements.

LISTING OF SHARES

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 4 October 2007.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company (the “Directors” and each a
"Director”) during the year 2022 and up to the date of this report

were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. James Chun-Hsien Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Han Chia-Yin

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Han Chia-Yau

Mr. Chao Tien-Shin

Mr. Harn Jia-Chen

Mr. Han Jia-Hwan

Mr. Wei Anning

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Way Yung-Do

Mr. Chen Chih

Mr. Ting Yu-Shan

Mr. Hsia, Li-Yan
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company, whereas each of the non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company.

The term of appointment of each Director is subject to the
Articles of Association of the Company (the “Articles”) and/or
the Listing Rules and/or the laws of the Cayman Islands and may
be terminated by the Company or the Director pursuant to the
service contract or the letter of appointment (as the case may
be).

In accordance with article 108 of the Articles, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being,
or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the number
nearest to but not less than one third, shall retire from office
by rotation and, under the corporate governance code of the
Company, every Director, including those appointed for a specific
term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every 3 years. All retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, Mr. James Chun-Hsien Wei, Mr. Han Chia-Yin,
Mr. Ting Yu-Shan and Mr. Hsia, Li-Yan shall retire from office by
rotation at the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM.

All of the abovenamed Directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed
his independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the Company considers all the independent

non-executive Directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management

of the Group are set out in pages 23 to 35 of this annual report.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR
MANAGEMENT AND THE FIVE HIGHEST-
PAID INDIVIDUALS

The emoluments of Directors, senior management and the
five highest-paid individuals are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the

financial statements.
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as those disclosed in “Connected Transactions” of this
section and "Related Party Transactions” in note 29 to the
financial statement, none of the Directors or their connected
entity or their associates had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow

subsidiaries was a party during the year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE WITH
SUBSIDIARIES AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Save as those disclosed in “Connected Transactions” of this
section and "Related Party Transactions” in note 29 to the
financial statement, there was not any contract of significance
between the Company, or one of its subsidiary companies, and a
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the year.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 8.10(2)

As confirmed by each of the Directors, during the year ended
31 December 2022, none of them was engaged in or had any
interest in any business that competed or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the Company's business as

required to be disclosed under Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Company
during 2022 or subsisted at the end of 2022.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no
effective restricted share award scheme of the Company and
there were no shares granted but remained unvested under any

previous restricted share award scheme of the Company.
SHARE OPTION SCHEME

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no
effective share option scheme of the Company and no share
options of the Company were granted, exercised, expired,

lapsed, cancelled or outstanding.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ")) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing

Rules (“Model Code”), were as follows:

(A) INTERESTS IN THE COMPANY — LONG POSITIONS:

RERE UG
[EPN33 Hibfgs  fIEIAREZ BRITRA
B2/ BRTHABHE g EREE HERHEE @t ZBREA
Number of Approximate
Personal Other underlying % of issued
interest interest shares held share capital
Name of Directors/ Number of ordinary under equity of the
Chief Executive shares held derivatives Total Company
HITEE :
Executive Directors:
2EE 72,000 - - 72,000 0.007%
James Chun-Hsien Wei
BREA MWL) 382,000 200,000 - 582,000 0.057%
Han Chia-Yin (Note 1)
HHITEE :
Non-executive Directors:
BRE 344,000 - - 344,000 0.034%
Han Jia-Hwan
HAE (Wit2) 3,534,000 300,000 - 3,834,000 0.377%
Chao Tien-Shin (Note 2)
Ba 300,000 - - 300,000 0.030%
Chen Chih
K 355,000 - - 355,000 0.035%
Way Yung-Do
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Bi3E Notes:

1. BREAEWRAEEEERBIAN 1.
200,0008% A 1525

Mr. Han Chia-Yin is deemed to be interested in 200,000 shares held
by his spouse.

2. BRELXEWHGAEARBEERER 2. Mr. Chao Tien-Shin is deemed to be interested in 300,000 shares
1B £ [R5 5 #9300,0008% A (D #ES © jointly held by Mr. Chao and his spouse.
(B) RS VIR L 2 R4S — AT (B) INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS OF THE COMPANY
— LonNG PosITIONS:
Ll NG
BENT EER BETRAR
EENR 21 BEREME s BREDT
Approximate % of
Interests in  the relevant associated
Name of Name of associated Nature ordinary corporation’s issued
Directors corporations of interest shares held share capital
BRTF AREHEERDBR AR (HiZ1) BaEs 67,433 0.008%
Han Chia-Yau Great Wall Enterprise Co. Ltd. (Note 1) Beneficial owner
BRE Wit2) AKEBEERDERDA [P 3 12,444,845 1.391%
Chao Tien-Shin Great Wall Enterprise Co. Ltd. Interest of spouse
(Note 2)
BisE - Notes:
1. AR EBEERBERA R ([RKEKEH 1. Great Wall Enterprise Co. Ltd. (“Great Wall Enterprise”), a company
©E])  REBEMATIIEREEES incorporated in Taiwan and listed on Taiwan Stock Exchange
RS ETMHRR] - BARAKREE Corporation, is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company.
&R ER -
2. BRELAEHRAEBBERBIES 2. Mr. Chao Tien-Shin was deemed to be interested in the 12,444,845

WEREKERNDBERABAFN
12,444,845/ (& (D HEw= ©

KB (35M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

shares held by CTS Investment Corporation controlled by his spouse.
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Report of the Directors

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of
the Directors and chief executive and their associates had any
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
that was recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise

B e notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
W Iy o A 2 2 RE DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

REBE-Z -+ -_A=+—HILFEEM
B ARRSEEFERF] - HEEERE
BRARZHMBEERYIFRFERIET—HER
RELEA R R EREBRER DR ST E M
FEABRZ BN REFESMENEALTZ
— 5.

FYNTE %

R-BE_—_F+_A=+—8  ARAREE
# M ERE 1GPIE 33615 AFTF 2 Frie it LA
ZHEBAAT (RRARESHESTRABRIN
AR BN RABBEIRD  HEA fiER ROk R
R

OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2022 was the
Company or any of its parent companies, subsidiary undertakings
or its parent companies’ subsidiary undertakings a party to any
arrangement whose objects are, or one of whose objects is,
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions held
by the persons, other than a director or chief executive of the
Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company

pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

RARIRMDITE Long positions in shares of the Company:

£ RRitE RAEE BARDLL
Nature of Number of Approximate

Name interests shares %

Waverley Star Limited Enikn 375,899,946 36.99%
Beneficial interests

BB BERITAR Bagn 152,924,906 15.05%

Asia Nutrition Technologies Beneficial interests

Corporation
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A1 R REE BAEA
Nature of Number of Approximate
Name interests shares %
KRR (2R AR A bR [N £ 528,824,852 52.04%
Great Wall International (Holdings) Ltd. Interests of controlled corporation (Frzt1)
(Note 1)
REEHEERINERRA bR [N £ 528,824,852 52.04%
Great Wall Enterprise Co., Ltd. Interests of controlled corporation (Hizt1)
(Note 1)
Hansen, Inc. Eas 67,424,954 6.63%
Beneficial interests
BER EnfEn 50,978,000 5.02%
Sun Hui Ying Beneficial interests

FH5E1 © BE{DAWaverley Star Limited R 250 4 2 K i
NEIREEL © Waverley Star Limited &35/
EERMARE B RAKEIE (ZR) BRA A
MEEMB AR - mAKEBER () BR AR
BAREHBECERNERATNZENEA
A o RIEFEFREE KA - KB (2R A
[RA R RAREREERGBRAREIHES
M Waverley Star Limited & 2ol & & H A7
BENMARD 2 R A -

BREXHEEEN RZZE_—_F+=A
=+—HB BRAQFREERESTBAE (B
EREEN EXEERESTHRABRR
7~ RGO REFWER AR ] —80) I -
BELmALTMEARRE]  FEREARRG
AR R B IRIEF A KB IEPIE336

[RAB MRS

AT EEARARNR R KRR A AR
BEEREEEXVEFE 253D T AR
ERESSAB 2 ARINESE EE ¢

1. BERERERARENCEZESE

2. BEFEER/RARERECEZEEZNE
EEIF:

KB (35M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

Note 1: The shares were registered in the name of Waverley Star Limited and Asia
Nutrition Technologies Corporation, each of which was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Great Wall International (Holdings) Ltd., which, in turn, was a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Great Wall Enterprise Co., Ltd. Under the SFO,
both Great Wall International (Holdings) Ltd. and Great Wall Enterprise Co.,
Ltd. were deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Waverley Star
Limited and Asia Nutrition Technologies Corporation.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no person,
other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company
whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and chief
executive's interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures” above, had notified the Company of an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

The following Directors are directors/employees of a company
which had an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

1. Mr. Han Chia-Yin is a director of Great Wall Enterprise;

2. Mr. Han Chia-Yau is a director and the chairman of the

board of the directors of Great Wall Enterprise;



3. BERELRAKEMLEZEERE
BER

4. BREFERAKEMLEZEER R

5. TEUEEAARRAGCEZBIES
REHEECAFMEEGER -

B2 %)

FA - ANEEETI ETRAATREREA

THEITETHER

M

(2)

7 WER:

AR R REAE IR AR R B N
HER A B AN B B8 2 &) (R R IR
EERABEA) ([FRIMEE)

Marubeni Corporation ([AL4T] + KA F]
EREMB AR EERR) KA (R
B)ER AR ([AALFRE] - AAL ZH
BRE) RALALFEZMBAT (F AN
AREEA)

Better Me Precision Nutrition Limited
([Better Me (BVI)]) + BARAFIEEE
REAEFAN(ETRAEETH)
B0%XERA - MK BBERELEN
GEARRRBHNBEEAL &

KRR (E8)BRAE (RAKERR
CE-—EE2EMNBARFEN (TR
BIEE TH)30% AT ©
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Report of the Directors

Mr. Harn Jia-Chen is a director and the vice chairman of

Great Wall Enterprise;

Mr. Chao Tien-Shin is a director of Great Wall Enterprise;
and

Mr. Ting Yu-Shan is an independent director and the
chairman of the audit committee and the remuneration

committee of Great Wall Enterprise.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group carried out a number of connected

transactions with the following connected persons (as defined in

the Listing Rules), namely:

(1)

Great Wall Enterprise (being the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company) and its subsidiaries (being
associates of Great Wall Enterprise) excluding the Group
(the "Excluded Group”);

Marubeni Corporation (“Marubeni”, being a substantial
shareholder of a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) and ALAL(FF BB R A A (“Marubeni PRC”, being
a subsidiary of Marubeni) and subsidiaries of Marubeni PRC

(all being associates of Marubeni);

Better Me Precision Nutrition Limited (“Better Me (BVI)"),
being a 30%-controlled company (within the meaning of
the Listing Rules) held by Mr. Han Jia-Hwan (a director
of the Company), and hence an associate of Mr. Han Jia-

Hwan and a connected person of the Company; and
DLF-SH (being a 30%-controlled company (within the

meaning of the Listing Rules) held by a wholly-owned

subsidiary of Great Wall Enterprise).
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The Group conducted the following connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions (other than those exempted
from the annual reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules) during the year ended 31 December 2022:

(@) On 24 April 2020, the Company (for itself and on behalf of
other members of the Group) and DLF-SH (for itself and
on behalf of other members of DLF-SH and its subsidiaries
from time to time, the “DLF Group”) entered into the
master purchase agreement (the “"DLF Master Purchase
Agreement”) for a fixed duration of 3 years starting from
1 May 2020. The DLF Master Purchase Agreement
stipulates, in summary terms, that (among others) (i) the
Group agrees to purchase and DLF-SH Group agrees to
supply products (such as flour and wheat bran) on a non-
exclusive basis in accordance with contracts of purchase
to be entered into between the relevant members of the
Group (as the buyer) and the relevant members of the DLF
Group (as the supplier) from time to time during the said
duration under the DLF Master Purchase Agreement; (ii)
prices of the products shall be agreed on an arm'’s length
basis and on normal commercial terms and within the
range of fair price prevailing on the market of the same
or similar products in the PRC for the time being; and (iii)
prices for the products shall be paid by relevant members
of the Group after the delivery of the products by the
relevant members of the DLF Group in accordance with
the relevant contract of purchase made in respect of such
purchases. In addition to the pricing terms provided in the
DLF Master Purchase Agreement, the Group also adopted
a set of internal policies to determine the prices and terms
of the purchases contemplated thereunder, the details of
which, together with other information regarding the DLF
Master Purchase Agreement, are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 24 April 2020.
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Report of the Directors

During the year under review, the total value of products
purchased by the Group from the DLF Group under the DLF
Master Purchase Agreement amounts to approximately
RMB16,181 thousand. The Directors confirm that the
Group has followed the said pricing terms and policies

when determining the price and terms of those purchases.

On 26 April 2021, the Company (for itself and on behalf
of PRC members of the Group) and Marubeni PRC (for
itself and on behalf of members of the Marubeni PRC
Group) entered into the master purchase (renewal 2021)
agreement (“Marubeni Master Purchase (Renewal 2021)
Agreement”) for a fixed duration of 3 years starting from
1 January 2022. The Marubeni Master Purchase (Renewal
2021) Agreement stipulates, in summary terms, that
(among others) (i) the Group agrees to purchase and the
Marubeni PRC Group agrees to sell coated flour for food
processing on a non-exclusive basis pursuant to sales
contracts to be entered into between the relevant PRC
members of the Group (as the buyer) and the relevant
members of the Marubeni PRC Group (as the supplier)
from time to time under the said duration under the
Marubeni Master Purchase (Renewal 2021) Agreement; (ii)
prices of the products shall be agreed on an arm’s length
basis and shall be on normal commercial terms and within
the range of fair price of the same or similar products
provided by the member of the Marubeni PRC Group to
independent third parties in the PRC; and (iii) prices for
the products shall be paid by the relevant PRC member of
the Group in accordance with the relevant sales contract
made in respect of such purchase. In addition to the pricing
terms provided in the Marubeni Master Purchase (Renewal
2021) Agreement, the Group also adopted a set of internal
policies to determine the prices and terms of the purchases
contemplated thereunder, the details of which, together
with other information regarding the Marubeni Master
Purchase (Renewal 2021) Agreement, are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 26 April 2021.
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During the year under review, the total value of products
purchased by the Group from Marubeni PRC under the
Marubeni Master Purchase (Renewal 2021) Agreement
amounts to approximately RMB2,085 thousand. The
Directors confirm that the Group has followed the said
pricing terms and policies when determining the price and

terms of those purchases.

On 26 April 2021, the Company (for itself and on behalf of
other members of the Group) and Marubeni entered into
the master supply (renewal 2021) agreement (“Marubeni
Master Supply (Renewal 2021) Agreement”) for a fixed
duration of 3 years starting from 1 January 2022. The
Marubeni Master Supply (Renewal 2021) Agreement
stipulates, in summary terms, that (among others) (i)
Marubeni agrees to purchase and the Group agrees to sell
meat related products as set out in the written purchase
order placed by Marubeni in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Marubeni Master Supply (Renewal
2021) Agreement; (ii) prices of the products shall be agreed
by reference to the cost of production for the products
involved and using the same price determination basis as
that adopted by the relevant member of the Group from
time to time for sale of the same or similar products to
its other customers who are independent third parties;
and (iii) prices for the products shall be paid by Marubeni,
upon acceptance of the products tendered in conformity
with the purchase order placed by Marubeni, within the
period and manner as laid down in the said purchase order.
In addition to the pricing terms provided in the Marubeni
Master Supply (Renewal 2021) Agreement, the Group also
adopted a set of internal policies to determine the prices
and terms of the purchases contemplated thereunder, the
details of which, together with other information regarding
the Marubeni Master Supply (Renewal 2021) Agreement,
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 26 April
2021.
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Report of the Directors

During the year under review, the total value of products
sold by the Group to Marubeni under the Marubeni
Master Supply (Renewal 2021) Agreement amounts to
approximately RMB91,956 thousand. The Directors confirm
that the Group has followed the said pricing terms and
policies when determining the price and terms of those
sales.

On 27 April 2020, the Company (for itself and on behalf of
other members of the Group) and Great Wall Enterprise
(for itself and on behalf of other members of the Excluded
Group) entered into the master purchase agreement
("GWE Master Purchase Agreement”) for a fixed duration
of 2.5 years starting from 1 July 2020. The GWE Master
Purchase Agreement stipulates, in summary terms, that
(among others) (i) the Group agrees to purchase and the
Excluded Group agrees to supply products (such as aquatic
animal feeds) on a non-exclusive basis in accordance with
contracts of purchase to be entered into between the
relevant members of the Group (as the buyer) and the
relevant members of the Excluded Group (as the supplier)
from time to time during the said duration under the GWE
Master Purchase Agreement; (ii) prices of the products
shall be agreed on an arms’ length basis and on normal
commercial terms, and within the range of fair price
prevailing on the relevant market of the same or similar
products for the time being; and (iii) prices for the products
shall be paid by relevant members of the Group after the
delivery of the products by the relevant members of the
Excluded Group in accordance with the relevant contract
of purchase made in respect of such purchases. In addition
to the pricing terms provided in the GWE Master Purchase
Agreement, the Group also adopted a set of internal
policies to determine the prices and terms of the purchases
contemplated thereunder, the details of which, together
with other information regarding the GWE Master Purchase
Agreement, are set out in the Company’s announcement
and circular dated 27 April 2020 and 12 June 2020

respectively.
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As the Group disposed of its equity interest in a subsidiary
operating in the Southeast Asian feed business in the
fourth quarter of 2021, therefore, during the year under
review, the Group did not purchase any related products
from the Excluded Group under the GWE Master Purchase
Agreement.

On 6 August 2020, the Company (for itself and on behalf of
other member companies of the Group) and Better Me (BVI)
(for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries from time to time,
the “Better Me Group”) entered into the master supply
agreement (the “BM Master Supply Agreement”) for a
fixed duration of 2 years starting from 1 September 2020.
The BM Master Supply Agreement stipulates, in summary
terms, that (among others) (i) relevant member companies
of the Group shall supply and relevant member companies
of Better Me Group shall purchase processed chicken
meat products processed, manufactured, produced, sold
or wholesaled by the relevant member companies of the
Group, and the relevant member companies of the Group
and the relevant member companies of Better Me Group
shall undergo transactions from time to time during the
said duration in accordance with the supply contracts
entered into under the terms of the BM Master Supply
Agreement; (i) prices of the products shall be determined
on arms’ length basis which will be in accordance with the
production costs of the products involved, and the pricing
benchmark which shall allow for a certain level of profit
margin, and on normal commercial terms; and (iii) prices
for the products shall be paid by relevant members of the
Better Me Group upon receipt of the products supplied
in accordance with the supply contract within the period
specified therein. In addition to the pricing terms provided
in the BM Master Supply Agreement, the Group also
adopted a set of internal policies to determine the prices
and terms of the sales contemplated thereunder, the
details of which, together with other information regarding
the BM Master Supply Agreement, are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 6 August 2020.
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Report of the Directors

On 12 August 2022, the Company (for itself and on behalf
of other member companies of the Group) and Better Me
(BVI) (for itself and on behalf of its member companies
from time to time, the “Better Me Group”) entered into the
master supply (2022 renewal) agreement (the “BM Master
Supply (2022 Renewal) Agreement”) for a fixed duration
of 2 years and 4 months starting from 1 September
2022. The BM Master Supply (2022 Renewal) Agreement
stipulates, in summary terms, that (among others) (i)
relevant member companies of the Group shall supply and
the relevant member companies of Better Me Group shall
purchase processed chicken meat products processed,
manufactured, produced, sold or wholesaled by the
relevant member companies of the Group and the relevant
member companies of the Group and the relevant member
companies of Better Me Group shall undergo transactions
from time to time during the said duration in accordance
with the supply contracts entered into under the terms
of the BM Master Supply (2022 Renewal) Agreement; (ii)
prices of the products shall be determined on arms’ length
basis which will be in accordance with the production costs
of the products involved, with a pricing benchmark that
allows a certain level of profit margin, and shall comply with
normal commercial terms; and (iii) upon receipt of products
supplied in accordance with the supply contracts issued by
the relevant member companies of Better Me Group, the
relevant member companies of Better Me Group shall pay
the purchase price of those products in the manner listed
in the above-mentioned supply contracts within the period
specified therein. In addition to the pricing terms provided
in the BM Master Supply (2022 Renewal) Agreement, the
Group also adopted a set of internal policies to determine
the prices and terms of the sales contemplated thereunder,
the details of which, together with other information
regarding the BM Master Supply (2022 Renewal)
Agreement, are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 12 August 2022.
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During the year under review, the total value of products
sold by the Group to Better Me Group under the BM
Master Supply Agreement and BM Master Supply
(2022 Renewal) Agreement amounts to approximately
RMB6,880 thousand. The Directors confirm that the Group
has followed the said pricing terms and policies when

determining the price and terms of those sales.

On 9 August 2021, the Company (for itself and on behalf
of other members of the Group) and Great Wall Enterprise
(for itself and on behalf of other members of the Excluded
Group) entered into the master (renewal) purchase
agreement (“GWE Master Purchase (Renewal 2021)
Agreement”) for a fixed duration of 3 years starting from 1
January 2022. The GWE Master Purchase (Renewal 2021)
Agreement stipulates, in summary terms, that (among
others) (i) the Group shall purchase and the Excluded Group
shall sell products (namely (i) coated flour and (i) fermented
soybean meal) on a non-exclusive basis in accordance with
contracts for sale and purchase of products to be entered
into between the relevant members of the Group (as the
buyer) and the relevant members of the Excluded Group (as
the supplier) from time to time during the said duration; (ii)
prices of the products shall be agreed on an arm’s length
basis and shall be on normal commercial terms and shall be
within the range of fair price prevailing on the market of the
same or similar products in the PRC; and (iii) prices for the
products shall be paid by the relevant member of the Group
within 60 days after receiving the relevant invoice(s). In
addition to the pricing terms provided in the GWE Master
Purchase (Renewal 2021) Agreement, the Group also
adopted a set of internal policies to determine the prices
and terms of the purchases contemplated thereunder, the
details of which, together with other information regarding
the GWE Master Purchase (Renewal 2021) Agreement, are
set out in the Company’s announcement and circular dated
9 August 2021 and 24 September 2021 respectively.
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Report of the Directors

During the year under review, the total value of products
purchased by the Group from Great Wall Enterprise under
the GWE Master Purchase (Renewal 2021) Agreement
amounts to approximately RMB24,091 thousand. The
Directors confirm that the Group has followed the said
pricing terms and policies when determining the price and
terms of those purchases.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other connected
transactions which require disclosure in the annual report in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules during the year.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
confirmed that the above-mentioned continuing connected
transactions were entered into: (i) in the ordinary and usual
course of the Group's business; (ii) either on normal commercial
terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than
those available to or from independent third parties; and (iii)
in accordance with the terms of the respective agreements
governing such transactions on terms that were fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the

Company as a whole.
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The auditor of the Company has reviewed the above-mentioned
continuing connected transactions pursuant to rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules and advised the Board in writing with a copy
provided to the Stock Exchange that nothing has come to its
attention that causes it to believe that such transactions: (i) have
not been approved by the Board; (ii) were not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing polices of the Group
where the transactions involve the provisions of goods or services
by the Group; (iii) were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such

transactions; and (iv) have exceeded the cap set by the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year of 2022, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s

listed securities.
MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers in 2022 and 2021 accounted for less than 30% of the
total sales of the Group. The aggregate purchases attributable to
the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30%
of total purchases for both years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of
the Company'’s issued shares) had any interest in the five largest

customers or suppliers.
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Report of the Directors

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the Group is set up by its human
resources department and seeks to provide remuneration
packages on the basis of the merit, qualifications and

competence of the employees.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of
the Company will be reviewed by the Remuneration Committee,
having regard to factors including the Group’s operating results,
responsibilities required of the Directors and senior management

and comparable market information.
SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company as at the latest practicable date prior to the publication
of this annual report (i.e. 20 April 2023), the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than service contracts with the Directors
or full-time employees of the Company, by which a person
undertakes the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of any business of the Company was entered
into or in force during 2022.
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KB (35M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Company's Articles of Association, every Director
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or
may incur or sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty or supposed duty
in their respective offices except such (if any) as they shall incur
or sustain through their own fraud or dishonesty. Such provisions
were in force during 2022 and remained in force as of the date of

this report.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out in page 272 of the

annual report.

AUDITORS

KPMG as the Company’s auditors, will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as the auditors of the

Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
James Chun-Hsien Wei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 10 March 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent auditor’s report
to the shareholders of DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
DaChan Food (Asia) Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
("the Group”) set out on pages 112 to 268, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting

policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2022 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs"”) issued by International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code"”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Assessing potential impairment of property, plant and equipment

EAMGREMIERERM 14X E196 BT Refer to Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements and

R o the accounting policies on page 196.

BRETEE KT AT R I 5% The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in
Ebrc] our audit

RZZBZZF+=Z BMBTEDE - BE As at 31 December 2022, Our audit procedures to assess

A=+—H &% BABERRENETE the Group held property, impairment of property, plant and

ERFEREHBEAR FEENATER: plant and equipment equipment included the following:

#1,420,335,0007C with a carrying value of

HY%E - BE&KF& S E R E R RMB1,420,335,000 which e evaluating management’s

B ERARESEE Y - BB &EE was used in the Group's processes and procedures for

HZRA - IR B E PN R #1872 chicken meat, processed the identification of indicators

MRS - K2R food and feed production of impairment of property, plant

EEENYE -

A E IR ERAIE

operations.

The Group's property, plant

and equipment;

e evaluating management’s

W K& B R CEABM LS and equipment is allocated identification of CGUs and
ZHBERSESE EEEEHRESEE to relevant cash generating the allocation of assets to
B([ReELE BN AREEE units (“CGUs") for the each CGU and management’s
fizl) - AP AR RBEERIGTE purpose of assessing if methodology adopted in the
HSHREALRA B3R E R RALIAIR there is any impairment at preparation of the discounted
fAlBUE ° &= T8 RIFTER A the end of the reporting cash flow forecasts with
opala v period. reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting
EEERANZ Management considered standards;
T+ H that there were indicators
=+t BEEY BREEFIERN of impairment of property, ® evaluating the key assumptions
¥ BEREZER W TEEELLE plant and equipment adopted by management in their
EBEFR - ARAET B ESEEER at 31 December 2022 preparation of the discounted

HeELBNIFE KRR ER T EIE because certain CGUs cash flow forecasts, including
BB ALEREE T KBRBRER have sustained losses and, revenue growth rates and profit
REAREBERE & AMEEREL therefore, management margin ratios, by comparing
BB AN B (B REBIRIRENE assessed the recoverable with the financial budgets which
BEFHEREE FERRANEE amounts of these CGUS at were approved by the directors,
g ME%RERe (EEACE PN the higher of its fair value our understanding, experience

EE B AU [E
T

RERFBEE)

less costs of disposal and

its value in use.

and knowledge of the Group's
businesses and future business

plans;
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The Key Audit Matter

Value in use calculations
are based on discounted

cash flow forecasts.

The preparation of
discounted cash flow
forecasts involves the
exercise of significant
management judgement,
in particular in forecasting
revenue growth rates and
profit margin ratios and in
determining appropriate

discount rates.

We identified assessing
impairment of property,
plant and equipment as a
key audit matter because
of the inherent uncertainty
involved in forecasting
future cash flows, in
particular in respect of
revenue growth rates,
profit margin ratios, and
the discount rates applied,
which could be subject to

potential management bias.

How the matter was addressed in

our audit

comparing revenue, cost of
sales and other operating
expenses included in discounted
cash flow forecasts prepared
in the prior year with the
current year's performance to
assess the accuracy of the prior
year's forecasts and making
enquiries of management as to
the reasons for any significant
variations identified and whether
these had been considered in

current year's forecasts;

engaging our internal valuation
specialists to evaluate the
discount rates applied in the
discounted cash flow forecasts
by comparison with other

companies in the same industry;

performing sensitivity analyses
of the key assumptions adopted
in the discounted cash flow
forecasts, including the revenue
growth rates, profit margin
ratios, and the discount rates
and assessing the impact of
changes in the key assumptions
to the conclusions reached and
whether there are any indicators

of management bias; and
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The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in

our audit

e considering the disclosures
in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the
impairment assessment,
including key sensitivities, with
reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting

standards.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to

be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. WWe have nothing to report in this

regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken

on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We

remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is Yeung Ka Chun.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

10 March 2023
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mEBEER
Consolidated Income Statement

HE_ZT-_—F+-_A=t—RHIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
(BRBEIEHIN - UARBFTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

MIsE —E-CF —E-—fF
Note 2022 2021
ARET T AREFT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
BHERE Continuing operations
KA Turnover 4 6,195,175 6,530,905
HEKAK Cost of sales (5,514,269) (5,869,121)
EF Gross profit 680,906 661,784
HAbag A Other operating income 46,463 16,708
Hib)F (B518), Was Other net (loss)/gain (5,921) 12,059
D EEAAR Distribution costs (307,598) (301,704)
TR Administrative expenses (264,290) (240,237)
BT Profit from operations 149,560 148,610
BRI Finance costs 6(a) (11,278) (12,575)
LR AR A REE Share of losses of equity-
accounted investees (1,010) (1,529)
KR AR A Profit before taxation 137,272 134,506
Frisat Income tax (14,792) (9,909)
B TS Profit from continuing operations 122,480 124,597
HRIERE Discontinued operation
B EsE R BRELR) Profit from discontinued
operation, net of tax 13 - 75,405
FREF Profit for the year 122,480 200,002
THIA LA : Attributable to:
ZN/NG i S Equity shareholders of the
Company 91,852 155,473
FEIE AR RS Non-controlling interests 30,628 44,529
FREF Profit for the year 122,480 200,002
BREF Earnings per share
—EARREE - Basic and diluted 11 RMBO0.0904 RMB0.1530
AEK#0.09047t AR¥0.15307T
BREF - FELE Earnings per share-continuing
operations
— BEARTEE — Basic and diluted 11 RMBO0.0904 RMB0.0893
AR¥0.09047t AK®0.08937T
51198 £268HE KMt 5 R SRR M4 K The notes on pages 119 to 268 form part of these financial

2 o statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=1+—RALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
(RBEIEHIN - UARBFTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

FisE —E-CF =T
Note 2022 2021
ARMTT AREETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
F A=A Profit for the year 122,480 200,002
FREMEEKE Other comprehensive income
for the year
HigEasHoEEEn v HE ¢ ltem that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
HMEEH ZR Exchange differences on translation 10 (17,026) 42,766
FREMEEKE Other comprehensive income
for the year (17,026) 42,766
FRAZHEKNEEEE Total comprehensive income
for the year 105,454 242,768
THALHES - Attributable to:
/NG 3z Equity shareholders of the Company 73,781 158,061
FEIERR R RS Non-controlling interests 31,673 84,707
FARHEKREEE Total comprehensive income
for the year 105,454 242,768

1198 £ 2688 A M5t 7= AR 81 %5 3R 2k A 4HAK The notes on pages 119 to 268 form part of these financial
£y o statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

WZE-_—F+=-A=+—H
At 31 December 2022
(BREHEBI - RARETFITZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Pt ft -t 23 B
Note 2022 2021
ARET T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
W - BB NERE Property, plant and equipment 14 1,240,947 1,019,618
b A Land use rights 14 125,499 139,841
WEEEHE Investment property 14 53,889 56,381
RS ARSI A R i Interests in equity-accounted investees 16 68,786 69,796
HEheah&EE Other financial assets 1,948 1,948
BB IEEE Deferred tax assets 26(c) 6,071 4,274
A Y o] K ER A TE Long-term tax recoverable 20 112,497 139,778
HiEmEEE Other non-current assets 59,598 31,734
1,669,235 1,463,370
MENEE Current assets
rE Inventories 17 671,019 608,153
EYEE Biological assets 18 149,077 143,647
FEUE 5 8RR Trade receivables 19 239,110 213,087
o fth IR IE R TR 50E Other receivables and prepayments 20 310,562 387,945
ReRFSEEBY Cash and cash equivalents 21 532,274 625,059
1,902,042 1,977,891
nEBEE Current liabilities
FERTE 5 8RR Trade payables 22 472,025 397,655
HAbERFRIE Other payables 23 328,568 293,094
EHEE Contract liabilities 20,756 26,195
FFEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 24 107,448 133,640
HEalE Lease liabilities 25 2,001 3,387
FEATETISEE Income tax payable 26(a) 9,928 10,215
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 940,726 864,186
/ﬁ@]ﬁ%gﬁ _____________ Net current assets 961,316 1,113,705
EELERABDAERE Total assets less current liabilities 2,630,551 2,577,075

#
©
by

268 B K E R AR B IR AV AEMK

statements.

KB (32M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

The notes on pages 119 to 268 form part of these financial
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RZZE_—F+=-A=+—8H

At 31 December 2022

(BB HEERIN - UARETTZS)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

BT —EC-CF —E_—%F
Note 2022 2021
ARET T AREETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EREERE Non-current liabilities
FATEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 24 269,792 273,852
HEAE Lease liabilities 25 29,716 30,579
FERIEEFE Deferred tax liabilities 26(c) 7,936 3,097
307,444 307,528
EEFE Net assets 2,323,107 2,269,547
B Capital and reserves
A& Share capital 27(c) 97,920 97,920
G Reserves 27(d) 944,706 949,624
REB A Retained profits 1,028,770 950,071
RARRRELEREE Total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company 2,071,396 1,997,615
IR A Non-controlling interests 251,711 271,932
EmEE Total equity 2,323,107 2,269,547

REMZBEGN T _=F=F+B#ERZE Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

FIEE o 10 March 2023.
2RE BXRE
Wei, Chun-hsien Han Chia-Yin
FE HITEE
Chairman Executive director

1198 £ 2688 A M5t 7= AR 81 %5 3R 2k A 4HAK The notes on pages 119 to 268 form part of these financial
£y o statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BE-Z__F1+_A=t—HIL5E
For the year ended 31 December 2022
(BREHEBI - RARETFITZ5)
(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

ROFRRERL
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

R&  BOEE  AREE  fREE  EXBE  8REA At FEREE  BREE

Non-
Share Share Merger ~ Statutory  Translation Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserves reserve profits Total interests equity
e Chanle)  (Wamdl)  (hssanioli) (szaniali)  (sE2zid)iiv)
Note  (note27(c)) (note 27(d)(il) (note 27(d)i)) (note 27(d)fiil) (note 27(d)(iv)
RZZZ—FF-F  Balanceat 31 December 2021
=t-Bfis 97,920 583,596 396,064 128,966 (159,002) 950,01 1,997,615 271932 2,269,541
R Profit for the year - - - - - 91,852 91,852 30,628 122,480
Hp2aks Other comprehensive income 10 - - - - (18,071) - (18,071) 1,045 (17,026)
ERE2ARELE  Tota comprehensive income
for the year - - - - (18,071) 91,852 73,781 31,673 105,454
FERERTE Capital contributon from non-
controlling interests - - - - - - - (5,032) (5,032)
FHBRFLSRE  Proftdistributions to minory
{ELRHENR shareholders of subsidiaries 27) - - - - - - - (46,362) (46,862)
ek Statutory reserves - - - 13,153 - (13,153) - - -
RIZZZFF-F  Balanceat 31 December 2022
=t-BHEH 97,020 583,59 396,064 wny (707 108770 2,071,396 BN 233107

F1198 £268BE MM AR #EIRFK A HEK The notes on pages 119 to 268 form part of these financial
& o statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BE_T__F+-_A=+—HItFE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
(BBEEBE - UARBF L)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

FAFRRIERL
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
R ROEE  akBR  ARBE  BREE  2REA B HiRER  ERBE
Non-
Share Share Merger Statutory ~ Translation Retained controlling Total
capital premium eserve 1EServes Teserve profits Total nterests equity
W OEe)  Ofknn)  GErn) (R ()
Note (note 27(c)l  (note 27(a)i)  (note 27l (note 27(dlfiil)  (note 27(d)iv)
RIZZFFF-F  Balanceat 31 December 2020
=Bk 97920 583,59 396,064 126,376 (161,590) 799,050 1,841,416 430887 2,212,303
R Profit for the year - - - - - 165473 155,473 44529 200,002
bt ey Other comprehensive income 10 - - = = 2588 = 2588 40,178 42766
ER2ANEESE  Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - 2588 165473 158,061 84,107 242,768
FrRERTE Capital contribution from non-
controling interests - - - (1,862 = = (1,862 1862 -
HHBRALERE  Proftdistributions to minoity
fELRAENR shareholders of subsidiaries 27b) - - - - - - - (44,158) (44,158)
iy 1] Statutory reserves - - = 445) = 4452) = = =
e Disposal of non-controling interest - - - - - - - o388 (201,366)
RZE-—#+-F  Balanceat31 December 2021
=T-BhER 97920 583,59 396,064 128,966 (159,002) 950,071 1,997,615 271932 2,269,547

F1198 £268 B MM AR IR FKAHEK The notes on pages 119 to 268 form part of these financial

B o statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE_ZT-_—F+-_A=t—RHIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
(BRBEIEHIN - UARBFTZ5)

118

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

B aE ant- bt S —T -
Note 2022 2021
AR¥T T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BT Operating activities
KETHMEBES Cash generated from operations 21(b) 353,201 258,083
B FTSHE Income tax paid 26(a) (12,037) (21,564)
RETEMBRSTRE Net cash generated from operating
activities 341,164 236,519
RETH Investing activities
B U AILE Interest received 13,723 14,960
BEME  BE RERENR Payment for purchases of property,
plant and equipment (375,213) (206,458)
HEME - BENRESHE  Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 13,762 21,469
HE R 2T Disposal of discontinued operation,

(BB L ERES) net of cash disposed of 13(c) - 25,326
RETBMAREFRE Net cash used in investing activities (347,728) (144,703)
A& EE Financing activities
BENEEcERHD Capital element of lease rentals paid (3,901) (9,269)
BfRHEe 2 FEE D Interest element of lease rentals paid 14 (1,562) (5,092)
ERFE Interest paid (9,716) (16,592)
ERRE Dividends paid (46,862) (44,158)
FTIGIRTTE RS 508 Proceeds from new bank loans 698,776 980,814
BERE Repayment of borrowings (719,423) (1,006,607)
KE/(i ~1F) M B A B FEHER% Capital contributions from/(payment)

A AREE to non-controlling equity owners of

subsidiaries (5,032) -
REERpAR=®M  Netcashusedinfinancingactivitios =~ | (67.720) | {100,904}
RERBEEBYRFE Net decrease in cash and cash

equivalents (94,284) (9,088)
RENZBEERREESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the

beginning of the year 625,059 631,370
ERSEHTE Effect of foreign exchange rate

changes 1,499 2,777
RERZHERBESZEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the end

of the year 21 532,274 625,059
F1198 £ 2688 A M5t & AR 75 3R 2k K 4H A The notes on pages 119 to 268 form part of these financial
B o statements.

KB (32M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(RS EHEBI - UARKETITZ7)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

GENERAL INFORMATION

DaChan Food (Asia) Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 18 May 2007 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman lIslands. The Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group” and
individually as the “Group entity”) primarily is involved in
the manufacturing and trading of livestock feeds, poultry

and chilled meat and processed food.

The Company publicly offered shares on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 4 October
2007.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB")
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out

below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHEMBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)
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KB (32M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (continued)

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and
the Company. Note 2(e) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries and the Group’s interest in

associates and joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at
their fair value as explained in the accounting policies

set out below:

derivative financial instruments are measured at

fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BBHEBI - UARETT25)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(c)

(@)

Functional and presentation currency

I[tems included in the financial statements of each
entity in the Group are measured using the currency
that best reflects the economic substance of the
underlying events and circumstances relevant to
that entity (“functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") (“presentation currency”), which is different
from the functional currency of the Company. The
Company's functional currency is United Stated
dollars (“USD"). The functional currency of those
subsidiaries in People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
and Vietnam is RMB and Vietnamese Dong
respectively. As its principal subsidiaries are located
in PRC, the directors of the Company consider
that it is appropriate to present the consolidated
financial statements in RMB. All financial information
presented in RMB has been rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimates are revised and in any future

periods affected.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHEMBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)
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KB (32M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(d)

(e)

Use of estimates and judgements (continued)

Judgements made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation

uncertainty are disclosed in note 31.

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendments to
IFRSs to these financial statements for the current

accounting period:

° Amendments to IAS 16, Property, plant and

equipment: Proceeds before intended use

o Amendment to IAS 37, Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets: Onerous

contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract

None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been

prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current

accounting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of consolidation

@

Business combinations

The Group accounts for business combinations
using the acquisition method when control is
transferred to the Group (see note 3(a)(ii)). The
consideration transferred in the acquisition is
generally measured at fair value, as are the
identifiable net assets acquired. Any goodwill
that arises is tested annually for impairment.
Any gain on a bargain purchase is recognised
in income statement immediately. Transaction
costs are expensed as incurred, except if related

to the issue of debt or equity securities.

The consideration transferred does not include
amounts related to the settlement of pre-
existing relationships. Such amounts are

generally recognised in income statement.

Any contingent consideration payable is
measured at fair value at the acquisition date.
If the contingent consideration is classified as
equity, then it is not remeasured and settlement
is accounted for within equity. Otherwise,
subsequent changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration are recognised in

income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHEMBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)
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KB (32M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

@

(i)

Business combinations

If share-based payment awards (replacement
awards) are required to be exchanged for
awards held by the acquiree’'s employees
(acquiree’s awards), then all or a portion of the
amount of the acquirer’s replacement awards
is included in measuring the consideration
transferred in the business combination. This
determination is based on the market-based
measure of the replacement awards compared
with the market-based measure of the
acquiree’s awards and the extent to which the
replacement awards relate to pre-combination

service.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held

by the Group and other parties) are considered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)

(ii)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-Group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-Group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-Group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of

impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which
would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the
Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the

subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

— &= — F 53R Annual Report 2022

125




126

BA RS AR MY

Notes to the Financial Statements

(B BB

IARMETTE5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

3 EEEEHBOR (8)

(a) FRfEEYE (M)

(i)

KB (32M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

g 23 7 R Ff R et ()

FEIER R R AR & AR
RZERANZS) BIRAK
NEIESFA ARG E
g o ANERERE 2 IR
s INReERRIFA R
ERERTIEAR R B IR
fem MR A ZRAE
B2 aNsERaaLem
W BB DR - FHE
R FA AMRE 2 ER R
MZERE AFREZEME
HMEETRFREZLER
BRI MR ERE
ARKRINEERAIE

(oSS RIE NG P 3
BT GHIRKITGIE -
AERBRER S AR - TR
IR AR R R IR AR
BB ELRAE - UR
AR ED - TSR
BB R T EERES -

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)

(i)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated income statement and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from holders of non-controlling interests and
other contractual obligations towards these
holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position
in accordance with notes 3(l) or (m) depending
on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made

to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset
(see note 3(a)(iv)) or, when appropriate, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an

associate or joint venture (see note 3(a(iii)).

In the Company's statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated
at cost less impairment losses (see note 3(f)
(i), unless the investment is classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal Group that is
classified as held for sale).

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group
or Company has significant influence, but not
control or joint control, over its management,
including participation in the financial and

operating policy decisions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

(iii)  Associates and joint ventures (continued)

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby
the Group or Company and other parties
contractually agree to share control of the
arrangement, and have rights to the net assets

of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture
is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method, unless
it is classified as held for sale (or included in
a disposal Group that is classified as held for
sale). Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any
excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee's identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any).
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post acquisition change in the Group's share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see note 3(f)
(ii)). At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether there is any objective evidence that
the investment is impaired. Any acquisition-
date excess over cost, the Group's share of
the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, whereas the Group's share of the
post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

(iii)  Associates and joint ventures (continued)

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate or the joint venture, the
Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition
of further losses is discontinued except to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose,
the Group's interest is the carrying amount
of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group's net

investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint venture are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa,
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under

the equity method.
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KB (32M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

(iii)  Associates and joint ventures (continued)

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to
have significant influence over an associate or
joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former investee at the date
when significant influence or joint control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition

of a financial asset (see note 3(a)(iv)).

In the Company's statement of financial
position, investments in associates and joint
venture are stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 3(f)(ii)), unless classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal Group
that is classified as held for sale).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

3 EEFFEUR () 3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(a) HREHEYE ) (a) Basis of consolidation (continued)
(iv) FHRAZHFII MR E (iv)  Other investments in equity securities

ARE B R AR R AR E
RENSTBR (RMBA
A BEARRAEERRZ

LEBRINT

The Group's and the Company’s policies for
investments in equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint

ventures, are as follows:

BABHFIRENANE B G

BEZIREZ AR - %%
LEVIRIE AR BENER
AR HRATIER AR

Investments in equity securities are recognised
on the date the Group commits to purchase the
investment. The investments are initially stated
at fair value plus directly attributable transaction

R EEFTABZNRER costs, except for those investments measured
Hh - ERX GRS EESTAE at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) for
BB - BEAASE (g which transaction costs are recognised directly
ETEMIAEARBENRE in profit or loss. For an explanation of how
- 2R MEES0(9) o Ut the Group determines fair value of financial
=3 ﬁﬁﬁ% BIEATAHRAA instruments, see note 30(g). These investments

HARME ° are subsequently accounted for as follows,

depending on their classification.
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

(iv)  Other investments in equity securities (continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVPL unless the equity investment is not held
for trading purposes and on initial recognition of
the investment the Group makes an irrevocable
election to designate the investment at FVOCI
(non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only
be made if the investment meets the definition
of equity from the issuer’'s perspective.
Where such an election is made, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income
remains in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
until the investment is disposed of. At the time
of disposal, the amount accumulated in the
fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to retained earnings. It is not recycled through
profit or loss. Dividends from an investment
in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised

in profit or loss as other income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b)

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses (see note 3(f)(ii):

- right-of-use assets arising from leases over
freehold or leasehold properties where the
Group is not the registered owner of the

property interest; and

- items of plant and equipment, including right-
of-use assets arising from leases of underlying

plant and equipment (see note 3(c)).

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-

constructed assets includes the following:

the cost of materials and direct labour;

- any other costs directly attributable to bringing
the assets to a working condition for their

intended use;

- when the Group has an obligation to remove
the asset or restore the site, an estimate of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items
and restoring the site on which they are located;

and capitalised borrowing costs (see note 3(v)).

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment (calculated as the difference
between the net proceeds from disposal and the
carrying amount of the item) is recognised in profit

and loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is
probable that the future economic benefits associated

with the expenditure will flow to the Group.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual values, if any, using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives as

follows:

- Land use rights are depreciated over the unexpired term of lease.

= BF

- Buildings

- HEBF

- Leasehold building
- NG

- Plant and machinery
- Bt - HBERRE

- Furniture, fittings and equipment
- e

— Motor vehicles

- Hib b AEEE

- Other right-of-use assets
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2-254F

2 — 25 years
1-16%F
1-15years
10-124F
10-12 years
5-64F

b5 -6 years
4-55F

4 -5 years
1-3%F

1 -3 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and

its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b)

(c)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction in progress represents office buildings,
various infrastructure projects under construction and
equipment pending installation, and is measured at
cost less impairment losses (see note 3(f)(ii)). Cost
comprises direct costs of construction and the initial
estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the site on which
it is located during the periods of construction and
installation. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and
the construction in progress is transferred to property,
plant and equipment when the asset is substantially
ready for its intended use, notwithstanding any delays
in the issue of the relevant commissioning certificates

by the relevant authorities.

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction
in progress until it is completed and ready for its

intended use.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. Control
is conveyed where the customer has both the right
to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that

use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

Leased assets (continued)

@

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease components
and non-lease components, the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single

lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets which, for the Group are
primarily office furniture. When the Group
enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense
on a systematic basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c) Leased assets (continued)

@)

As a lessee (continued) (continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over the
lease term, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost
and interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are not included in the measurement of the
lease liability and hence are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset
or to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment

losses (see note 3(b)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

Leased assets (continued)

@

As a lessee (continued) (continued)

The initial fair value of refundable rental deposits
is accounted for separately from the right-of-use
assets in accordance with the accounting policy
applicable to investments in debt securities
carried at amortised cost (see notes 3(a)(iv), 3(s)
(i) and 3(f)(i)). Any difference between the initial
fair value and the nominal value of the deposits
is accounted for as additional lease payments
made and is included in the cost of right-of-use

assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there is a
change in the Group’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the Group will
be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to

Zero.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c) Leased assets (continued)

@)

As a lessee (continued) (continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease
or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract
(“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of
the modification. The only exceptions are any
rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and
met the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of
IFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group has
taken advantage of the practical expedient not
to assess whether the rent concessions are
lease modifications, and recognised the change
in consideration as negative variable lease
payments in profit or loss in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the rent

concessions occurred.

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term lease
liabilities is determined as the present value of
contractual payments that are due to be settled

within twelve months after the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

Leased assets (continued)

(i)  As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines
at lease inception whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease. A lease
is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is

classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component
on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
The rental income from operating leases is

recognised in accordance with note 3(s)(iv).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the
sub-leases are classified as a finance lease or as
an operating lease with reference to the right-
of-use asset arising from the head lease. If the
head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Group applies the exemption described in note
3(c)(i), then the Group classifies the sub-lease as

an operating lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

(e)

Land use rights

The purchase costs of land use rights are amortised
on a straight-line basis over the period of land
use rights. Land use rights are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see
note 3(f)(ii).

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use and property that is being constructed or

developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initially
recognition, investment properties are at cost less

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)  Credit losses and impairment of assets

@

Credit losses from trade and other receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs) on trade and
other receivables. Equity securities measured at

FVPL are not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all expected cash shortfalls
(i.e. the difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to

receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the

effect of discounting is material:

- trade and other receivables and contract
assets: effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition or an approximation

thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current

effective interest rate;

- discount rate used in the measurement of

the lease receivable;
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)  Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

@)

Credit losses from trade and other receivables

(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort.
This includes information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future

economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following

bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the

reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the

items to which the ECL model applies.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)  Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

@

Credit losses from trade and other receivables

(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables is always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date with
that assessed at the date of initial recognition. In
making this reassessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost
or effort.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)  Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

@)

Credit losses from trade and other receivables

(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial

recognition:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment

that have an adverse effect on the debtor.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on a
collective basis. The financial instruments
are Grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and

credit risk ratings.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)  Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

@

Credit losses from trade and other receivables

(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any change
in the ECL amount is recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for
all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a

loss allowance account.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of trade and other
receivables is written off (either partially or
in full) to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay

the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the

period in which the recovery occurs.
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3 FEGHEOR () 3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
) SRR A B () (f)  Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
(i) HAYEE (ii)  Impairment of other assets

REEREREAREFHA Internal and external sources of information

B RINBER R - LARETE are reviewed at the end of each reporting

INTEERSFLERED period to identify indications that the following

xR KERIERNREEE assets may be impaired or an impairment loss

R TNEFESATREE AR previously recognised no longer exists or may

A have decreased:

- UE - BEERE- - property, plant and equipment, including
PREEAREE (K right-of-use assets (other than property
BHERBIERNYE carried at revalued amounts);

BRAN)

— AR —  land use rights;

- EMEE - biological assets;

—  RIBARINKE - investments in subsidiaries; and
54

- REERARREER - interest in associates and joint ventures.
AR ©

WFE A Lains - BIE If any such indication exists, the asset’s

ER P E S S TEE o recoverable amount is estimated.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f)  Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)  Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest Group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e
a cash-generating unit). A portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate asset (for
example, head office building) is allocated
to an individual cash-generating unit if the
allocation can be done on a reasonable and
consistent basis, or to the smallest Group

of cash-generating units if otherwise.
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3 FEEFENEOR () 3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(F) 5 B R B B A (A0

(f)  Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

i) H Al B e ()

(ii)  Impairment of other assets (continued)

— HRREERE Recognition of impairment losses
WEEREMER An impairment loss is recognised in
ELEMMREER income statement if the carrying amount
BE I E SRR of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to

AIME 2 R RERORL
BFE - -RREEL
B ERARER R
BT UADE - REH
MR B (HZE
4R AE M E E
HBRE(E - HEXEE

which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or Group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that

the carrying value of an asset will not be

FEREENERER reduced below its individual fair value less
REMER A R BER costs of disposal (if measurable) or value
EHEKAR (InEEE in use (if determinable).
=) EAEA (e
BE) -

— RBEREERE Reversals of impairment losses
MR EEE E AT U B An impairment loss is reversed if there has
EMEE LR EEA been a favourable change in the estimates
21 BlggERE used to determine the recoverable
E1E o amount.
Fr 8 1B &R (B B 18 (2 A reversal of an impairment loss is
RANRFATFEEIL limited to the asset’'s carrying amount
R R B B R R R that would have been determined had no
EEETNEEERE impairment loss been recognised in prior
1B - PRI REE years. Reversals of impairment losses
BEERBRNEE are credited to profit or loss in the year in

5 3R -

which the reversals are recognised.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

®

(&

Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(iii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with |AS 34, Interim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (see notes 3(f)(i)
and (ii)).

Biological assets

Biological assets include broilers, broiler breeder
eggs, breeder poultry, and are stated at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses and where
appropriate, less any accumulated depreciation,
which the costs are not materially different from the

fair value due to short production cycle.

The cost of biological assets comprises its purchase
price and any costs attributable in raising the

biological assets.
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(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(g

(h)

Biological assets (continued)

For biological assets stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses,
the depreciation is calculated on the straight-line
method to write off the cost of these biological assets
over their estimated productive period of 9 months.
The expected productive period of these biological
assets is reviewed regularly, and adjusted when
appropriate. The carrying values of these biological
assets are reviewed for impairment when events
or changes in the circumstances indicate that the

carrying values may not be fully recoverable.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as

an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see note 3(s)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract
assets are assessed for expected credit losses (ECL)
in accordance with the policy set out in note 3(f)(i) and
are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional (see note
3())).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see note 3(s)). A
contract liability would also be recognised if the Group
has an unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable

would also be recognised (see note 3(j)).

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest

accrued under the effective interest method.



3 EEEEHBOR (8)

@

(k)

R M S o R ik e L i WAk O

e 7 75 5= [ 1 7 S A6k 1 A M) R
RER - 7 SHEREKR -
B B HI S 5XAT & 7 5 B
% RIMCER (R (B Z A /S £ R
o R AE R AR EEHEA B
MUK EATRER - Z
e HEEZS (LK) -

u/<T IE\

T\@% REVEK D W EWE 5

REVREZSERAE - &
ﬁ%mﬁ’ﬂ’ﬁﬁ D H)EUE 5 B8R
REMERRIEZ VIR A EE
MR ZEAFTE - BT K FEWGK
HEERIRBEAARSR - FRE
B K% - URIEEEEROE
K (R PEES () ()

Bl kB&%EHY

RekReESBNERERITER
RFBRRE - FRARITMEM
B EBRE R - A RATIA
BRBRESENRCHEAEES
PRBRIA - AEBAER=[EA
WNEISHEBRNS R TRE -
ARESEERERERMS - A
ERREEBYNBIEERIZE
KERMBRASERSEIEA
REDMIRITES - ReERRE
SEMRBEHNHEI ()2 BER
HETEHIEEER -

B RS Rk M

Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

@

(k)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract

asset (see note 3(i)).

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are initially measured at their
transaction price. Trade receivables that contain a
significant financing component and other receivables
are initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs. All receivables are subsequently stated at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method,
and including an allowance for credit losses (see note
3(f)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’'s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement. Cash and cash equivalents
are assessed for expected credit losses (ECL) in

accordance with the policy set out in note 3(f)(i).
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

)

(m)

(m)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in income
statement over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective

interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, trade and
other payables are stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in

which case they are stated at invoice amounts.

Financial instruments

(i) Non-derivative financial assets and financial

liabilities — recognition and derecognition

The Group initially recognises loans and
receivables and debt securities issued on the
date when they are originated. All other financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially

recognised on the trade date.



3 EEEEHBOR (8)

(n) S TH (8)

@

T T4 < B K < A
1 — TS RAC AL 53 ()

AEEeREERFRRER
ReEHEY  BREZERR
o A 8 KUK IR A B FE W
BT EOR o B A EERER
TRENEFNEmRERE
EREERAEED KR
BEMNMBENEBARI R
BREHER - MSREE
HERFERR MR R 2 Bl
BER - BEREEEMK
BERBRMENZEEIRN
BERTHER

AEETRAERRETEE
B ENESERARELE
RFRIE - AR RE AN AR 03 30
I 2BABEREBEN
R E B EREARRR - BUBSKE
MBS IR FERE o MR FERREY
TREERIEREDNRE
MR ZRII N IE S R T

o

B RS Rk M

Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n) Financial instruments (continued)

@)

Non-derivative financial assets and tinancial liabilities

— recognition and derecognition (continued)

The Group's financial assets include cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other receivables,
and amounts due from related parties. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or,
the financial assets are transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received is

recognised in income statement.

Financial liabilities of the Group include interest-
bearing borrowings, trade and other payables,
and amounts due to related parties. Financial
liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is

recognised in income statement.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

(0)

Financial instruments (continued)

(i1)  Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value on trade date. At the
end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement
to fair value is recognised immediately in

income statement.

Share capital

Ordinary shares

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
ordinary shares, net of any tax effects, are recognised

as a deduction from equity.

Redemption and reissue of ordinary shares

When shares recognised as equity are repurchased,
the amount of the consideration paid, which includes
directly attributable costs, net of any tax effects, is
recognised as a deduction from equity. Repurchased
shares are classified as treasury shares and are
presented in the redemption reserve. \WWhen treasury
shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the amount
received is recognised as an increase in equity, and
the resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is
presented within share premium.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(p) Employee benefits

@)

(i)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to

defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Contributions to appropriate local defined
contribution retirement schemes pursuant to
the relevant labour rules and regulations are

recognised as an expense when they are due.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in share-
based payment reserve within equity. The
fair value is measured at grant date using the
binomial lattice model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(p)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed.
Any adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based
payment reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based
payment reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the
share-based payment reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires

(when it is released directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the

payment of termination benefits.



3 EEEEHBOR (8)

(q)

Jii A Bt

FEMBHEREMNEAREE
MEENEE - ZHREIELT
BIREEMBENZESH YN BE
RARER - BEHEMEERER
BEERERANERNIER AW
- ABRENEHESRESHINE
b2 S BN FERR o

BT BARRFERERTLA
RENBEARCHATHEL L
BEHITHH R E R FRIENH
B AREBEFERMNTIEAE
HEV TR -

ELERAEEERBED BB AN
AR TR E R M E R AL
AEEMBERMBRE LK
EEEENEZ HNEHE - R
BIRE B TR AL A B TR B R AN
AERTIRBRES ©

B RS Rk M

Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(@)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in the income statement except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of

previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused

tax credits.
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(@)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss

or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(@)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is

probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that

sufficient taxable profits will be available.
Additional income taxes that arise from the

distribution of dividends are recognised when the

liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(@)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and

the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and

settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the

same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on a net

basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle

the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to
settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed
by another party, a separate asset is recognised
for any expected reimbursement that would be
virtually certain. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount of

the provision.
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

3 FEGHEOR () 3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(s)  WAHER (s) Revenue recognition
WA T IRE WK ERARER AR Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
BEE - RELEMNZA T consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
MAREE - AR (G058 probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
) EER AT ER - WASRIETR Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
P AEERRER be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the

income statement as follows:

i HEESE (i)  Sale of goods
W T 2 i ok AR 755 45 1 Revenue is recognised when control over
R ER B TR AR A R ER Y a product or service is transferred to the
ERESHE(TRERRSE customer, or the lessee has the right to use the
ZHRERN SR ERER asset, at the amount of promised consideration
P SR AN EREREE to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
iR o WA B IEIGER excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
HEASHER - WAAHIBRE third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax
AIZ S0 ° or other sales taxes and is after deduction of

any trade discounts.

i) FLEHA (i) Interest income
B AR ETHER A B Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
FEATER o the effective interest method.

164  xme® (T#M) BFR2 T DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s) Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii)

(i)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in the income
statement on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost
of an asset are deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in the income statement
over the useful life of the asset by way of

reduced depreciation expense.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in the income statement in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in
income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in

the accounting period in which they are earned.
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)

(t)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(v)  Management fees

Management fees income is recognised when

the related services are rendered.

Foreign currencies

@

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
to the respective functional currencies of Group
entities at exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated to the
functional currency at the exchange rate at
the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate when the fair
value was determined. Foreign currency
differences are generally recognised in income
statement. Non-monetary items that are
measured based on historical cost in a foreign

currency are not translated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t) Foreign currencies (continued)

@)

(i)

Foreign currency transactions (continued)

However, foreign currency differences arising
from the translation of the following items are

recognised in other comprehensive income:

available-for-sale equity investments
(except on impairment, in which case
foreign currency differences that have
been recognised in other comprehensive

income are reclassified to profit or loss);

- a financial liability designated as a
hedge of the net investment in a foreign
operation to the extent that the hedge is

effective; or

- qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent

that the hedges are effective.

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations,
including goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on acquisition, are translated into RMB
at exchange rates at the reporting date. The
income and expenses of foreign operations,
excluding foreign operations in hyperinflationary
economies, are translated into RMB at the

exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Foreign currencies (continued)

(ii) ~ Foreign operations (continued)

Foreign currency differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income, and accumulated
in the translation reserve, except to the extent
that the translation difference is allocated to

non-controlling interests.

When a foreign operation is disposed of in its
entirety or partially such that control, significant
influence or joint control is lost, the cumulative
amount in the translation reserve related to
that foreign operation is reclassified to profit
or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
If the Group disposes of part of its interest
in a subsidiary that retains control, then the
relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is
reattributed to non-controlling interests. When
the Group disposes of only part of an associate
or joint venture while retaining significant
influence or joint control, the relevant proportion
of the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit

or loss.

If the settlement of a monetary item receivable
from a foreign operation is neither planned nor
likely to occur in the foreseeable future, such
receivables is deemed as a net investment
in that foreign operation. Foreign currency
differences arising from such item are
recognised as “translation reserve” in other

comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

(v)

Research and development costs

Research and development costs comprise all
costs that are directly attributable to research and
development activities or that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis to such activities. Because of the
nature of the Company's or the Group's research
and development activities, no development costs
satisfy the criteria for the recognition of such costs
as an asset. Both research and development costs
are therefore recognised as expenses in the period in

which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs

are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or completed.
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(w) Related parties

(i)

(i)

A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:

- has control or joint control over the Group;

- has significant influence over the Group;
or

- is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's

parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

- The entity and the Group are members of
the same Group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is

related to the others);

- One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a Group of which

the other entity is a member);

- Both entities are joint ventures of the

same third party;
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

3 FEGHEOR () 3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(w) BT (48) (w) Related parties (continued)
(i) (WEBFE N TEMA K (i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
% AR AEEASEESH following conditions applies: (continued)
i (8
- —AEE One entity is a joint venture of a third

oA
H
1]
ot
it
[

ool
=
o 30

entity and the other entity is an associate

i
N
o o)
i

—HEBRE=FE of the third entity;
Epd YN

— ZEBARASEH - The entity is a post-employment benefit
AEEEHERE plan for the benefit of employees of
SRV 34 SR either the Group or an entity related to the
FTEl Group;

- REBIXROMRA —  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
PN 2 7S H?i by a person identified in (i);

il

—  RUOFMATEHALE — A person identified in (i) has significant
REBEEAXEN influence over the entity or is a member
‘X?%EZ,\EL (KZE of the key management personnel of the

BRANDZEEE entity (or of a parent of the entity);
@E&E:

- ER g—HEEz —  The entity, or any member of a Group
FRKE R (BE of which it is a part, provides key
Bz —35) mAs management personnel services to the
B HSARREEE Group or to the Group's parent.

EEEAB R

ERMERI A LAY 3R P8 B E% Close members of the family of a person are

BT HFFTEH e those family members who may be expected

LZERAL - KZZER] to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
THENKEKXE - their dealings with the entity.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(x)

()

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per
share data for its ordinary shares. Basic earnings
per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year, adjusted for own shares
held. Diluted earnings per share is determined by
adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares
held, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares, which comprise share options granted to
employees.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the CEO of the Company for the purposes
of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated
if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(z)

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group's business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of
the Group and which represents a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations,
or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical area
of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively

with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to
be classified as held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs if

the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount is presented on the face of the

statement of profit or loss, which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued

operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell,
or on the disposal, of the assets or disposal
Group(s) constituting the discontinued

operation.
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(BB HHEMBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

4 RKERA 4

AEENEIZEBEREENEESR
fR - REBRKEA - ARIIT R e
ERASEIEXRB RN EMFBR
BB SRR MFE12

TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group include manufacturing
and trading of livestock feeds, poultry and chilled meats
and processed food. Further details regarding the Group's
principal activities are disclosed in note 12 to these financial

statements.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

I by major product lines is as follows:
—E-F
2022

FELKE KR st

Continuing Discontinued
operations operation Total
AR®BTT ARBETT ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HEBA Sales of chicken meats 1,703,038 - 1,703,038
HEBEHR Sales of livestock feeds 2,340,369 - 2,340,369
HEMTIR® Sales of processed food 2,151,768 - 2,151,768
6,195,175 - 6,195,175

T —F
2021

FEIR R #Et

Continuing  Discontinued
operations operation Total
AREETIT AREETTT AREETTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
SHEEA Sales of chicken meats 1,595,739 = 1,595,739
HEBEFIR Sales of livestock feeds 2,811,014 2,819,560 5,630,574
SHEMTR® Sales of processed food 2,124,152 = 2,124,152
6,530,905 2,819,560 9,350,465

174  Am&a& (M) A2 7 Dachan Food (Asia) Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BBHEBI - UARETT25)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

KEWA () 4 TURNOVER (continued)
REBMREFERZIT - HPWNEE
HERFHBEAEELLERA10%HE
F - AEBRFEANEERREFZ
FIBE A MIEE30() ©

The Group's customer base is diversified and includes
no customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10
percent of the Group's turnover. Details of concentrations
of credit risk arising from the Group’s customers are set
out in note 30(a).

ot 288 W A\ e Hoft i M 22, S5 OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND

(5 18) OTHER NET GAIN/(LOSS)
—E-CF T4
2022 2021
AR¥ET T AREFIT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
Hpgsg A Other operating income
B A Interest income 13,723 7,247
2G| Government grants 25,139 4,181
GiEE A ON Rental income 7,601 5,280
46,463 16,708
HibFss (&18) Other net gain/(loss)
4N 5 18 A1) Net foreign exchange loss (i) (2,156) (191)
HEWE « BKEREEF Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property,
(&18) ez plant and equipment (5,996) 6,372
EmiTER K 2 B # B EE Realised loss on commodity derivative
contracts - (1,428)
Y - BE REERERD Impairment reversed of property, plant
(Ff5E14) and equipment (note 14) 6,831 3,369
A Others (4,600) 3,937
(5,921) 12,059
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5 HABREBARHAMF R
(k5 48) (%0

KB (32M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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(IERTTDEHE - BTEHR - B E
B QAR EE AR RRERR
HEARNEXBERENGEE
EARK

RZZB-AFtA=+H " &2
RESHESEA R RREERE
AR R B E R R IRE
R MEEARREERNE
EREFEEA ST SN A
REEAE o

RZBE-_—F+=—RA=+—8 -
SBERNARIMERNREFEAR
S# B AR616,367,0007T ° 18
HAME H =% AR #53,058,0007T
(ZZ=—%F : AR¥940,2007T)
BRI 3 T8 & 5T BUR R AR
SEGEMBRRKRTCEARIRE
] o

5 OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND
OTHER NET GAIN/(LOSS) (continued)

(i)

The Company lent intra-Group loans to certain of
the Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC
(the “PRC subsidiaries”) since 2010. The intra-Group
loans were denominated in U.S. dollar (“USD") and
non-interest bearing. The PRC subsidiaries translated
the intra-Group loans to their functional currencies of
RMB at the exchange rate at the reporting date.

On 30 October 2015, the directors of the Company
approved the intra-Group loans forming a part of the
Company’s net investment in the PRC subsidiaries,
and the settlement of the intra-Group loans is neither

planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future.

The principal amount of the net investment intra-
Group loans was approximately RMB616,367,000 as
at 31 December 2022. Related exchange difference of
RMB53,058,000 (2021: RMB940,200) was recorded
as "“translation reserve” in the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position, in accordance with the
accounting policy in note 3(t).
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R e Al i A1) 6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

BRA AR A TS H0BR A TN B IE M ES Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

2022 2021
ARET T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(a) BIEBE (a) Finance costs
ERAFRNEHEE Interest on bank borrowings wholly
MIRTTEEFE repayable within five years 9,716 10,718
HESEFE Interest on lease liabilities 1,562 1,857
11,278 12,575
(b) EIMRAK (b) Staff costs
He I8 e Salaries, wages, bonuses and other
K H A4 A benefits 637,853 633,444
RIREFFT B R Contributions to retirement schemes 34,017 29,738
671,870 663,182

REENESEPEARLNEA ([ The Group is required to participate in pension schemes

B ERmBUT &M eRRE5E - B
REBEREBFEANRIRE B EKEE
EERETEREER  £16% (=F
Z—F 1 16%) WP NEERARE
K o B L FEHRIN - REELE
RTBREERARBHAERGBEARR
fE o

organised by the respective municipal governments of the
People's Republic of China (the “PRC") whereby the Group
is required to pay annual contributions for PRC based
employees at a rate of 16 percent (2021: 16 percent) of the
standard wages determined by the relevant authorities in
the PRC during the year. The Group has no other material
obligation for payment of retirement benefits to the
PRC based employees beyond the annual contributions
described above.
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KB (32M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement scheme administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group is
required to make contributions to the scheme at 6 percent
(2021: 6 percent) of the employees’ relevant income and
its employees are required to make contributions to the
scheme at 5 percent (2021: 5 percent) of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the scheme vest
immediately.

Save for the above schemes, the Group has no other
material obligation for payment of retirement benefits
beyond the contributions.
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o 5% i v A1) (48) 6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)
HibEH (¢) Other items
s —E-—4F
2022 2021
AR®F T AREEFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
ZEEN BN & Auditors’ remuneration
— FEZERE — annual audit services 3,700 4,752
— B AR — other services 700 790
4,400 5,642
weEX N Depreciation charge
—BEAYE - BENKE — owned property, plant and equipment 123,413 117,278
—FREEE - right-of-use assets 8,688 7,983
— B EEHE — investment property 2,722 2,790
134,823 128,051
EYEENE Depreciation of biological assets 12,312 7,476
BREREKE 5 RN Impairment loss of trade receivables
BIEEE recognised 2,638 4,742
FEMURE L FE Net reversal of write-down of inventory (4,838) (4,975)
IELIDTIN Research and development costs 721 1,361
FEKA* Cost of inventories* 5,446,132 5,139,859
* GFERABIEEBE TR - #T @ Cost of inventories includes RMB524,507,000 (2021:
B N8R = AR #524,507,000 RMB506,530,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation and
T(ZZEZ—F: ARK amortization expenses, which amount is also included in the
506,530,0007T) * HESFE N respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in note 6(b)
AR LM 6 (b) BB for each of these types of expenses.

MZEE RIS REDHE

A o
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

7 EAAHBRNZPEB

(a) HABRRAZBIARRE

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT

(@) Taxation in the consolidated income statement

represents:
-8 —E-—%F
2022 2021
ARMTT ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEIRIE Current tax
FREHE Provision for the year 11,523 10,518
BEEFBEETRE,(B%) Under/(over)-provision in respect
of prior years 227 (2,014)
11,750 8,504
EETIE Deferred tax
TR EENEERED Origination and reversal of temporary
Ws2e) .. differencesnote26) ... 3042 1405
HHEREWRIIES Tax expense on continuing operations 14,792 9,909
() BERSHSIEBRELE (i)  Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
S(RBEZHS])RHA Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands
BRI - REBHARFE (“BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income
BHENEBEZHSHME tax in the Cayman Islands and BVI.

AIFTSH

KB (32M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

(@) Taxation in the consolidated income statement

represents: (continued)

(ii)

In March 2018, Inland Revenue (Amendment)
(No. 3) Ordinance 2018 (the “Ordinance”) was
enacted to implement a two-tiered profits tax
rate regime. Under the two-tiered profits tax
rate regime, the first HK$2 million of assessable
profits of qualifying corporations is taxed at
8.25% and the remaining assessable profits
are taxed at 16.5%. The Ordinance is effective
from the year of assessment 2018/2019. The
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2022
is calculated at 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) of the
estimated assessable profits for the year,
except for subsidiaries of the group which are
qualifying corporations under the two-tiered
Profits Tax rate regime. For these subsidiaries,
the first HK$2 million of assessable profits are
taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable
profits are taxed at 16.5%. The provision for
Hong Kong Profits Tax for this subsidiary was
calculated at the same basis in 2021.
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7 ERGHERNZ PGB ()

a) HABERKRAZBIRE (8

(iii)

KB (32M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

RIER B EEHERR
E  RFR  REBET
NG ENEAE I AVAE IR N
BIER25% (ZE=—F :
25%) Bl AP B 1 2
FSH - RRCRHM (BRI
ARAE ([RBEEIIAK])F
AEKEK(E0)BRAF
(M& XKD BIBRSN - 2EE
IARK RN AR Ty E
WZE = BFRE R Rl
REERE - WHBERI5%
(ZF=—%F : 15%) {8
B R NTE -

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

(@) Taxation in the consolidated income statement

represents: (continued)

(iii)

Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations
of the PRC, the Group entities incorporated in
the PRC are liable to PRC Corporate Income
Tax at a rate of 25 percent during the year
(2021: 25 percent), except for Great Wall Agri
(Heilongjiang) Co., Ltd. ("GWAHLJ") and Great
Wall Agri (Yingkou) Co., Ltd. (“GWAYK").
GWAHLJ and GWAYK are subject to a
preferential tax rate of 15 percent (2021: 15
percent), as they have obtained the new high-

tech enterprise qualification from 2020.
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7 HEBERNZIEE () 7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

b)) REANEFENFHEIERE (b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
AT profit at applicable tax rates:

2022 2021
ARET T AREEFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BR A Al Profit before taxation 137,272 134,506
B EMEHFIE25%  Income tax calculated at PRC's Corporate
ST ER AT Income Tax rate of 25%* 34,318 33,627
KRR GEREE R Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
WEBARIM R ERAFE  operating in different tax jurisdictions 2,357 (4,426)
AR H S 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 537 400
BERBTWMARNT S E Tax effect of non-taxable income (25,172) (6,247)
RUERTA TS EE R I |4 2= & Tax effect of the movement of tax losses
MK E and temporary difference not recognised 2,525 (11,431)
BEHFENBETE,(GB%Z) Under/lover)-provision in respect of
prior years 227 (2,014)
ERHIERY Actual tax expense 14,792 9,909
& 25% (ZF=—4 : 25%) FTi5 8 *

The income tax rate of 25 percent (2021: 25 percent)

BEEARE T BLEREANE
R EHBIE o

represents the domestic tax rate in the jurisdiction where the
operations of the Group are substantially based.
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8 #HFM4& 8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
RIEFB D BEHIE383(1)IE XA T (H Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
BESm AR RO 22048 E FrikFE of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
ZEEMET Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

S
2022
A 1.1

REWEH Q)

Salaries, AR

EZHE  allowances BfEf4A  Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme st
fees in kind bonuses  contribution Total

ARBTR  ARBTR ARBTR ARETR AR%TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

IE Chairman

ERE James Chun-Hsien Wei - 2,068 872 27 2,967

HiTE=s Executive director

BERE Han Chia-Yin - 216 - - 216

BUFHTES Independent

Non-executive directors

BA Chen Chih 172 - - - 172

BxE Way Yung-Do 172 - - - 172

TEW Ting Yu-Shan 172 - - - 172

EVE Hsia Li-Yan 172 - - - 172

FHTES Non-executive directors

BRE Han Jia-Hwan 129 - - - 129

BXF Han Chia-Yau 129 - - - 129

EAE Chao Tien-Shin 129 - - - 129

BER Harn Jia-Chen 129 - - - 129

FRE Wei Anning 129 - - - 129
1,333 2,284 872 27 4,516

184  xme® (T#M) BFR2 T DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

ZZ-F
2021
e =28
REWEF N
Salaries, HEGE
521%  allowances HIETEAL Retirement
Directors'  and benefits ~ Discretionary scheme @it
fees in kind bonuses  contribution Total
ARETFE  ARETT AREFT ARETT AR®ETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
£ Chairmans
BEREM-Z=—% James Chun-Hsien Wei
=R—BEZfA) (Appointed on 1 March 2021) = 1,683 606 19 2,308
FREMR-Z-_—F Wei Anning
=R—RA#f) (Resigned on 1 March 2021) - 368 - 6 374
HiTES Executive director
#5= Han Chia-Yin - 206 - - 206
BUFHTES Independent
Non-executive directors
s Chen Chih 166 - - - 166
wxE Way Yung-Do 166 - = = 166
TEW Ting Yu-Shan 166 - - - 166
BUE(W=F=—F  HsiaLiVan
~A—BEZ{) (Appointed on 1 March 2021) 137 = = = 137
FHITES Non-executive directors
g% Han Jia-Hwan 124 - - - 124
EXT Han Chia-Yau 124 - - - 124
HRE Chao Tien-Shin 124 - - - 124
BRR Hamn Jia-Chen 124 = = - 124
HEEM_Z_—F Wei Anning
ZR—HEZE) (Appointed on 1 March 2021) 103 - - - 103
1,234 2,257 606 25 4122
e —

—_—

FEF 3R Annual Report 2022




BA RS AR MY
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

9 mEFHMAL 9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS
AfimxmFMALTH  —(ZF=— Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one
F:—()BESE HHES BRI =S (2021: one) is a director whose emoluments are disclosed
ELHE - REEEBRNUAG (2T = — in note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of
F U6 =P A T 2 FH BN the other four (2021: four) individuals are as follows:
T
—E-—fF T —F
2022 2021
AREFT ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e K H B Salaries and other emoluments 4,322 5,914
BIBIEAL Discretionary bonuses 1,127 1,499
IRIRETEI LR Retirement scheme contributions 62 92
5,511 7,505

The emoluments of the four (2021: four) individuals with
WAL (ZE2E=—F : Of) &=aFHmMA L the highest emoluments are within the following bands:
RIS T RPIAER

2022 2021
AE AEL
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
1,000,00177C%1,500,000%7C  HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1 -
1,500,001 7C£2,000,000#7C  HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 3 2
2,000,00177C%2,500,000/%7C  HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 - 1
2,500,00177C£3,000,000%7T  HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 - -
3,000,001 7C23,500,000/% 7T HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000 - 1
TR AREHBEAZEATIMNK No emoluments have been paid to these individuals as
I8+ DARSIA AR R BKIER AR an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
SEERE - HERMERLL 2 fHE - compensation for loss of office during the year.

186  xme& (M) B2 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited



10 H b &k s

B RS Rk M

Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

10 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

—E-CE - Sabis
2022 2021
BHASE  HEPE KHKER KEIEE  RBPE  HRKeR
Before-tax Net-of-tax ~ Before-tax Net-of-tax
amount  Tax effect amount amount  Tax effect amount

ARETR ARETR AR%TR ARMTR ARETT ARET:E
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

BENTRRNEL 28 -

- B ERMBHE

—DERNPENBLT

REFRNEERLA
B (M3Es()

Exchange differences on
translation of:
- financial statements of
overseas entities 35,092 - 35,092 30,340 - 30,340
- intra-Group loans
classified as net
investment in PRC
subsidiaries (note 5(i)) (52,118) - (52,118) 12,426 - 12,426

Efp2EAE

Other comprehensive income (17,026) - (17,026) 42,766 - 42,766

— &= — F 53R Annual Report 2022
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

11 T A B e 8 2 11 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER
SHARE

BRERREE R ERE AT TiER The calculation of basic and diluted EPS has been based on

AR PG = F) RSP B BT e the following profit attributable to ordinary shareholders and

MR LR TR BRI weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding

ETE after adjustment for the effects of all dilutive potential

ordinary shares.

a) I I B ORI A e (a) Profit attribute to ordinary shareholders
—E-CF —E--F
2022 2021
RELE Ririe Azt HEITE Rirge &3t
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing ~ Discontinued
operations operation Total operations operation Total

NARIEBIRKE  Profit attributable to ordinary

FEfh R T equity shareholders of the
Company 91,852,000 - 91,852,000 90,700,000 64,773,000  155473,000
b) % R T 2 i (b) Weighted average number of ordinary shares

=== T~

2022 2021

R—A—HBZETHE®AE  Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 1,016,189,000 1,016,189,000
IR HIRD EEEETBIFRE  Effect of restricted share award scheme - -
R+ A=+—HMEMIK Weighted average number of

TR E ordinary shares at 31 December 1,016,189,000 1,016,189,000
HE_ZT_—_FFR=_F=— The Group has no dilutive ordinary shares outstanding
+TZA=+—RHLFE  A&5EH for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
I B s R AR TSN © Therefore, there was no difference between basic
E it - FRREAR RS E I & and diluted earnings per share.
EHo

188  Xme® (M) B2 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

12 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are

organised by a mixture of both business lines (products

and services) and geography. In a manner consistent with

the way in which information is reported internally to the

Company's CEO for the purposes of resource allocation

and performance assessment, the Group has presented

the following three reportable segments. No operating

segments have been aggregated to form the following

reportable segments.

Processed food:

Livestock feeds:

Chicken Meat:

The processed food segment produces
and distributes pickled, pre-fried, and
instant food.

The livestock feeds segment
manufactures and distributes complete
feed, base mix and pre-mix for swine,
layer, broiler, duck, and breeder poultry
under the brands of “Dr. Nupak”,
“DaChan” and “Green Knight".

The chicken meat segment carries on
business of broiler farming, hatching of
broiler breeder eggs, contract farming,
processing and marketing of chilled and
frozen chicken meat marketed under
the brand of “DaChan” and “Sisters’
Kitchen".

— &= — F 53R Annual Report 2022
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

12 AHP R ()

(a)

KB (32M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

SrEBEAE - ER KA

D BEE RS D HENE
BAEME @ BRATERTS
EEERZ 2RO MEEZE
mBERAE:

NHEEBRMEBNEERR
BEE  MWEEHREEREM
RABERIN - DHREBRRES
BN HR R RS I G B RIS RS
RN AR - Bt BRI B
MEREENRITEER -

BRERARFAZTIZ2ER DA
EEMHER  ARED AR
BORXKEBRD HEEEE
T EREHEmMELENRAS D
EERATEHEIE -

HEDE BB T ERER
P

BRERERBENND BEMIN -
BERATEMEREARBLER
AN (BESEHEHEERE)  TER
BHNORER - DEFEHER
T2ZHNBAL BT EEL
HERMAETERE °

12 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources among segments, the CEO
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable

to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets and
current assets with the exception of deferred tax
assets and other corporate assets. Segment liabilities
include trade creditors, accruals attributable to the
manufacturing and sales activities of the individual
segments, accrued expenses and bank borrowings

managed directly by the segments.

Turnover and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by
those segments and the expenses incurred by
those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to

those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is

gross profit.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning gross profit, the CEO is provided with
segment information concerning turnover (including
inter-segment sales), depreciation and amortisation.
Inter-segment sales are priced with reference to

prices charged to external parties for similar orders.
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

12 7 #B 2 4 (48) 12 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(a) ArEBEAR - BB R A () (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)
MEE—T_—_FR-T-_—F Information regarding the Group's reportable
T A=+ —HRLEFENERS segments as provided to the CEO for the purposes
R EDBRAMEFENTE of resource allocation and assessment of segment
RUEEAAEERE DL 2ER performance for the years ended 31 December 2022
Z5aTF and 2021 is set out below:

0IR% EEE R &if

Processed food Livestock feeds Chicken meat Total
ECCFE CE--F CECE 5§ CECE CE--E CECCE B
A2 m 02 021 01 202 M 202 pil

ARRTR ARETT ARRTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARRTR ARETR
RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOO  RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RVBOW
i | A
Continuing  Discontinued®

REMIRPHALNN  Tumover fom exteml customers 0768 2040 20369 2811014 281950 170308 1595739 615175 9360465

AREERA Inersegment tumover - - 3600 13550 - ey 60N 18544 1019
At Totd 2,151,768 212419 3,666,389 4166944 2819560 2200412 2141761 8020609 11252417
BEE Seqment result 421,752 388,545 147817 00418 197,264 m3s 581 680,906 819,048
AAEHARRS Unalocated operaing income and

£IeNses - - - - - - - (531.346)  (574.249)
iyl Profitfrom operations - - - 5 5 - - 149560 244800
i Finance costs - S - 5 5 - = (a8
EEERABARAFER  Shareoflosses ofequtyccounted

vestegs - - - - - - - (1,010 (2819
it Income tax - - - 5 S - - (14792) (1029%)
g Proft or the year - - - S - - - 122480 200002
EhERE: Depreciaon and amortsation

forthe year 51,781 52,079 20,6% 031 19221 62,348 62929 134823 196,506
RENTEE Reportatle segment assefs 960817 882609 514415 K351 - 48919 11693 274N 2584163
ERFEFEITEE  Additons tononcurent segment

assets during the year 158,016 42564 21964 20,10 19278 ma1 %,063 kYA 178015
F=A056 Reporatle segment iabltes 304,195 31 W50 268746 - 192,680 813847 689,738
* RMIEE13 - * See note 13.
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12 7 #B 24 (4) 12 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) HmELSERBWA - HEE -~ HE (b) Reconciliations of reportable segment turnover, profit
E=LiE -] or loss, assets and liabilities
k=g b St 23 —T—F
Note 2022 2021
ARMET T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
SN Turnover
e Db & U A4EE Total turnover for reportable segments 8,020,629 11,252,417
DEBMEALEU AL  Elimination of inter-segment turnover (1,825,454) (1,901,952)
RS AR S Elimination of discontinued operations 13 - (2,819,560)
GANRBEERKER  Consolidated turnover from continuing
S PN operations 6,195,175 6,530,905
BRBLATIE R Profit before tax
SREDEBRFIRTF]  Total profit before tax for reportable
g segment 137,272 178,824
BRI A SE Elimination of discontinued operations 13 - (44,318)

RARBIFELEH  Consolidated profit before tax from

BR A% A& A continuing operations 137,272 134,506

&= Assets
WREDEEE Reportable segment assets 2,784,151 2,584,163
BT IEE E Deferred tax assets 6,071 4,274
HERBESEED Cash and cash equivalents 532,274 625,059
AOEAEES K ARIEE Unallocated head office and

corporate assets 248,781 227,765
e AERE Consolidated total assets 3,571,277 3,441,261
as Liabilities
RENHEE Reportable segment liabilities 873,847 689,738
FERFTEHE Income tax payable 9,928 10,215
LTI 8 E Deferred tax liabilities 7,936 3,097
ATEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 352,440 362,527
AOBL B/ A"]EfE Unallocated head office and

corporate liabilities 4,019 106,137
meBBEE Consolidated total liabilities 1,248,170 1,171,714
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(c)

REINDEFEERA

external customers

—EC-& T4

Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group's turnover
from external customers and (ii) the Group’s tangible
assets and interests in equity-accounted investees
(“specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of customers is based on the location at
which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical location of the specified
non-current assets is based on the physical location
of the asset, in the case of property, plant and
equipment and the location of operations, in the case
of interests in equity-accounted investees.

ERAFRBEE
Turnover from Specified

non-current assets

—E- 8 —E—F

2022 2021 2022 2021
ARBTT ARET T ARBETT ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

e The PRC 5,883,960 6,210,328 1,494,830 1,260,989
WERE®RMES  Vietnam and Malaysia - 2,819,560 - =
=N Japan 248,082 270,756 - =
Hhgn KR Rest of Asia Pacific 63,133 49,821 - =
6,195,175 9,350,465 1,494,830 1,260,989
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13. &Kk & &

EI

J-—Ev

s

ZAE

TERIEREEE DR

(a)

——FENEE - AFELE
HRBEESRATKREHNER
NEIREREPBE A
% o Eitt - B ENME R A
BRI BB R BB R RS
E5TE [ A FERIERBEEM
ERIEREXER | ERE M EHRERT

13 DISCONTINUED OPERATION

In the fourth quarter of 2021, the Group sold its subsidiaries
operated in Vietnam and Malaysia to focus on developing
business operating in Mainland China. Accordingly, the
financial results of these disposed subsidiaries before
disposal were presented as “Discontinued operations” in
the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued

Operations.

#AL g 2 4 (a) Result of discontinued operation
—T-—F
2021
ARKETT
RMB’000
KA Revenue 2,835,617
HiH D HBEMA Elimination of inter-segment revenue (16,057)
SMEBUZA External revenue 2,819,560
HX Expense (2,790,362)
HIHD HPEEERERAX Elimination of expenses related to inter-segment sales 15,120
ANEBR 2 External expense (2,775,242)
RS Result from operating activities 44,318
FriSH Income tax (10,386)
KRS BIR) Result from operating activities, net of tax 33,932
HER I 2 as Gain on sale of discontinued operation 41,473
HE R IEEE 2 e 2 Frist Income tax on gain on sale of discontinued operation =
REKRIEEE Z2wF (FiE) Profit from discontinued operations, net of tax 75,405
SRREARZF] Basic earnings per share 0.0637
BREE R Diluted earnings per share 0.0637

KB (32M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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13. 2L () 13 DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

(b) HRILRBIrfB & (b) Cash flow from discontinued operation

—E-—fF

2021

AREEFIT

RMB'000

LETEE AR 258 Net cash used in operating activities 64,481
WERSELER S FE Net cash from investing activities 25,326
FEFHSR Net cash flows for the year 89,807
1 A AR T B B R T 2 R (c) Effect of disposal on the financial position of the Group
T4

2021
ME - BE L& Property, plant and equipment (224,828)
T HBfE AR Land use right (49,946)
FREEE Right-of-use assets (100,072)
HEZEHERPER Interests in jointly controlled entities (8,526)
BETHIEEE Deferred tax assets (23,838)
T8 Inventories (339,038)
eI E 5B Trade receivables (95,711)
H A e 5k IE Other receivables (132,554)
Be MREEEY Cash and cash equivalents (344,674)
BB SRR Trade payables 173,361
HAb e FRIA Other payables 174,295
FTEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 376,236
FES TS EL Income tax payable 3,933
HEBE Lease liabilities 103,130
BELEBIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 351
EEREEFE Net assets and liabilities (487,881)
e R Minority interest 159,355

EENRBEFE-AQATMREREN Net assets and liabilities-attributable to

equity shareholders of the Company (328,526)

WEIRRAE - UIRB AT Consideration received, satisfied in cash 370,000
HERRS RRSEEY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (344,674)
BEFRAFEE Net cash inflows 25,326
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14 BeEPEG g - L fE I REDA 14 INVESTMENT PROPERTY, LAND USE

Kk ~ W Bt RIGHTS AND PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT
(a) MR (A ¥R (a) Reconciliation of carrying amount
i %2
R i fEt
REIR HREREE  Fumiture, it il BiE
Construction BT Plantand fittingsand Motor 5 Land  Investment ot
inprogress  Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles ~ Subtotal  use rights property Total

ARRTR  ARRTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARRTR
RVBOO)  RMBOOO  RMBON  RMBON  RMBON  RMBON  RMBON  RWBON  RMBON

i Cost
RZEZZE-A-R A1 Janvary 202 2309 101,460 2,116,662 155,007 2107 2417545 188,066 105,183 2,710,794
RE Additions 204,540 2761 51,776 10,303 223 351,618 269 230 /T
g\ Transfers (8,033) 1,566 6,378 8 - - - - -
thE Disposals - (1,020 (39,294) (6,168) (911) (47393 (9,999) - (57,392)
EizE Exchange differences - 1 - 115 - 128 - - 128
i At31 December 2022
i _f _Z_FEJF_ - A 2 98,8_16 104,786 213552 159,346 2428 212189 178,336 105413 3,005,647
ZiMfE  BERAE Accumulated depreciation,

amortisation and

impairment;
RZBZZF-F-A A1 January 202 - 74,608 1207481 104921 10917 1397927 48225 48802 1,494,954
R Charge for the year - 5S2 1082% 9214 3 1 5090 021U
g Transfers - - - - - - - - -
HEBEET/(BE)  Impaiment loss

recognised/ireversed) - 218 (3,861) (239) (1) (6,831) - - 6,831)
it Disposals - (1m (30,886) (5,416) (81 (37.284) (478) - (37,762)
EXzE Exchange differences - 13 - 115 - 18 - - 128
e At31 Decerber 2022
R T AU W W e vl o V%
BEE: Carrying values:
RBoof At31 December 2022

t2A=1-A 298816 20132 854,498 50,747 9,754 1240947 125,499 53,889 1420335
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14 BeEMEG g - L REDA 14 INVESTMENT PROPERTY, LAND USE

KW ~ W Bk s (48) RIGHTS AND PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (continued)
(a) Ve IR (%) (a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)
il K&

& 1 &t
FETE FERES  Funitue, Wt foFyE FHE

Construction BF  Plntand fitingsand Motor It Land  Investment &

In progress Buldings ~ machinery ~ equipment vehicles Sub-total Use rights property Total

ARRTR  ARRTn  ARMTR  ARRTR ARRTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARRTR
RVBOM  RVBOID  RMBOD  RMBOID  RMBON  RMBOND  AMBOD  RMBOD  RMBON

A Cost:
RZEZ-E-F-R A1 Janvary 2021 16483 382,689 238791 162,091 45362 2,935,406 243648 82311 3,261,360
RE Addltions 49001 10410 12946 12,583 5845 150,805 220 - 178015
EIN Transfers (43192) 1409 24,465 182 = (17,166) (5,706) 281 -
it Disposals = (291,330 (308937 (19,466) (2893 (648,696 (75,589) = (724.285)
EXZE Exchange diferences ] [1718) (603) (33) (121 2604 (1490 - (£.301)
HZ5=-f A¢31 December 201
tZA=1-A 2309 101,460 2,116,662 165,007 2107 2417 545 188,066 105,183 271079

ZiMfE  BERAE Accumulated depreciation,

amortisation and

impairment;
RE--E-F-R A1 Janvary 2021 - 139,493 1,307,543 114017 26,566 1,587,619 61,949 29154 1678722
il Charge for the year - 18619 114673 9,059 55% 147,949 6,205 2400 156,356
B Trnsfers - - 3% - S (1 BXY 172 -
REEERD/(BE)  Impaiment loss

recognised/ireversed) - 1,460 (3.254) 28 (74 (1,620) (1.749) = (3:369)
it Disposals = (84,693) 197,285) (18,074) (21,097 (321,149) (13.287) - (334,436
EiZE Exchange differences - gl (212) (329) (76) (885 (1.831) - 2519
RB% At31 December 2021
TR D VIR W RN L el GEE LR
FaE: Carrying values:
R-E--F At 31 December 2021

t2A=1-1 2309 26,802 909,181 50,086 11190 1,019,618 139,841 56,381 1215840

— &= — F 53R Annual Report 2022 197



198

BA RS AR MY

Notes to the Financial Statements
(BBHEPI - UARETT2)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

14 MG - L HRERTHEDL
BYiE ~ Wl B s (41

(a)

14

INVESTMENT PROPERTY, LAND USE
RIGHTS AND PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (continued)

Vi YA 3 % (AD) (a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)
WEMEMERK AR ZFTE Investment properties are stated at cost less
REMBEEEIER RKRZF accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
——#+-A=+—H EBE As at 31 December 2022, the management estimated
HEAEEREEEHENA L fair value of the Group's investment properties
BIEA A AR 1578,362,0007T ° amounted to approximately RMB78,362,000.
RZEZ—FR=-_ZTE=—F+= As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, no buildings
A=+—0 SiEEFRtHE and land use rights are pledged to banks for banking
FAREHE IR T IRITUES R T A& facilities granted to the Group.
ERRITEE -
RNEBAL R A T b B2 1 F A The carrying amounts of the Group's land use rights
EFEMRmERAT are situated in the following locations:
—E-F — T —F
2022 2021
ARBT T ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR The PRC 125,499 139,841
1 ETHE Impairment loss

BHRETEBEURNBEREFR
BEEBEETR BEERARE
EBEMEEYE - BEERB
FHEEBEREDRRENR T -
FrZA=+—BETHHNE
EARYE - BB RRENA K
Bl&E8 °

6 B eIl E 4 5 TR
1R IE AR G % B A B R IR
RenERE  HRAMBEE12%
fikst o
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As certain business units recorded a net loss for
the past few years, management considered that
indicators of potential impairment of property, plant
and equipment attributable to these business units
existed and performed an assessment to determine
the recoverable amounts of the related property, plant

and equipment as at 31 December 2022.

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units
were estimated based on the present value of the
future cash flows expected to be derived from the

cash-generating units, using a discount rate of 12%.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BBHEBI - UARETT25)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTY, LAND USE
RIGHTS AND PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use

ERIFEINTET : assets by class of underlying asset is as follows:
—E-CF T4
+=A +=A
==l E—1E
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AR®F T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
THUE AR Land use rights 113,883 127,365
HELH Leasehold land 11,616 12,476
BgF Buildings 7,658 7,927
E Motor vehicles 759 2,436
133,916 150,204
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHEMBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

14 &G - L RED
KW ~ W Bk s (48)
(b)  fHEIRER E (4])

ERAEMRXEBNER P
REDIMTAOT -

14

INVESTMENT PROPERTY, LAND USE
RIGHTS AND PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (continued)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases
recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

—E- & —E-—%F

2022 2021
ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FREEERBEEEERR Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
TEZL - by class of underlying asset:
b PR Land use rights 4,229 5,042
HE LT Leasehold land 861 1,068
BF Buildings 1,357 5,458
G S e Machinery and equipment - 98
RE Motor vehicles 2,241 1,939
8,688 13,605
HEAENE Interest on lease liabilities 1,562 5,092
BRSBTS HEN —Z = —F Expense relating to short-term leases and
—ZT-—F+=-H=+—H other leases with remaining lease term
2 AEMNEEAEREM  ending on or before 31 December 2022
HEMF X and 2021 8,690 4,061
M EREBEEEBBOFIS - Expense relating to leases of low-value
TEECHEEEEERE assets, excluding short-term leases of
low-value assets 11 B

HERSRHARREEAEN
M0 BB KT FE21(d)
}25 e

KB (32M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in
notes 21(d) and 25 respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BBHEBI - UARETT25)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

14 #&EWEFHE - LA REDL 14 INVESTMENT PROPERTY, LAND USE
KW ~ W Bk s (48) RIGHTS AND PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (continued)

(o) REMETHWIE - WK (¢) Property, plant and equipment Leased out under

operating lease

B EB

B
[, se Furniture, RE
Plantand fittings and Motor &5t
machinery  equipment vehicles Total

ARBTE  ARBTT ARBTT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

B Cost:
R-ZE-—F—f—H At 1 January 2021 36,806 4,181 166 41,153
NE Addition = 445 = 445
HE Disposals (11,195) (3,373) - (14,668)
RZZF-_—F+-A=1+—H  At31 December 2021 and

R-Z-_—F-A—H at 1 January 2022 25,611 1,253 166 27,030
NE Addition = = = =
BA Transfers (25,158) 415 (166) (24,909)
HE Disposals = = = =
MZZ-—F+-HA=+—H  At31 December 2022 453 1,668 = 2,121
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BBHEPI - UARETT2)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

14 #&EWEFHE - L E A REDL 14 INVESTMENT PROPERTY, LAND USE
KW ~ W Bk s (48) RIGHTS AND PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (continued)

(o) REMETHWIE - WG K&M (¢) Property, plant and equipment Leased out under
(%) operating lease (continued)
B £E
ET
BER#E  Furniture, RE
Plantand fittings and Motor @5t
machinery  equipment vehicles Total

ARBTR  ARBTT ARBTLT ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ZETNE B RAE Accumulated depreciation,
amortisation and impairment:

RZE=—%—H—H At 1 January 2021 19,629 3,659 103 23,391
FRGK Charge for the year 2,401 100 11 2,512
& Disposals (8,296) (3,631) - (11,927)
RZZE=—F+-A=+—HK At31 December 2021 and

—“Z-—%—-A—H at 1 January 2022 13,734 128 114 13,976
FRR Charge for the year 2,046 68 10 2,124
BA Transfers (15,499) 1,298 (124) (14,325)
e Disposals - - - -
RZZZZF+-A=+—H At 31 December 2022 281 1,494 - 1,775
REE Carrying values:
MZZZZ#+=A=F+—H  At31 December 2022 172 174 = 346
WZEZ—%F+ZA=F+—H  At31 December 2021 11,877 1,125 52 13,054
AEBRBELEHE N M The Group leased out all machinery, equipment and
BATIMAARE  RERTE motor vehicles of one subsidiary and part of the
K5 —EH B A R & EB D HEA o Machinery of another subsidiary under operating
HE—MYVLRBPRE F M lease. The lease typically runs for an initial period
ETBEFEAEHEENK RIS of 5 to 6 years. The lease does not include variable
HE - REERAKRKRBBERS lease payments. Undiscounted lease payments
ARG S ETE TR ARITIRE under non-cancellable operating lease in place at the
ERBEBARKRPBEFT AR reporting date will be receivable by the Group in the
5,220,000 (ZZE=—%F : AR future periods are RMB5.22 million per annum (2021:
#£8,740,0007T) ° RMB8.74 million).

202  Km&& (M) BRAF DaChan Food (Asia) Limited



B RS Rk M

Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

W BB 2 W] R 3R E 15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
TREVNTHAEEXESE BEHAE The following list contains only the particulars of
BRKEEXENMNBRARINER AT subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or
A An A3 mRR liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary:
AL, BRTR
RYREERERBH BHERA/
Place and date HZMER
of incorporation/ Issued and FEfk Rt
AR AE establishment fully paid up/  Attributable FTEEK
Name of company and operation registered capital equity interest Principal activities
HE ik
Direct Indirect
% %
Great Wall Northeast Asia Corporation HEES 216,521,383%C 100 - RAER
("NAC") Cayman Islands USD216,521,383 Investment holding
—WAETZA=H
3 December 1996
Impreza Investments Ltd. (“IIL") EBRRHE 14,700,000 7T - 100 REER
BVI USD14,700,000 Investment holding
—AAAET—A+H
7 November 1996
Great Wall Dalian Investment Co., Ltd. EBRLES 24,500,0005 75 - 60 REER
("GWDL") BVI USD24,500,000 Investment holding
—hNEE-A=F=H
23 February 1995
AR R (RE) BRAR ([GWF-DLI) HE 26,600,0003 70 - 60 HEREZRSMEL -
GEIRVIVT) PRC USD26,600,000 RENEEFBRK
Great Wall Food (Dalian) Co., Limited —WAAEEFTZARA E NIKEERER
("GWF-DL") (notes (1), (2) and (3)) 6 December 1995 NERRERMNT

Manufacturing and
trading of animal feeds,
husbandry and trading
of poultry and livestock,
processing and trading
of meat and meat
products and foods
processing
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(BREEEBIN - UARKETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

15 7 FiHE 2 W B 4% ()

15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
TR BETR
BIREEMER BH BERRE/
Place and date HMER
of incorporation/ Issued and FE{LRRE
AR HE establishment fully paid up/  Attributable TEER
Name of company and operation registered capital equity interest Principal activities
B i
Direct Indirect
% %
EEARRBERERAF e 19,080,000 7 - 100 4EREEHNEH
(FEZARL) () - 2%(3) PRC USD19,080,000 BEREERB LK
Liaoning Great Wall Agri-Industrial —NEFEATNA E NIKEENSE
Co., Ltd. ("LGW") (notes (1), (2) 19 July 1990 RAER
and (3)) Manufacturing and
trading of animal feeds,
husbandry and trading
of poultry and livestock,
processing and trading
of meat and meat
products
Great Wall Agritech (Liaoning) Co., RBRUHS 21,594,944 T - 100 REER
Limited ("GWALN-BVI") BVI USD21,594,944 Investment holding
—WNEFNAT=H
13 September 1990
AREHER (BE) BRAF 0 168,440,000/ T - 100 REER
(TGWALN-HK]) Hong Kong HKD168,440,000 Investment holding
Great Wall Agritech (Liaoning) Co., —ANEELAZ+HEA
Limited (" GWALN-HK") 24 July 1990
ARER (BRI AR H 6,562,000 T - 100 EEREEZWHL
(TRETARK]) (EH() (2 &(3)) PRC USD6,562,000 Manufacturing and
Great Wall Agri (Heilongjiang) Co., Ltd. —ZEZRFHA-+HH trading of animal feeds
("GWAHLJ") (notes (1), (2) and (3)) 25 May 2005
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

15 TAFRHE 2 Bl BB () 15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
Ha g BETR
BYREERER B ERRRE,/
Place and date HfER
of incorporation/ Issued and FEAL R
ARHE establishment fully paid up/  Attributable TEEY
Name of company and operation registered capital  equity interest Principal activities
B B3
Direct Indirect
% %
Dongbei Agri Corporation (“DBC”) RBRTHS 81,744,203 T - 100 RERR
BVI USD81,744,203 Investment holding
—hWNWARFE+—RAZ++B
27 November 1996
RBEHR (E0)BRAF HE 17,700,0003 7T - 100 4EREEIVEAH -
(rgrAm]) (HEE0) - 2RE) PRC USD17,700,000 MIKBEENE
Great Wall Agri (Yingkou) Co., Ltd. —ANEFHA—B RAER
("GWAYK") (notes (1), (2) and (3)) 1 April 1997 Manufacturing and
trading of animal feeds,
processing and trading
of meat and meat
products
AKER (%) ERAR ([HEAK]) HE 14,089,379 7T - 100 HEEREEIWEL -
(FitzE01) ~ (20 503) PRC USD14,089,379 BEREBRBERK
Great Wall Agri (Tieling) Co., Ltd. —MAEERATAH E NIKEENE
(“GWATL") (notes (1), (2) and (3)) 16 May 1997 RRNER
Manufacturing and
trading of animal feeds,
husbandry and trading
of poultry and livestock,
processing and trading
of meat and meat
products
RIbRH(RE) ERAF (IDBC-CC)) o 1,093,000 7T = 100  EERERSMEH
(fEE(1) ~ (2 1(3) PRC USD1,093,000 Manufacturing and
Dongbei Agri (Changchun) Co., Ltd. “EERENAZHAH trading of animal feeds
("DBC-CC") (notes (1), (2) and (3)) 28 August 2006
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BBHEPI - UARETT2)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

15 7 FiHE 2 W B 4% ()

15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
TR BETR
BIREEMER BH BERRE/
Place and date HMER
of incorporation/ Issued and FE{LRRE
AR HE establishment fully paid up/  Attributable TEER
Name of company and operation registered capital equity interest Principal activities
B i
Direct Indirect
% %
AR RS EE R AR ([DHFT)) H 2,200,000 7T - 100  EEREEIWSL
(HIZE(T) ~ (21R(3) PRC USD2,200,000 Manufacturing and
Hunan Greatwall Technologies & Feeds ZZTRETANR trading of animal feeds
Co., Ltd. ("DHFT") (notes (1), (2) 8 October 2006
and (3))
Hwabei Agri Corporation ("HAC") RERUHES 69,013,436 T = 100 REER
BVI USD69,013,436 Investment holding
—ANANE+=ZA=+=H
23 December 1998
AKEE (B8 ERAF ([FEAK]) BE 64,273,930 T - 100 REER
DaChan Wanda (HK) Limited Hong Kong USD64,273,930 Investment holding
("DWHK") —NN\EERAZT7<A
26 June 1984
AREE (RR)BRAR ([REARK]) HE AR 579,060,0007T - 100 HEREEHMEE -
(1)~ @ RB) PRC RMB579,060,000 EENEEFBRK
DaChan Wanda (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. —NZF+AZt—H B MIREERER
("TWD") (notes (1), (2) and (3)) 21 October 1992 NEmR

KB (32M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

Manufacturing and

trading of animal feeds,

husbandry and trading

of poultry and livestock,

processing and trading
of meat and meat
products
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

7 B 2 W] A (48) 15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
ML BETR
RAIREEMER A BRERE/
Place and date TMER
of incorporation/ Issued and FEAL R
ARHE establishment fully paid up/  Attributable TEEY
Name of company and operation registered capital  equity interest Principal activities
B ik
Direct Indirect
% %
Union Manufacturing Limited ("UML") HERTEHE 7,700,000 7T - 100 BB
BVI USD7,700,000 Investment holding
—NAAEZR+H
7 February 1996
ARER (EB)BBRAR ([ LERMK]) H 6,940,000% T - 100 RmMT
(BHEE(1) ~ (201(3)) PRC USD8,940,000 Foods processing
Greatwall Gourmet (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. —NWAENLAER
("GWGS") (notes (1), (2) and (3)) 5 September 1996
Great Wall Kuang-Ming Investment EBRIHS 7,615,000 7T = 100 REER
(BVI) Co., Ltd. ("GWKM") BVI USD7,615,000 Investment holding
—ANEF=A++tR
17 March 1995
Asia Nutrition Technologies (VN) RBRZHS 7,615,5905 75 - 6551 FEREBRHMER
Investment Co., Ltd. ("ANTIC-VN") BVI USD7,615,590 Manufacturing and
(BHEE(1) B2 (4)) (notes (1) and (4)) —NWNFENAtR trading of animal feeds
7 September 1998
SEERImCIR) BRAR (ENE #AE  89,600,000,000%/E - 6551 YEREEDMELN
ERA O ) 1) (EE() R (4) Vigtnam G 1E0) Manufacturing and
Asia Nutrition Technologies (HN) Co., “ET-F-A-+-H Vietnamese Dong trading of animal feeds
Ltd. ("ANTC-HN") (notes (1) and (4)) 22 January 2003 ("VND")
89,600,000,000
DlEE R (WE) BRAR(ENE R 190,836,294,000 % /E - 6551 YEREEDMEN
BRI (HE) 1) (BHEE) K 4) Vietnam VND 190,836,294,000 Manufacturing and
Asia Nutrition Technologies (VN) Co., —hWNAEFNA=1+N1H trading of animal feeds
Ltd. ("ANTC-VN") (notes (1) and (4)) 29 April 1995
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(BREEEBIN - UARKETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

15 7 FiHE 2 W B 4% ()

15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
TR BETR
BIREEMER BH BERRE/
Place and date HMER
of incorporation/ Issued and FE{LRRE
AR HE establishment fully paid up/  Attributable TEER
Name of company and operation registered capital equity interest Principal activities
B i
Direct Indirect
% %

Asia Nutrition Technologies (LA) Co., R 80,393,000,000#4iF /& - 6551 HERBESMELR
Ltd. ("ANTC-LA") (PEE(1) Rz (4)) Vietnam VND 80,393,000,000 TERERA - KES -
(notes (1) and (4)) “EEHFMA+=R B g RKEL

13 April 2007 Manufacturing and
trading of feed meal and
related additives, aquatic
products, veterinary and

aquatic medicine

Asia Nutrition Technologies (MV) Co., #ME  62,400,000,0008EE - 6551 HERBBEYRAR
Ltd. ("ANTC-MV") (BFEE(1) K (4)) Vietnam VND 62,400,000,000 Manufacturing and
(note (1) and (4)) “E——FAR-1"H trading of animal feeds

26 September 2012

Great Wall Nutrition Technologies Sdn. Bk 4,373,7705 1 = 100 EERHES YR

Bhd. (“GWNT") (note (4)) (FizH(4)) Malaysia Malaysian Ringgit Manufacturing and
—ANEENR=H ("MYR") 4,373,770 sales of animal feeds
3 August 1990

Marksville Corporation (“MSV") HERLES ESH - 100 RAER

(note () (FI7E(4) BVI usb1 Investment holding
ZETLESATRA
15 June 2007

208

KB (32M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited



15

B RS Rk M

Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

T B 2wl 3 (%) 15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
Ha g BETR
BYREERER B ERRRE,/
Place and date HfER
of incorporation/ Issued and FEAL R
ARHE establishment fully paid up/  Attributable TEEY
Name of company and operation registered capital  equity interest Principal activities
B B3
Direct Indirect
% %
PN 2o e Tl NG H AR#20,000,0007 - 100 AERBEINEHR
(TR (1) R (3) PRC RMB20,000,000 EERIE - BEWE
DaChan Agricultural Technologies —ZEEN\ENA-tAA &5
(Sichuan) Co., Ltd. ("DAS") (notes (1) 25 August 2008 Manufacturing and
and (3)) trading of animal
feeds and related
additives, research
and consultation on
husbandry
AR m (L) BRAR (DAEARK]) H 54,080,000 7T - 100 4ERBESVEL
(Fit3E01) ~ (205(3) PRC USD54,080,000 MIKEENE
DaChan Food (Hebei) Co., Ltd. ("DFH") “ZEN\F=R+H RAER
(notes (1), (2) and (3)) 10 March 2008 Manufacturing and
trading of animal feeds,
processing and trading
of meat and meat
products
ERRETHABRAF HE 500,000% 7T = 100 ERRS
(MERFILE]) PEE() « (2 &(3)) PRC USD500,000 Management services
Dongbei (Beijing) Consultant Co., Ltd. “ZE\F+A=1AH
("DBC-BJ") (notes (1), (2) and (3)) 30 October 2008
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(BREEEBIN - UARKETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

15 7 FiHE 2 W B 4% ()

15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
TR BETR
BIREEMER BH BERRE/
Place and date HMER
of incorporation/ Issued and FE{LRRE
AR HE establishment fully paid up/  Attributable TEER
Name of company and operation registered capital equity interest Principal activities
B i
Direct Indirect
% %
EMZERSRMARAR H AR#50,000,0007 - 100 EZZNEH - BEK
(IzE RS () - 2RE) PRC RMB50,000,000 EERERZE NI
Yanzhou S&F Farm Co., Ltd. ("YDF") “ET\F=A=+H REERERAER
(notes (1), (2) and (3)) 20 March 2008 Trading of animal feeds,
husbandry and trading
of poultry and livestock,
processing and trading
of meat and meat
products
HEAKRMER LA F A #296,860,0007T - 100 EEHWEAL  BEK
(M RR R M) (FEE)RE) PRC RMB 296,860,000 BERERZE ML
Bengbu DaChan Food Co,, Ltd. ("BDF") ~ ZZZNF+=ZA=H REBENBERAER
(notes (1) and (3)) 3 December 2008 Trading of animal feeds,
husbandry and trading
of poultry and livestock,
processing and trading
of meat and meat
products
Miyasun-Great Wall (BVI) Co., Ltd. HBRIES 5,015,000 7T - 100 RAER
("Miyasun-Great Wall") BVI USD5,015,000 Investment holding
—WMEF=ZA++H
17 March 1995
AKBERm(KE) BRAF HE 9,880,000 7T - 100 RminT
(IBERM]) (1) - 2KE) PRC USD9,880,000 Foods processing
Miyasun - Great Wall Foods (Dalian) —NWNAFHEA=+H
Co., Ltd. ("Miyasun Foods") 20 May 1995

(notes (1), (2) and (3))
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(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

I B B 2 ) R 38 (4 15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
AL, BRITR
HIREEMER B EHERER/
Place and date TMER
of incorporation/ Issued and FEAL R
ARHE establishment fully paid up/  Attributable TEEY
Name of company and operation registered capital  equity interest Principal activities
B ik
Direct Indirect
% %

AR REHESHRAF i 3,800,000 7 - 100 4EREEHMEH
(TR BEHES]) (1) - PRC USD3,800,000 Manufacturing and
(2)%(3)) “ZTNELATARA trading of animal feeds

Great Wall Agritech Huludao Co., Ltd. 15 July 2009
("GWAHLD") (notes (1), (2) and (3))

RKER (TR BRAR (DA ARK]) H 1,900,000 7T - 100 AEREEHNER
(BHEE(T) ~ (2) ~ (3) K% (5)) PRC USD1,900,000 Manufacturing and

Great Wall Agri (Henan) Co., Ltd. “TENFLA=THMA trading of animal feeds
(“GWAHE ") (notes (1), (2), (3) 24 July 2009
and (5))

REABAEE YRR EBR A ) HE AR#100,00070 - 100 e
(TTDPRJ) (zE(1) % (3)) PRC RMB100,000 Research and

Tianjin DaChan Prospect Research And ZETNET—ANA development
Development Co., Ltd. (“TDPR “) 9 November 2009
(notes (1) and (3))

FERARK RS ERAF w AR#100,0007C - 100  BERERS B9ER
(TEERE]) (PR R(3)) PRC RMB100,000 K&

Zhenglangi DaChan Eco-ranch Co., Ltd. —Z—F—FAA Food service, animal
("ZLQ") (notes (1) and (3)) 5 January 2011 husbandry and selling

ABAKRmERAR AR (ITDFH]) RERUEE 5,850,005 7T - 6154 REZR

Taixu & DaChan Foods Holdings Co., BVI USD5,850,000 Investment holding
Limited (“TDFH") By R =

7 March 2012
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(BBHEPI - UARETT2)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

15 JAFRHE 2 Bl BB () 15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
TR BETR
BYREERER B BHERA/
Place and date HER
of incorporation/ Issued and FE{LRRE
AR HE establishment fully paid up/  Attributable TEER
Name of company and operation registered capital equity interest Principal activities
EiE i
Direct Indirect
% %
AEAKRMERAR ([TDF) B 9,000,000%7T - 40 REER
Taixu & DaChan Foods Co., Limited Hong Kong USD9,000,000 Investment holding
(“TDF") i N s N
29 November 2012
REARRM(KE)ERAF HE ARH#55,500,0007C - 40 BERERRAER
(ITDF-DL)) (3E(1) ~ (20 %(3) PRC RMB55,500,000 Trading of meat and
Taixu & DaChan Foods (Dalian) Co., “ET——FRR-1+HH meat products
Limited (“TDF-DL") (notes (1), (2) 25 May 2012
and (3))
China S&F Farm Holdings Co., Limited RBRTRS 7,000,000% 7T = 100 RERK
("S&F") BVI USD7,000,000 Investment holding
“2—%t+A-tH
20 October 2011
WRAKARIR AR AT H 3,000,000% 7T - 100 EEREESYEE
(TsARK ) (BHEE(T) ~ (2)%(3) PRC USD3,000,000 Manufacturing and
Shandong DaChan Biotechnology —E-—%-A+=A trading of animal feeds
Co., Limited (“SDB") (notes (1), (2) 12 January 2012
and (3))
ANEEERBAKERREBRAF HE AR#1,000,00070 = W0 FBEESRRNEE
(ToLDC)) () K(3)) PRC RMB 1,000,000 Poultry farms
DaChan Livestock Development —E-—F,A1+HEH construction & lease
Co., Ltd. ("DLDC") (notes (1) and (3)) 14 June 2012
REABRM(EE)BRAH f AKH#40,000,0007 - 40 MIKEENER
(TTDF-BBJ) (B (1) R(3) PRC RMB40,000,000 B
Taixu & DaChan Foods (Bengbu) —E-RF+—A=thH Processing and trading
Co., Limited (“TDF-BB") (notes (1) 25 November 2016 of meat and meat
and (3)) products

KB (32M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
ML 2RTR
RIREERERBH EHERER/
Place and date TMER
of incorporation/ Issued and FEAL R
ARHE establishment fully paid up/  Attributable TEEY

Name of company

and operation

registered capital

equity interest

Principal activities

B ik
Direct Indirect
% %
REBLRMESERAR ([TCC-TDI) HE AR #1,000,0007C = 55 BEREm
(HHEE()R(3) PRC RMB1,000,000 RARm
Tianjin Chao Cheng Food TradeCo., —T—+tF+A+=A Trading of meat and
Ltd. (“TCC-TD") (notes (1) and (3)) 12 October 2017 meat products
REPHREREERARF (TISP)) HE AK100,0007T - 100 FENHERE
(PfF3E(1) K2(3)) PRC RMB100,000 Swine raising
TIAN JIN SUPER PIG AST Co., Ltd. —E2-\E-A-t+xA and selling
("TJSP") (notes (1) and (3)) 26 February 2018
Ant Feed Co., Ltd. (“ANT-PP") E3ES 5,000,000 7T = 52.41 HERBEEYEE
(note (4)) (Pt zE(4) Cambodia USD 5,000,000 Manufacturing and
—Z2—)\&—A®AH trading of animal feeds
5 January 2018

B Notes:

(1) NABBHHESGEREHLZE - ER (1) The English translation of the company names is for reference only.
FREBEAKZINEEBN BB AR AE The official names of these entities established in the PRC are in
EELHE o ZERBREBEAKZNE R Chinese. The official names of these entities established in Vietnam
K ATBABE X RAELEERT o are in Vietnamese.

(2 FZERPEBRAKINELYRINGE (20 These entities established in the PRC are wholly foreign-owned
B enterprises.

3) ZERFBRAKIMNERBYAERE 3) These entities established in the PRC are limited liability companies.
(E/N!

(4) e A AN S SR P TR AR RO B B A ) (4) The above mentioned subsidiaries operated in Vietnam and Malaysia
ERZZE=—FENFEHE - FEH has been sold in the fourth quarter of 2021. Details are set out in
FPTEE13 note 13.

(5) ERPEEENMBERARER=T (5)  The above mentioned subsidiary operated in PRC had been

ZZF R ARG o deregistered in May 2022.
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(B BB

IARMETTE5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

15 RAKEA W HEE (5) 15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
TREINEBAREENMBE AR (K& The following table lists out the information relating to the
EHEEEAFERER) NER - TX subsidiaries of the Group which has material non-controlling
Fr25 2 g E RS E R A R ML AT interests. The summarised financial information presented
ZBHEE o below represents the amounts before any inter-company
elimination.
- Bk
222 il
ARETR ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
GWDL TOF TDFH DLDC ANTICWN GIWDL TDF TDFH DLDC
FOREEER  Noowoigmeessmorae 0% B0 A% GO0 MO A0 B0 Bk 600
THLE Cumentasssts 415,888 14651 95,854 20470 - 460,450 162,152 105,91 15897
FnEAE Nonurent assets 152,675 69,110 4492 52,265 - 161,698 10413 45,768 51313
EERE Curentliiies (117968 (%2819 (60763 (71510) - 02y (988 (828 (18]
sk Non¢uren ebites (7.936) - - - - (5,736 (8,8801 (.72 -
EERE Net assets 442,659 122,862 80,013 1225 - 506,129 103879 67,731 1589
HRERERE Camyingamourt of
non-contraling interests 177,066 43,000 30,713 734 - 207515 36,356 26,050 953
WA Revenue 1220931 445,540 445,540 - 2793845 1,290,236 413583 413583 -
,ﬁﬂ&ﬁ@%f@ Pofit and fofel comprehensive income. 34,747 2,830 19315 (365) %138 3788 29610 19,147 1604
REEERERZER  Poftalcatedto
norcontroling inferests 13899 10,440 1428 (219) 11,774 15289 10,363 7364 975
PFEAERER T 2R Dividond padtononcontroling
nterests (44,597) (4.257) (3,041) - (22.234) (11,89) (4,062) (5,00) (960)
HEHEAT Disposal of subsiies - - - - (194816) - - - -
AR REAN Exchange esenve alocated 0
ERRf narontoling neress 29 461 3% - 40,206 %) (79 %) -
HEEBEIRAEE  Cashfowfomopertngachites R R M (e ZEB MEs B 5 5514
RETHHEREEE  Cashiowfominvesting aciites 101,089 (6437) 7908 (26 o2 1282 (3,364 4182 4
BERBAELRERE  Cashfowfom frandng actites (07516 (61,195) (7,906) N L R Y I K] B72) {1,600]

ANTIC-VNZ B E# 25 ANTIC-UN -

TME R CTA) -

(@ﬁ)

BB EE 25 TDFRTDF-DLZ &G4

M & & B
* ANTC-LA + ANTC-MV & ANT-

° GWDLZ &KL 275
GWDL&GV\/F-DLZG@%%E o TDF >

%

4 o TDFH 2 B %4 K 25 TDFH - TDF

NTDF-DLZ A %4 (

PEfR#ERS) ©

TEFETDFZ 3E

KB (32M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

The financial information for ANTIC-VN shows the
consolidated results of ANTIC-VN, ANTC-HN, ANTC-VN,
ANTC-LA, ANTC-MV and ANT-PP. The financial information
for GWDL shows the consolidated results of GWDL and
GWE-DL. The financial information for TDF shows the
consolidated results of TDF and TDF-DL. The financial
information for TDFH shows the consolidated results of
TDFH, TDF and TDF-DL excluding non-controlling interests
of TDF.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BBHEBI - UARETT25)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

16 INTERESTS IN EQUITY-ACCOUNTED

INVESTEES
{hEsd —=-—F T —F
Note 2022 2021
ARETT ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RESE N T Z AR Interests in associates (a) 68,786 69,796

i A w (a) Associates
TRINTAEBBHE ARG ZE The following list contains the particulars of the
B RERE AR ARETE Group’s associates, all of which are unlisted corporate
AR - WEMERE : entities whose quoted market price is not available:
BUis
Proportion of ownership interest
HERAR
e R AEEH SRDFRE
(EERES e EhEs  AlERA Held by
Form of Place of HER Group's i equity- IEEER
BENAER business  incorporation Registered effective Held by accounted Principal
Name of associates structure  and operation capital interest subsidiaries investees activities
TianJin Hai Rei Food Limited (HRF-TJ) ML mE ARS50000007T 40% 40% - REREE
KESEREERAA Incorporated PRC RIMB5,000,000 RRRR
(K28R Manufactoryd:
trading of
frozen foods
DaChan (Asia-Pacifc) Ltd. (“DAPL"J?/** ML R 1432000057 352% 5.37% - HEREE
Incorporated Vietnam ~ USD14,320,000 B
Manufactory&
trading of animal
feeds
DaChan (VN) Company Limited R il 11,800,007 352% - 100% fEREE
["DUN"Jf#* Incorporated Vigtnam USD11,800,000 TKESH
Manufactory &
trading of aquatic
feeds

— &= — F 53R Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHEMBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

16 A HE % A MR 2 B2 v i RE 22
(%)

16 INTERESTS IN EQUITY-ACCOUNTED
INVESTEES (continued)

(a) BEAT () (a) Associates (continued)
Tt
Proportion of ownership interest

BERAR

kR ASEM BIRAFRE

(RERES e ERER  ANERA Held by
Form of Place of R Group's & equity- IEXE
NS business  incorporation Registered effective Held by accounted Principal
Name of associates structure  and operation capital interest subsidiaries investees activities
Advent Prosperity Real Estate L HE AR% 10% 10% - FHERERA
Development Co,, Ltd. ("APRD") * Incorporated PRC 423,500,0007 R
REERELEHERLERAR RMB423,500,000 Real estate
([REEREE]) development &
related services
Taiwan Intemational Gene Co,, Ltd iR EBRES 3,000,000 7C 19.68% 0% - RERERS
(TIG)** B EERERFRAA Incorporated BVI USD3,000,000 Swine breed
farm
Rupp & DaChan Foods (Tianjin) o, Ltd. L HE N 40% 40% - HEREE
("RDF-TJ) Incorporated PRC 50,000,000 A8h
EEARRR(RZ)BRAA RMB50,000,000 Manufactory &
([R2EL) trading of dairy
products

* HMRERREHESRARNES
g AKERREAEATE
N FERREZERE S - DAPL
NMDVNZD R ERE] -

> PAEMEARBEAEEEE
WAKENERRNEEATE
RIE-—FENFEHE &
EHPPIFES o

ERFEBE R AR MRS EA
PR ARTIEHRE -

KB (32M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

*%

The Group has determined that it has significant influence because it
has representation on the board of the investee, so APRD, DAPL and

DVN are classified as associates.

The above mentioned associates of the Group's subsidiaries
operated in Vietnam or BVI has been sold in the fourth quarter of

2021, details are set out in note 13.

All of the above associates are accounted for using the

equity method in the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB HHIBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

16 A HE & AR 2 B 2 W) B BE 4 16 INTERESTS IN EQUITY-ACCOUNTED

(%)

(a)

INVESTEES (continued)
W5k 23 W) (4) (a) Associates (continued)
TRERBE NRIZHEER - Summarised financial information of associates,
WE BARE B REANZREE reconciled to the carrying amounts in the consolidated
HEITHER financial statements, are disclosed below:
—E-CE
2022
REEREE X25% REEE @t
APRD HRF-TJ RDF-TJ Total
NSk Gross amounts of the associates’
¥RBEE Non-current assets 127,140 i 9,995 137,852
ROEE Current assets 475,014 5,460 26,437 506,911
FnBaE Non-current liabilities - - (4,500) 4,500)
REEE Current liabilities (24,600) (4,443) (6,091) (35,134)
3 Equity 577,554 1,734 25,841 605,129
WA Revenue 7,886 3,616 66,847 78,349
R (58) /8HR {Loss)profit and total comprehensive
SENESTE income for the year (3,616) 140 (1,836 (5,312)
HAEEREENAREZHE  Reconciled to the Group's
interest in the associates
BENfEEFE AT Gross amounts of net
assets of the associate 577,554 1,734 25,842 605,130
GEING Held by subsidiaries 10% 40% 40% -
FEEREHEDRL Group's share of net
BESE assets of the associates 57,755 694 10,337 68,786
CRANBHRRMIEDE Carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements 57,755 694 10,337 68,786
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(BBHEPI - UARETT2)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

16 A HE & AR 2 B 2 W] #Y BE 4 16 INTERESTS IN EQUITY-ACCOUNTED

(%) INVESTEES (continued)
(a) BEAT () (a) Associates (continued)
—E--F
2021
REERES DAPL RzEL TIG K& &t
APRD DAPL RDF-TJ TIG HRF-TJ Total
BeNFEeH Gross amounts of the
associates’
FRHEE Non-current assets 142,385 68,744 11,169 19,127 890 223188
NBEAE Current assets 464,454 (183,622) 26,136 = 4,591 311,559
FrEBE Non-current liabilties = = (4,500) - - (4,500)
nBaE Current liabilities (25,964) (87,446) (5,128) - (3,887) (122,425)
s Equity 580,875 (202,324) 27,677 19127 1,594 407822
WA Revenue 8,737 251,845 42,397 - 5,335 308,314
AEEFER2ARGELE  Loss and total comprehensive
income for the year (3,522) (24,030) (3,262) = 321 (30,493)

BREFNMEATEE  Reconciled to the Group's

ZHE interest in the associates
BENTAEFELEE  Gross amounts of net
assets of the associate 580,875 (202,324) 21,6771 - 1,594 407,822
MBLEE Held by subsidaries 10% 5.37% 40% 30% 40% -

REEEEBENT Group's share of net assets
BERE of the associates 58,087 - 11,071 - 638 69,796
SRUEHRRMAKAE  Carrying amount in the
consolidated financial
statements 58,087 - 11,071 - 638 69,796

218 kK& (M) B2 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BBHEBI - UARETT25)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

17 INVENTORIES
HEMBRIER PN FE R : (a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial
position comprise:
—E-CF — T4
2022 2021
ARET T ARETFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
Ekzkahes Animal feeds 251,630 243,830
RERRENA Poultry and chilled meats 98,698 56,781
MIEm Processed food 261,659 248,099
PEpEA Consumables 59,032 59,443
671,019 608,153
W 2 b X Wy 2 B &3 4 e (b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as
T an expense is as follows:
—E-—F T4
2022 2021
AR¥ET T AREETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEHEFERAEE Carrying amount of inventories sold 5,450,970 8,114,191
FEMR Write-down of inventories 1,306 1,511
B [0 77 B HURL Reversal of write-down of inventories (6,144) (6,486)
5,446,132 8,109,216

RZE_—_F+-A=+—HBzZ
REVBARRE  BRATEERF
BEENREHEZFEELBEA
R#11,828,0007C (ZF=—%F -
AER#16,666,0007T) ° KB
G RZEZZ B4
+-—A=+—8 YWEFEET
BIRRETIE -

BEE—FEZ2FEMRTIBER
—E - _FHRHECREFEM
B o

On the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2022, a provision of RMB11,828,000
(2021: RMB16,666,000) was made against those
inventories with net realisable value lower than the
carrying values. Other than this provision, none of the
inventories as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 were

carried at net realisable value.

The reversal of write-down of inventories made
in prior year was the result of sales of impaired
inventories in 2022.

— &= — F 53R Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BBHEPI - UARETT2)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

18 W& E 18 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS
BE= REE
Breeder 5P Broiler &5t
poultry Broilers breeder eggs Total
ARETTT ARETIT ARETTT ARETTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
IREDFE Net carrying amount
N_ZE=——%F At 1 January 2021
—H—H 5,866 163,465 10,742 180,073
BREEFAZEFTE Increase due to
N purchases/raising 21,181 1,882,964 196,923 2,101,068
FE R Depreciation provided
during the year (7,476) = = (7,476)
H=E#K R4  Decrease due to
culling/hatching — (1,929,452) (197,868) (2,127,320)
HEZEA RIS Decrease due to
retirement and deaths (2,698) = = (2,698)
RIZ-—%F At 31 December 2021
+=—A=+—~H 16,873 116,977 9,797 143,647
REE FIEFTEL Increase due to
N purchases/raising 3,390 1,825,729 172,573 2,001,692
FRIERE Depreciation provided
during the year (12,312) - - (12,312)
H=% M)  Decrease due to
culling/hatching - (1,811,222) (171,793) (1,983,015)
AZEAMLTIRL  Decrease due to
retirement and deaths (935) = = (935)
i —— At 31 December 2022
+=-—A=+—~H 7,016 131,484 10,5677 149,077
EMEEBIEESR  AERAEE - Biological assets comprise breeder poultry, broilers and

A - B8 RABERARAREMRE
BRI RRAABEIEEANE

Ho

KB (32M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

broiler breeder eggs.

Broilers, breeder poultry and broiler breeder eggs are stated

at cost less any impairment losses, which are not materially

different from their fair value.
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

19 EWHE 5K 19 TRADE RECEIVABLES

2022 2021
AR¥TT AREEFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FEUE 5 8RR Trade receivables 248,502 220,395
B R Less: allowance of doubtful debts 9,392 7,308
239,110 213,087
FEWE 5 8RR N E BR A AR D A 2a As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
N trade receivables is as follows:
—EC-CF T
2022 2021
AR¥ET T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BN &R Current 228,312 187,740
BEA1Z= 180K 1-180 days past due 11,767 25,953
#1H9181 53658 181-365 days past due 2,841 386
EERER 365K More than 365 days past due 5,582 6,316
ee® . Amountspasstdue ... 20190 32,655
248,502 220,395
AEE—RATFEEFAI0AZE60AH] The Group normally allows a credit period ranging from 30
EEH - BEAASEEERERNFER days to 60 days to its customers. Further details on the
HKIEE30() © Group's credit policy are set out in note 30(a).
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

20

KB (32M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

L Al JE WSk S % LA sk

20 OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS

—E-CF —E-—%F

2022 2021

AR¥ET T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

AU BB (E () VAT recoverable (i) 269,948 346,096
& RIER () Deposits and prepayments (i) 140,830 168,964
HHXFET Advances to staff 5,327 3,885
Efth Others 6,954 8,778
423,059 527,723

B AT EFE R BN E R ) Less: non-current VAT recoverable (i) 112,497 139,778
mE Current 310,562 387,945

AU [E1 38 (B A% 45 AT R S R SR S5 IR
REBARBAEERER - K
BHREEEET T EEBERNHEE
BREHITRANREEZNEFE
BIREMERERERMES - K
RAEZERE  BE-T==

+-A=+—H  BREAEEH
BIEEER —F1& 8 AR A UK E
HERBARE112,497,0007T
(ZZE=Z—F+ZA=+—H8: A
R #139,778,0007T) °

(i) The VAT recoverable represents the unutilised input
VAT eligible for offsetting against future output
VAT. The unutilised input VAT arose mainly due
to the insufficient output VAT on sales of chicken
meat to offset the input VAT on purchases of live
chickens from contract farmers. The directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the VAT recoverable
as at 31 December 2022 which will be utilised after
one year is RMB112,497,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB139,778,000) based on the Group's budget.
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(BBHEBI - UARETT25)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Ll Wk Y % TR ek I (7)) 20 OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

(i) ZeREARBEREE R (i) Deposits and prepayments consist of advance
) 4 FE T 1 HH RO TR e A R I LA payments made to suppliers for purchases of raw
AR ° materials and other prepaid expenses.

Fir 7 H fth & U R I8 (8145 FE Uk R Bk 05 3K All of other receivables (including amounts due from related

18) TR —F Rk E - parties) are expected to be recovered within one year.

Bl R Bl &5 EY R AL B & 21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

e B OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(a) BERBESHEDLE - (a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

—E-CF —E-—%F

2022 2021
ARETT ARBTIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RAEFBRRERR RERE Cash and cash equivalents in the
ReERERPHRE R consolidated statement of financial
REEEM position and in the consolidated
cash flow statement 532,274 625,059
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(BBHEPI - UARETT2)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

21 BeRBEFEYRHEHEE 21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

WmE R () OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(continued)
(b) BBt i i A S A 44 B P A B & (b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash
B - generated from operations:
B eE =B EF_—F
Note 2022 2021
ARMET T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FREF Profit for the year 122,480 200,002
PA T B IEFE - Adjustments for:
—FEhESE AR — Share of losses of

AREE equity-accounted investees 1,010 2,819
—HFEWA — Interest income 5 (13,723) (14,960)
—HEYE  BENKR - Netloss/(gain) on disposal of

- pd % - VA &) property, plant and machinery

FE 5 5,996 (6,467)
— 2 - BB KR — Impairment reversed on property,

AR plant and machinery 14 (6,831) (3,369)
—FBHAX — Interest expense 6 11,278 21,684
e — Depreciation 14 134,823 156,556
— YA E — Amortization of biological assets 18 12,312 7,476
—TFEHUR — Write-down of inventories 17(b) 1,306 1,511
— BB E MR — Reversal of write-down of

inventories 17(b) (6,144) (6,486)
—EWE ZREFURELZ -~ Impairment loss of impairment
EERE on trade receivables 30(a) 2,638 6,911
—E R ZERFE - Net foreign exchange difference (28,130) 7,332
—HERIHEEERE - Gain on disposal of discontinued
g operation - (41,474)
— A H — Tax expense 7 14,792 20,295
EEESEE Changes in working capital:
FEEM Increase in inventories (58,028) (221)
AR (8h1), 4> (Increase)/Decrease in biological assets (17,742) 28,950
EHRBERD Decrease in contract liabilities (5,439) (12,902)
JEUE 5B N E UL Decrease/(Increase) in trade and

RIRA, (EH0) other receivables 76,003 (97,258)
JERE SRR R HEMFES Increase/(Decrease) in trade and

FIEE I, G other payables 106,600 (12,316)
KETHMEES Cash generated from operations 353,201 258,083

224  kme® (TM) BR2AF DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

21 BeRBEEEYRHAEEE 21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

mE R () OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(continued)
(c) WU Bl Es A ) £ A 2 IR - (¢) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities:
BERREMAFIE
Loans and HEaE
interest Lease
payables liabilities
AR¥T T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R-ZE-_—_%—F—H At 1 January 2022 407,492 33,966
MERSRELE Changes from financing cash flows:
IS RITE RS Proceeds from new bank loans 698,776 -
BERITER Repayment of bank loans (719,423) -
ERFE Interest paid (9,716) -
B2 FELD Interest element of lease rentals paid - (1,562)
BN 2 ERED Capital element of lease rentals paid - (3,901)
BMERSRELH BT Total changes from financing cash flows (30,363) (5,463)
[E 5% Exchange adjustments (9,605) -
Hih2 g Other changes
7 S8R (FfiE6(a) Interest expenses (note 6(a)) 9,716 1,562
HIAE R SR & g hneg Increase in lease liabilities from entering
HEAE into new leases during the year - 1,652
Regme®  Totalotherchanges . ome .. 3214
RZE_Z_F+Z/A=1+-— At 31 December 2022 377,240 31,717
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(BB HHEMBIN - UARETTZ5)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

21 BeRBEFEYRHEHEE 21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

WmE R () OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(continued)
(c0 RIEWHEAWAMBZHIE : (¢) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
(48) activities: (continued)
B ERFE
Loans and HEBE
interest Lease
payables liabilities
AREFIT AREFIT
RMB'000 RMB’000
W=—Z=—F—H—H At 1 January 2021 804,651 139,530
MERSRELE Changes from financing cash flows:
LRI TE RS HOR Proceeds from new bank loans 980,814 =
BERITER Repayment of bank loans (1,006,607) =
BERFE Interest paid (16,592) (14,361)
MERSRELH BT Total changes from financing cash flows (42,385) (14,361)
[ 5 AR Exchange adjustments 4,870 (14,361)
Hih2 g Other changes
FBFL (FiFE6(a) Interest expenses (note 6(a)) 16,592 5,092
RS EIRVE dvisi=giop )l Increase in lease liabilities from entering
WHESRE into new leases during the period = 8,144
R E R Decrease in discontinued operations (376,236) (103,130)
Aefm@s  Totalotherchanges (359,044 ... (89894
W-ZE-—%+-A=+—H At31December 2021 407,492 33,966

226  KR&& (M) BRAF DaChan Food (Asia) Limited



BA RS R R BT RE

Notes to the Financial Statements
(BBHEBI - UARETT25)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

21 BeRBEEEYRHAEEE 21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

mE R ()
(d) FIEBI40 A

HEMNRSRERPEEATSE

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(continued)

(d) Total cash outflow for Leases:

Amounts included in the cash flow statement for

1 : leases comprise the following:
—ECoCF — T4
2022 2021
ARMET T AREETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
REERSREAN Within operating cash flows 8,701 4,066
REEREREA Within financing cash flows 5,463 14,361
14,164 18,427

These amounts relate to the following:

e —E-—F

2022 2021

ARET T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

ENHERS Lease rentals paid 14,164 18,427
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22 JEAHE 5 MR 22 TRADE PAYABLES
-8 —E-—%F
2022 2021
AREFT ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JERTE SRR Trade payables 472,025 397,655
FrEENE SRRFEHR —FRIf - The trade payables are expected to be settled within one
year.
HEREHR  ENESERVERRS As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
MR - trade payables is as follows:
—E-CF T4
2022 2021
AR¥T T AREETTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BNER Current 275,325 221,812
DIA30K 6 Hf Less than 30 days past due 146,867 119,659
31Z260K#Hf 31 - 60 days past due 28,525 36,002
612 90K %1 HA 61 — 90 days past due 8,700 5,651
90K A _E 71 Hf More than 90 days past due 12,608 14,531
wee® ... Amountspastdue ... 196,700 175,845
472,025 397,655
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23 OTHER PAYABLES AND AMOUNTS DUE
TO RELATED PARTIES

—E-CF —E-—%F

2022 2021

ARETT ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

$HE @) Sales rebate (/) 23,353 32,839

Fe I8 #ERk Salaries, wages, bonuses and

H At & F other benefits payable 108,912 99,669

BB Accrued expenses 61,174 50,688

B#RS Contract performance deposits 53,110 39,622
BEMHE  BERZMEENFTIE  Payables for purchase of property,

plant and equipment 14,535 11,291

FEA5 RAES: 5 7 E (B 5E29(e)) Amounts due to related parties (note 29(e)) 43,500 42,600

Hity Others 23,984 16,385

328,568 293,094

() REXBEFAHNHEE  AREHE
BB R B - R M E R
ERARKBAES TIRME - AE
AEXIZHEERE TAD L
B 2EM - EBEYMMB AT K
B - "EBEEABEHREEEBRER
SEREFTATEREDHE -

P EL b 8 5 3R 08 b JE A AR 05 R TR
HIR—FAXN -

(i) In order to promote the sales of livestock feeds, the
Group launched an incentive scheme where a rebate
as a percentage of sales amount is payable to the
sales agents if they can achieve certain criteria as set
by the Group. The incentive rebate resulted in variable
consideration. The Group estimated the amount of
variable consideration including in the transaction

price using the expected value.

All of other payables and amounts due to related parties are

expected to be settled within one year.
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24 FHEfEE 24 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
(a) ZAMBEMHERWT : (a) Loans were repayable as follows:
—E-C8F T
2022 2021
ARBET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
RITER Bank loans
—ER—FREE — repayable within 1 year 82,648 94,875
— BN —FREBRMEAEE - repayable after 1 year but within 2 years 6,965 133,890
—ERMFREREFTNERE - repayable after 2 years but within 5 years 262,827 115,162
352,440 343,927
REBFNITEZFER Loans of industry support from government
—AR—FAER - repayable within 1 year 24,800 38,765
—BR—F%ENMFEAEE - repayable after 1 year but within 2 years - 24,800
—BRREBERTEANEE - repayable after 2 years but within 5 years - =
i, 24800 63565
B Total loans 377,240 407,492
W A RBEEAZER  Less: Loans repayable within 1 year
—FREENER classified as current liabilities 107,448 133,640
DERIERBEENER Loans classified as non-current liabilities 269,792 273,852
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24 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

(continued)
(b) &K (b) Terms
—E-CF T
2022 2021
ARET T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EIRAPIRTTE R Unsecured bank loans:
—EEFENFEZF3.85% - Fixed interest rate ranging from 3.85%
F4.80% (ZT=—4F : to 4.80% per annum (2021: 3.85% to
H3.85%%24.00%) 4.00% per annum) 150,035 55,425
—FBFEANFFE532% - Floating interest rate ranging from 5.32%
£558% (T ——4%F : t0 5.58% per annum (2021: 1.14% to
BF114%24.65%) 4.65% per annum) 202,405 288,502
352,440 343,927
MEABUTER Unsecured government loans:
—EEFET7.5% — Fixed interest rate at 7.5% - 20,165
-8 — Interest free 24,800 43,400
_______________________________________________________________________________ 24,800 63565
ERiass Total loans 377,240 407,492
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25 MEAE

R-E-_—_F+-_A=+—H HE&

EAN THIHRER

25 LEASE LIABILITIES

follows:

At 31 December 2022, the lease liabilities were repayable as

—E-_—F —T-—F

2022 2021

ARBFT ARKETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

—FR Within 1 year 2,001 3,387

—FREMFNRN After 1 year but within 2 years 1,049 1,817

MEEBRERN After 2 years but within 5 years 2,766 2,724

& After 5 years 25,901 26,038
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 25716 U 8

31,717 33,966

26 EREIABHRULE hBUE

26 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) SR MBI R E B (a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of
financial position:

—ECF T4

2022 2021

ARMT T ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

REF] At the beginning of the year 10,215 12,792

FAMMETEE Provision for income tax for the year 11,750 19,073

FABENER Income tax paid in the year (12,037) (21,564)

ExE) w2 Effect of movements in exchange rates - (86)

RER At the end of the year 9,928 10,215
& - Represented by:

FESFT1SHE Income tax payable 9,928 10,215
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26 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)

(b) Movement of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) during the

year

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during the year are as

follows:
fERE

BB fERReE
Depreciation HEEE- HERNR R

allowance Bl TFEE  AMEHTE  Depreciation

in excess of BERE  Impaiment HEBE  Salesrebate  chargeof

the related  Provision for loss:  Alowsble  andother rightofuse ot
depreciation inventories  receivables tax loss acoruals assets Total

AR ARETR  ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR
RVBOO  RMBOO  RMBOD  RMBON  RVBOM  RVBOD  RWBON

WE-ZF-f-A At 1 January 2022 (5,737) 1512 1113 - 3191 1032 111
PEABERN/(IB)  Credited/charged to consolidated

(718 income statement (note 7l (2199) (174) 40 - (505) (584) (3042
RZEZZFFZA=T-H  At31 December 2022 (7,936) 1338 1593 - 2,69 448 (1,869)
W-5--£-5-A At 1 January 2021 6,109 1802 1,69 - 27,648 850 25,886
IEABERTA/(MB)  Creditedcharged to consolidated

(718 income statement (note 7a) /] 290) (188) - 947 182 1222
it Disposal of discontinued operation %1 - (3%) - (23504 - 13481)
WIE--E+ZA=T-8  At31 December 2021 (5,737) 1512 1173 - 3197 1,032 117
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26 R EAEOIR LR BLE () 26 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)
(¢) AREMBHRVILFBIR (¢) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial
position

—E- & —E-—%F

2022 2021
ARMT T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RERE AR Deferred tax assets recognised in
HRAIEERIEE E the consolidated statement of
financial position 6,071 4,274
REREFEARRER Deferred tax liabilities recognised in
ERRIELERIEAE the consolidated statement of
financial position (7,936) (3,097)
(1,865) 1,177
d)  ARMERIEAEHIEE A (d) Deferred tax assets not recognised
RIEM 3 () TS B & 5T IR - In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
ARE AT ERREET L note 3(g), the Group has not recognised deferred
A TR O A 5 48 A R PR AR tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
P A - RS ER R RET IR RMB376,110,000 (2021: losses of RMB339,812,000)
E18 AR ¥376,110,000T (=& as it is not probable that future taxable profits against
——%F : BB ARKS339,812,000 which the losses can be utilised will be available in
TO) ERIEER B E E - TIEEE the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses
AIEERAF - can be carried forward for 5 years.
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(e)

oA i 2 JEE A2 58 I £ £

RIBHRBEFHBE  HIMREER
HIRBEWIINELEMSHAEA
XIH10%EMB - BRIFCHE W
EERE - RIBFBEEEFER] L
MR IE - ERERILARE
R R E B H o B A B R
MR SRR R EREE% © RIE
PRI TR N EPINRR I
AEBERBETEKERRE=
ZT+ETZA=T—HAAXS
R A 2 e Y B S TR S B TR
- AREXREETEHER
AE=ZEENF—H— AN
2 FEM AL BRI ZA M IRFNTR
It WRER TR R ARMEIT DK
Zus A - e B A BRI R
IR TR ERIEERIE -

RZEBE_—F+=—A=+—8"
L@ A B R D R a FIAE R A
RHEEEAARKEE72,367,000
(ZZ2=Z—F : AR®
672,130,0007T) ° FRZ M &
N AW AR B BR AN A AR | &
EAEEAERRRETE DK
A R D IRZ ST
BRI 2 A 7 TR e sR R ST B I8
BEAR®S4,013,000T (=&
——% : AR¥56,292,0007T) °

dl
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BBHEBI - UARETT25)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

26 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)

(e)

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Under the new PRC tax law, dividends received by
foreign investors from their investment in foreign-
invested enterprises are subject to withholding tax
at a rate of 10 percent unless reduced by treaty.
Pursuant to a tax treaty between the PRC and Hong
Kong, the investment holding companies established
in Hong Kong are subject to a reduced withholding
tax rate of b percent on dividends they receive from
their PRC subsidiaries. Pursuant to the grandfathering
treatments of the new PRC tax law, dividends
receivable by the Group from its PRC subsidiaries
in respect of its undistributed profits prior to 31
December 2007 are exempted from the withholding
tax. Dividends receivable by the Group from its PRC
subsidiaries in respect of its profits earned since
1 January 2008 will be subject to the withholding
tax. Accordingly, deferred tax would be recognised
for undistributed retained earnings of the PRC
subsidiaries to the extent that the earnings would be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2022, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted
to RMB672,367,000 (2021: RMB672,130,000).
Deferred tax liabilities of RMB54,013,000 (2021:
RMB56,292,000) have not been recognised in respect
of the tax that would be payable on the distribution
of these retained profits as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been
determined that it is probable that these profits will
not be distributed in the foreseeable future.
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27 B&A -~ filfl R 27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(a)  REARAH BLHR 43 R 52 B) (a) Movements in components of equity
AEBLEE P SEAKIT D The reconciliation between the opening and
B BRI B BRI R A BRI AR - EHR closing balances of each component of the Group's
GEEREHE - ANaliExRE consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
RIAE R B D BV ) B R B =F statement of changes in equity. Details of the
BESNAT changes in the individual components of equity of the

Company between the beginning and the end of the

year are set out below:

s RiteE N B el
Share Share  Contributed  Translation Retained &t
capital premium surplus reserve profit Total
ARBTT ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(a2re)  (Hgzan)  GHE27ai)  (ME27d)
(note 27(c)) (ot 270}l (note 27(alfil)  (note 27(d))fiv)

RZE-—F-f-H At 1 January 2022 97,920 583,596 741,215 (220,268) 499,763 1,702,226
EREH Profit for the year - - - - 47,084 47,084
Eth2ENE Other comprehensive income - - - 158,673 - 158,673
RZZ-Z%+-A=1+-H  At31 December 2022 97,920 583,596 741,215 (61,595) 546,847 1,907,983
R=B-—%-A-H At 1 January 2021 97,920 583,596 741215 (180,930) 458398 1,700,199
ERgH Profit for the year = = = - 41,365 41,365
o2 ERE Other comprehensive income = = = (39,338) - (39,338)
RZZ-—F+ZB=1+-H  At31 December 2021 97,920 583,596 74,215 (220,268) 499,763 1,702,226
() HEHABHNACHEEE (i) Contributed surplus represents the excess of the
BEFE (RHFE27(d) (i) &7 fair value of the shares of NAC determined based
& ARBIENACK D on the basis of the consolidated net assets of
AR EBEBBAANTIER NAC at the date of the reorganisation (see note
R B 17 A% 1 T B A =B 27(d)(ii)) over the nominal value of the shares
9 o issued by the Company in exchange thereof.
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27 EAR - BB (4E) 27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)
(b) B (b) Dividends
1) MEFARL AR F BT 7 (i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
NI, Company attributable to the year.
R ZFR_FT-—F No final dividends were proposed after the end
S BRI S 2 R HARR of reporting periods of 2022 and 2021.
Be
(i) Z TR R AF AL TR (ii)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
11 FAL AR JENTIR AL Company and profit distributions to minority
JFLI G 2 ] A B R 2 shareholders of its subsidiaries attributable to the
WA previous financial year, approved during the year:

—E-CF —E-—%F

2022 2021
AR¥ET T AREFIT
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ElEYNSIEE Profit distributions to minority
YEH M FE S IR shareholders of subsidiaries 46,862 44,158

FRIRNHRE : Dividends paid during the year:

—E-CF T4
2022 2021
AR¥ETT AREFIT
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ElENEIEE Profit distributions to minority
YEH M FE S IR shareholders of subsidiaries 46,862 44,158
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27 B - it RS (B) 27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)
(c) JBA (¢) Share capital
i HEEREETRAE (i)  Authorised and issued share capital
—ECCE —E--F
2022 2021
ROEE G
Number of €8 Numberof &8
shares Amount shares Amount
TR ARBTR T ARETET
‘000 RMB’000000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ZE Authorised:
W+=—A=+—H Ordinary shares of HKDO.1 each
BREBECETHERR  at 31 December 10,000,000 964,358 10,000,000 964,358
BETREEEER Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid-
R—RA—BR+=ZA=F—H At1Januaryand 31 December 1,016,189 97920 1,016,189 97,920
T RRFEARZEAQA The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
PREIRZRERERAT] dividends as declared from time to time and
RERE LBERERIE— are entitled to one vote per share at general
T IBEEERRUAARZ meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares
FpEEMS =6 RZHE rank equally with regard to the Company's
Ao residual assets.
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A O
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

@)

(i)

Share premium and redemption reserve

The share premium represents the difference
between the par value of the shares of the
Company and proceeds received from the
issuance of the shares of the Company. Under
the Companies Law of Cayman Islands, the
share premium account of the Company
is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company would be in a
position to pay off its debt as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

Redemption reserve represents the historical
value of shares repurchased and held by the

trustee which are treated as treasury shares.

Merger reserve

Pursuant to the reorganisation plan of the
Group in preparation of the Company’s listing
in the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“the Reorganisation”), the
Company issued 1,999,999 ordinary shares
of HKDO.1 each to the then shareholders of
NAC in consideration of acquiring their equity
interests held in NAC. The difference between
the then shareholders’ total capital contributions
to NAC over the nominal value of the shares
issued by the Company in exchange thereof
was transferred to the merger reserve in the
consolidated financial statements as at the date

of Reorganisation.
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BB AR ERIEL

ez e leilih =N Y s eV
TEFERES - BELDH
MEBARESSME /9&*
ZESRATAREMHBA
Eé;‘% ﬂﬁf‘%aﬁéfzmﬁ
nEGEES
ﬁﬂam)wz
%E SONTBED R © [A]
SRR /AT RRE
BRIEL o

juii|

,uﬂu ﬁ ?ﬁ?%

Hb,tﬂth
> B

u>§«w>r¢

IR

KB (32M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iii)  PRC statutory reserves

Transfers from retained earnings to PRC
statutory reserves are made in accordance with
the relevant PRC rules and regulations and
the articles of association of the Company's
subsidiaries established in the PRC and were

approved by the respective boards of directors.

General reserve fund

The subsidiaries in the PRC are required to
appropriate 10 percent of their after-tax profit,
as determined in accordance with the PRC
accounting rules and regulations, to general
reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches
50 percent of the registered capital. The transfer
to this reserve must be made before distribution
of a dividend to shareholders.

Enterprise develooment fund

Certain subsidiaries in the PRC are required
to set up an enterprise development fund.
Transfers to this fund are made at the discretion
of the board of directors of the subsidiaries.
This fund can only be utilised on capital items
for the collective benefit of the subsidiaries’
employees such as the construction of
dormitories, canteens and other staff welfare
facilities. This fund is non-distributable other
than on liquidation. The transfer to this fund
must be made before distribution of a dividend
to shareholders.



27 EA - BB ()

(d)

(e)

®

i 2 TR B R 9 ()

(iv) FEZf#

LR e ERREIEINE
BRI B R R E
DEENTEMEBLRIRE
FENEBARRRERE
ERMAENER

T 6 53 Uk ok 5

RZZE=—=_F+=A=+—H0"
A 5REFTARD R RENRE
HEX B ARY1,810,063,000
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1,604,306,0007T) ©
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(d)

(e)

(®

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv)  Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign subsidiaries outside of the PRC, and the
translation of intra-Group loans classified as net
investment in PRC subsidiaries.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders
of the Company was approximately RMB1,810,063,000
(2021: approximately RMB1,604,306,000).

Capital management

The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base
S0 as to maintain creditor and market confidence and
to sustain future development of the business, by
pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of a total liabilities-to-capital ratio. For this purpose,
capital is defined as total equity. In order to maintain
or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends payable to shareholders, issue new
shares or return capital to shareholders.
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27 A -~ il RS (B) 27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

)  EAEE(H) (f)  Capital management (continued)
REBZ_FR-F-—F+= Total liabilities-to-capital ratio at 31 December 2022
A=+t—RAz@BaBRENRLE and 2021 was as follows:

R
—E & —E-—%F
2022 2021
ARET T AREEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
neaE Current liabilities 940,726 864,186
EEIN=E Non-current liabilities 307,444 307,528
BERAE Total liabilities 1,248,170 1,171,714
ERAE Total equity 2,323,107 2,269,547
BEeBEEARERE Total liabilities-to-capital ratio 0.54 0.52
RN T SE M B A Bl EE RN Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
EBHEMNAIE AT K o subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
28 R 28 COMMITMENTS
R-ZB-—F+-A=1t—BI AN Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2022
BB LB ENEAREENT ¢ not provided for in the consolidated financial statements

were as follows:

—E- & —E-—%F

2022 2021
ARETT ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EETAY Contracted for
— BB - B RERIE — acquisition of property, machinery and
equipment 531,809 36,668
BB EERETA Authorised but not contracted for
— B - IR R R — acquisition of property, machinery and
equipment 98,555 471,566
630,364 508,234
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29 BHBHRS 29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
PR BA 75 2k 5 8 B ER A0 RS 75 B RN In addition to the related party information disclosed
AEBETHOTERBEH TS elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group entered

into the following material related party transactions.

(a) B 450 B B PR W5k 75 v A 4% (a) Name and relationship with related parties
FR - BTIZEHTNRXSEER During the year, transactions with the following
AR5 parties are considered as related party transactions:
2}y EHRAEE T AR
Name of party Relationships
Great Wall Enterprise Co., Ltd. (“GWE") Sl N
AR ZER G BRA T Ultimate holding company
Great Wall International (Holdings) Ltd. (“GWIH") AR AR A A

Intermediate holding company

Great Wall Yung Huo Food (Beijing) Co., Ltd. AR (RNA R &LIER A R BB A
("GWYHB") 3L AR K FIB B PR A & Subsidiary of GWE, ultimate holding company of

the Company

Total Nutrition Technologies Co., Ltd. (“TNT") AR R (KRR R M SARIEIRA ) KB A R
FheEBRMRNHBRAE* Subsidiary of GWE, ultimate holding company of

the Company

Tai Ji Food Co., Ltd. (“TJF") R B (AR BRI R) BB A E]
BILFEERmARAR* Subsidiary of GWE, ultimate holding company of

the Company

Beijing Universal Chain Food Co., Ltd. ('BUCF") AR B2 (AR R SAAER A R]) BT B A R
I RBHEFHEBERBR AR Subsidiary of GWE, ultimate holding company of

the Company

Great Wall Food (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. ("GWF-TJ") ABEIFR (R R BRI ERR A 7)) BIHTE R R
AR R (CRE)BRAR * Subsidiary of GWIH, intermediate holding

company of the Company
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29 BN A5 (4E) 29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(a) B 4 T K BBA WGk i R AR (a) Name and relationship with related parties (continued)
(%)
BN £ EHRAEE 5 I BR
Name of party Relationships
DaChan Showa Foods (Tianijin) Co., Ltd. (“DSF") ARBCEIE (R QR R MER A B) BB A R
AKBAEm RE) BR AR Subsidiary of GWIH, intermediate holding

company of the Company

Great Wall FeedTech (Beijing) Co., Ltd. ("GWFT-BJ")  AAKBIER (KRR BRIFNIERAR]) BB A
ANAEGKEREE BRI GER) ARAF* Subsidiary of GWIH, intermediate holding

company of the Company

Great Wall FeedTech (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. (“GWFT-TJ") RACBIRR (R AR R MIERR A 7)) BT B A A
RNAGKERE BRI () ARAE* Subsidiary of GWIH, intermediate holding

company of the Company

DaChan Liangyou Foods (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. (“DLF-TJ")  ABREMEE (ANQ R SAIER A 7)) K& A7)
AKRRBm(KE)BRAR* Associate of GWE, ultimate holding company of

the Company

DaChan Liangyou Foods (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (“DLF-SH") AR (KA B MRALIRAGA R)) HHEE A )
AR EEm (B8 BRAR* Associate of GWE, ultimate holding company of
the Company

Marubeni Corporation (“MAR") DR

Minority shareholder

Marubeni (Dalian) Co., Ltd. (“MAR-DL") Marubeni (8% ER) HBHE A A

Subsidiary of Marubeni, minority shareholder

Hansen Inc. HBERELE  BRELE  BRFEERER
RAEEHRARZEHRBHRA]
Mr. Han Jia-Hwan, Mr. Han Chia-Yin, Mr. Han
Chia-Yau and Mr. Harn Jia-Chen jointly own

100% interest of Hansen Inc.
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29 BB ARG () 29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(a) BBk 4 T B BB Wk 5 i R AR (a) Name and relationship with related parties (continued)
(#7)
BN £ EHRAEE T B EAMR
Name of party Relationships
Dacheng Land Development Limited (“DLD") Hansen Inc. 592 &M BN )
ANBHEZRAERAR* Wholly-owned subsidiary of Hansen Inc.
DaChan (VN) Co., Ltd. ("DVN")** A& BB 2N RIDAPLAIKIE A 7]

Subsidiary of DAPL, an associate of the Group

DACHAN (ASIA-PACIFIC) LIM (“DAPL")** PN ) NS

Associate of a subsidiary

Advent Prosperity Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. U SPESNGI o) NG]
("APRD") RiZEKHEFHERBFR AT Associate of a subsidiary

Beijing Weixi Agriculture Development Co., Ltd. (BJWX) i B 7] H B & A A

TR@ERXBERARAT Associate of a subsidiary
Taiwan International Gene Co., Ltd. (“TIG") U N)ESNGI o) NG
BERRERGRA R */** Associate of a subsidiary
Rupp & DaChan Foods (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. (“RDF-TJ) YA O ) /NG
BEARKEm (R BRAA Associate of a subsidiary
Mengcun Hui Autonomous County Construction MEARIRIRESE
Investment Co., Ltd. (“MCCI") Investor of a subsidiary

B EEBABMNERIEGRA

Better Me Food Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (“"BMFT") $#RE LA E QT
BERREmEH L R) AR AF* Associate of Mr. Han Jia-Hwan
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29 BB AR5 (4) 29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(a) B 4 T K BBA WGk i R AR (a) Name and relationship with related parties (continued)

(%)

B A ERRARE S B

Name of party Relationships

Beijing Beimi Food Technology Co., Ltd. BRELLNHEE AT
It RBEAREEHEAR AR Associate of Mr. Han Jia-Hwan

TNT BIOTECHNOLOGY (TIANJIN) CO., LTD. KRR E (KR AR RLIZER A R)) B8 A &)
(“TBCL-TJ") AR (KE) BRAE)" Subsidiary of GWE, ultimate holding company of

the Company

BEIJING FOOD CHINA ONLINE INFORMATION & N =3 = A€/ VNG oh= S GNEIDEE o) kN
TECHNOLOGY LTD (“BJFC") Associate of GWE, ultimate holding company of
IR ERESEBRMMABRAT)" the Company

* NRIBTENEEEEESE - Z @ The English translation of the company names is for reference

ZRRIREEBBEARET ° only. The official names of these companies are in Chinese.

** DAPL * DVN - TIGE =2 ——%F *x DAPL, DVN, TIG are no longer related parties since the

FENFEEHERIHCEEKETH disposal of discontinued operation in the fourth quarter of
R T o FHBERHITE3 < 2021. Details are set out in note 13.
b) BEREABIRS (b) Significant related party transactions
FREANBH IR SHFEN Particulars of significant related party transactions
T during the year are as follows:

—E- & —E -4

2022 2021

ARMT T AREETTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

HEEMR Sales of goods 99,847 145,652
IR R E M Purchases of material and goods 83,885 330,731
B RS Management services 223 2,815
BiREESRE Rental services provided 1,491 1,243
BRI T AR Processing services provided - 14,093
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29 BB ARG () 29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(cp FEEMEABME (¢) Key management personnel remuneration
rEETEEREAENE (B Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Ml B E N T AR RESH Group, including amounts paid to the Company's
SRR TMBEE N TE T& directors as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the
SXFEENSFB) AT ¢ highest paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as
follows:

—E-CF —E-—%F

2022 2021
ARET T AREFIT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
HHEREEF Short term employee benefits 5,740 7,245
RIRET IR Retirement scheme contributions 62 68
5,802 7,313
& @mEE st ATE TR (RK Total remuneration was included in “staff costs” (see
#6(b)) ° note 6(b)).
(d)  MEW Ry Bk IE (d) Amounts due from related parties
RIREER - AEEE AT @ As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had
s the following balances with related parties:
BRE —EF T —F
Note 2022 2021
AR¥ET T ARBETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FEUE SRR Trade receivables (i) 6,234 11,301
H AU GRIA Other receivables 5,800 5,800
12,034 17,101
()  BEEE A REUWE SRR ()  Trade receivables from related parties are
TR - R ERIEFR—FA unsecured, interest free and are expected to
WE e RZZE==_F+=A1 be recovered within one year. There was no
=+—H @ WEHZEFE significant impairment loss made against these
{EREXREEE - amounts at 31 December 2022.
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29 BB ARG (4)

(e)  WEAT BRI wkIH

RIREHR - AEB B AT RIR

)

29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(e)

Amounts due to related parties

As at the end of reporting period, the Group had the

T3 RERR following balances with related parties:
FisE —E-F —B-—F
Note 2022 2021
ARET T ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BB SRR Trade payables (i) 9,326 6,018
HAb R FRIE Other payables 43,500 42,600
52,826 48,618

() EAETHENEBRNTIE
HH - 2R REMR—FRA
&t -

(0 A BHBHEEE 5 i b v B

EXHINETRAERRSHEK L
MRBIFE1AAZEFT R EMRRER
SHRBERERS - EMRAE
UABRENRESNESTRE
[BR:ER 5| —6f °

KB (32M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

()

(i)  Trade payables to related parties are unsecured,
interest free and are expected to be paid or

settled within one year.

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to connected

transactions

Certain related party transactions listed above
constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules are provided in section
headed “Connected transactions” of the Report of
the Directors.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and other
receivables, interest-bearing borrowings and trade payables
and other payables. Exposure to credit, interest rate,
currency, business, liquidity, and commodity price risks
arise in the normal course of the Group's business. The
Group is also exposed to equity price risk arising from

movements in its own equity share price.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below:

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations resulting
in a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit
risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables.
The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from
cash and cash equivalents is limited because the
counterparties are banks and substantially all of the
Group's cash at bank are deposited in the reputable
banks which management assessed the credit risk to

be insignificant.
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(a)
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TEY B 5 J sk
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BEEFPOERNFERZE
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FERERE AEXEERN
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REHEERPREASEERASASR
PRAARBEFPHDAIEI1%(ZF
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2%) ° RRELIA T MKRE
RAT » AEETEHESTRE
EHEPETERENHESR

o

It %“\@ il -H? [

CERBEHBENMAER YA
BEXEAGENG - ZEHHmE
AR BERIBEIER 2
FEEE R ERITREE S - WaEE
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country in which
the customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 11%
(2021: 2.7%) and 21% (2021: 7.2%) of the total
trade receivables was due from the Group's largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively.
In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group
has also been performing more frequent reviews of

sales for customers who are severely impacted.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Trade receivables are due within 30-60 days
from the date of billing. Normally, the Group does not

obtain collateral from customers.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group's historical credit loss experience indicates
significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on
past due status is further distinguished between the

Group's different customer bases.

The Group distinguished the customers into 2 bases:

- Group 1: the clients in a normal operation
status.

- Group 2: the clients with significant financial

difficulties or have entered bankruptcy.
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30 <ol B A BE B 4 S (RAE ()

(a)

KB (32M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

fr B Jal b ()

TEY B 3 H K ()

TREIIARE B HERE 5 IR
WEERREKBREEBEZE

30

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

The following table provides information about the

Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

#} o receivables.
—E-F
2022
AR {E
TEEIETE R Gross it
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
% AR¥ET T ARET T
% RMB’000 RMB’000
£—# Group 1
B (R HR) Current (not past due) 0.3% 228,312 (696)
#HEI1=180H 1-180 days past due 2.9% 10,516 (309)
#HR1812E365H 181-365 days past due 48.0% 2,475 (1,188)
B HARIE365H More than 365 days past due 100.0% 5,582 (5,582)
246,885 (7,775)
=oAL Brew2 BN (1.617)
248,502 (9,392)

BEHEEXERBE=FHER
FEBEERITE - YREBESL
BRI SR BT AV A RO © B AT
) A T A 5 B AN % B 2R 2 MR
AT FROGER R =5 2 M
MERETHE -

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 3 years. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and
the Group’s view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.
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30 < B A B % O SRR (B 30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

(a) R BB ()

FAIR VALUES (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

TG B 5 3 (48) Trade receivables (continued)
T —4F
2021
REREE
TEERE R Gross EEREE
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
% AREEFIT ARETT
% RMB'000 RMB'000
£—# Group 1
mEh (ki ER) Current (not past due) 0.4% 187,740 (624)
#HI1E180H 1-180 days past due 0.9% 25,953 (231)
#mHR1812E365H 181-365 days past due 35.6% 386 (137)
B HARE365 H More than 365 days past due 100% = =
214,079 (992)
#$-4 . Grup2 ... 836 6.316)
220,395 (7,308)
FR - BESHERERBERE Movement in the loss allowance account in respect
&8t : of trade receivables during the year is as follows:
—E- 8 —E—4F
2022 2021
ARBT T ARBETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
R—A—Ba&EH Balance at 1 January 7,308 24,360
FAEMIETRIEA Amounts written off during the year (554) (23,963)
FREER R EEE Impairment losses recognised during
the year 2,638 6,911
R+ A=+—HH&% Balance at 31 December 9,392 7,308
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30 <ol B A BE B 4 S (RAE ()

(b)  WEE )Rk

EEBERBECRRAE - RNE
BERVAREEERSEEN

BReRBSEEBYWKTF - ARK
SEMREREES - WHIERE
Hﬁfﬁi/mi/&@jmwa ZK&.

MR aRBRAFEARITEER
LRIFES LRHFBEREEN T E
BEEE - UREASEELH RE
BERIHEK -

TRFMAREHRAEE LA
NEB N ARD R AL MERINR
REeMEFEZITESREE

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of short-term fluctuations in cash flows.
The Group's treasury department is responsible
for maintaining a balance between continuity and
flexibility of funding through the use of banking
facilities in order to meet the Group’s liquidity
requirements.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of reporting period of the
Group's and the Company’s non-derivative

(BIEREDONERFENTN B X financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
A B R - BIRRLR undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
BRI &) - &z]x‘i.&$ computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based
FEMY 2R on rates current at the end of reporting period) and
the earliest date the Group and the Company can be
required to pay:
—E-
2022
BRMER

HRRE —ENE MELL

RERE —FRg  ALRWmE  EIREF

Total  RER{EE  Morethan  More than

BREE  contractual Within 1 year 2 years

Carrying undiscounted 1 year or but less but less

amount cashflow  ondemand than2years thanb5 years

ARET T ARETF R ARBT ARETF R ARBT T

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ER Loans 377,240 423,637 121,475 20,270 281,892

EREZER Trade payables 472,025 472,025 472,025 - -

HityENTUE Other payables 328,568 328,568 328,568 - -

1,177,833 1,224,230 922,068 20,270 281,892
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30 S A PR K 4y Ao fE AR (A8 30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(b) BN S EFE () (b) Liquidity risk (continued)
—T-—F
2021

BRMR
HERE —FNRE GE3Y
mERE —ERyg  BLRWE  BIRDE
Total  RERER More than More than
EEILE contractual Within 1 year 2 years
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or but less but less
amount cash flow ondemand  than2years  than5years

ARETT  ARBTL AREBTT ARBTR  ARETE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

- Loans 407,492 415,499 137,041 161,443 117,015
ERE SRR Trade payables 397,655 397,655 397,655 - -
HAb R 5RIE Other payables 293,094 293,094 293,094 = =
1,098,241 1,106,248 827,790 161,443 117,015
(c) MR B (c) Interest rate risk
AEEMNERBREEREFEE The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from
B o UFBFIER K EEF R E interest-bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at
MEESFEASE@mBRE S variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to
2R EER RA K EBEFEE cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate
% o risk respectively.
REBFEEENF X RERK The interest rates and terms of repayment of
K ERH 24 - KEBEREH) the interest-bearing borrowings of the Group are
FEBEERERNESEHEHRIR disclosed in note 24. The Group's floating interest
SnEgEER - rate borrowings are exposed to a risk of change in

cash flows due to changes in interest rates.
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30 & plE b

(c)

(@)

KB (32M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

B R oy SufEAH (A8)

LESNAC )

RZB-_ZF+=-A=+—8
TEF R EEIE N1 00EE 2 R H
M EFERIFTENEET - K&
| 7 R 1% e B K B A7 & AR
#ANR#1,690,083T (=T =—
F: AR#2,400,9317T) °
bt RASEENBERFN - 8
fRA R K E A3 M AR R
gﬁ °

il SRR D AT Th R R F R & B
ERBEMRREELBANE B
FENTERETESR TR
FrEm R =R mIEL o #in
100AES AT EEHEE N —
B3RS HAF R /& B2 AT RE B B A
il o AIMEEE T = —F4f
A o

F W R B

REBABDELEWRANEBE
NARKETRS - MARED
BEERRBRRING - MBESRA
REHINERXZEBETEAR
RITREREE BN O
BT ©

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(c)

(@)

Interest rate risk (continued)

At 31 December 2022, it is estimated that a general
increase of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would have decreased
the Group's profit after tax and retained profits by
approximately RMB1,690,083 (2021: RMB2,400,931),
and there is no impact on other components of the
consolidated equity, except for retained profits of the

Group.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of reporting period and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for both
derivative and non-derivative financial instruments
in existence at that date. The 100-basis point
increase represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual reporting period. The

analysis is performed on the same basis for 2021.

Currency risk

Majority of the revenue-generating operations of
the Group are transacted in RMB, which is not
freely convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign
exchange transactions involving RMB must take
place through the People’s Bank of China or other
institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign

currencies.
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30 S A PR K 4y Ao fE AR (A8 30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

d) B )RR () (d) Currency risk (continued)
G)  EWEERE (i)  Exposure to currency risk

TERFFMAS BN E R The following table details the Group's exposure
HEwREESAERAEA at the end of reporting period to currency risk
HERQ R AN E arising from recognised assets or liabilities
W& B T 2= A A 1 3L denominated in a currency other than the
o BABEER  AXRR functional currency of the entity to which they
SREAARKIE @ R relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts
HERQFELHAE BENHIE of the exposure are shown in RMB, translated
KIRE o using the spot rate at the year end date.

SNESRE 5 R BRI (UARE T T251)
Exposure to foreign currencies

(expressed in thousands of Renminbi)

—EF
2022

ESpI ARHE BT

USsD RMB HKD

R MIREEEY)  Cashand cash equivalents 84 2,529 1,574
EHREENKEAME  Net exposure arising from

ELEZFRBAE  recognised assets and
liabilities 84 2,529 1,574

— &= — F 53R Annual Report 2022 257



258

BA RS AR MY

Notes to the Financial Statements
(BBHEPI - UARETT2)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

30 <ol E R A B R 4 SU (B (A

d) BWEkE ()

G)  HEmE AR ()

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUES (continued)

(d)

Currency risk (continued)

@)

Exposure to currency risk (continued)

HNESTE B AARE T T2
Exposure to foreign currencies

(expressed in thousands of Renminbi)

B —F
2021

EW AR BT
usD RMB HKD
B MIREEEY  Cash and cash equivalents 57 896 1,236

DHREENAMRE  Netexposure arising from

EA 7 FRBEAE  recognised assets and
liabilities 57 896 1,236
@) T (ii)  Sensitivity analysis

TR BRERABEBER
HIR AR SR B e A R
BYHE R a% A HIREE) - 1%
EAKERBILEE S G
) (82 B2 T B 7)) 2 A BB 2
B - RN B EE
AR AR - TASERE A
B REETDEEEB AN
MEHEHE -

KB (32M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group's loss or profit after
tax (and retained profits) that would arise if
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of reporting
period had changed at that date, assuming all
other risk variables remained constant. The
sensitivity analysis includes balances between
Group entities where the denomination of
the balances is in a currency other than the
functional currencies of the lender or the

borrower.
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30 < B A B % O SRR (B 30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUES (continued)

ERZINNDHRAERR
AlRZE B YIRE R E A
BRI NI 18 i e -
R E25TMRR R EHR
ERMEMERBESAR
WATE R AN RS2 -

GURNE DT T IRAR PE R B &)
ERmERRELLERR

d) B )RR () (d) Currency risk (continued)
(i) BT (FE) (ii)  Sensitivity analysis (continued)
—E-CF T4
2022 2021
HRHZ HERHI%
AR i M K2
Ex BIERF [ 5 BIFRF
EH(TH) Ve EF(TR) W2

Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) profit after (decrease) profit after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange retained exchange retained
rate profits rate profits
AREE RMB 5% 182 5% 94
(5)% (182) (5)% (94)

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of
the instantaneous effects on each of the
Group entities’ profit or loss after tax and
equity measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into RMB at the exchange
rate ruling at the end of reporting period for

presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the

change in foreign exchange rates had occurred

AEERQEE AFERIE at the end of reporting period and had been
PTHET BB RRRAE - applied to each of the Group entities’ exposure
KB HAth & 2 (FC H 2 A to currency risk for non-derivative financial
R)HEFTNEMIED - D47 instruments in existence at that date, and that
BERSE T —FHA - all other variables, in particular interest rates,

remain constant. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2021.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(e)

Business risk

The Group is exposed to financial risks arising
from changes in prices of livestock and livestock's
agricultural produce and the change in cost and supply
of feed ingredients, all of which are determined by
constantly changing market forces of supply and
demand, and other factors. The other factors include
environmental regulations, weather conditions and
livestock diseases. The Group has little or no control
over these conditions and factors.

The Group is subject to risks relating to its ability
to maintain animal health status. Livestock health
problems could adversely impact production and
consumer confidence. The Group monitors the health
of its livestock on a regular basis and has procedures
in place to reduce potential exposure to infectious
diseases. Although policies and procedures have
been put into place, there is no guarantee that the

Group will not be affected by epidemic diseases.

The Group manages its exposure to fluctuation in the
price of the key raw materials used in the operations
by maintaining a large number of suppliers so as to

limit high concentration in a particular supplier.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BBHEBI - UARETT25)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

®

(g

Commodity price risk

The Group is exposed to price risks arising from
any unexpected increase in the prices of corn and
soybean meal commodities before committing to
purchase of raw materials and any unexpected
decreases in the prices of corn and soybean meal
commodities following completion of purchases.
To protect the Group from the impact of price
fluctuations in corn and soybean meal commodities,
commodity derivative contracts are entered into
with independent futures trading agents. Changes
in the fair value of commodity derivative contracts
that economically hedge the price fluctuations in
corn and soybean meal commodities and for which
no hedge accounting is applied are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Fair value measurement

(1)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

In accordance with IFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement, the Group defines the three
levels of fair value hierarchy. The level into
which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the

valuation technique as follows:
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(g) Fair value measurement (continued)

(1)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

(continued)

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the

measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which

market data are not available

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured

using significant unobservable inputs

The Group's financial asset and liability
measured at fair value is commodity derivative

contracts.

The fair value of commodity derivative contracts
are measured using quoted prices from
independent trading agents without adjustments
and therefore fall into level 1. The commodity
derivative contracts were all closed as at 31
December 2022, thus no derivative financial
instruments was recognised on balance sheet as
at 31 December 2022.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BBHEBI - UARETT25)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(g) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s and the Company's
financial assets and liabilities carried at cost or
amortised cost are not materially different from
their fair values as at 31 December 2022 and
2021.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:
(i)  Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and distribution
expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and historical experience of selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in customer preference and
competitor actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management reassesses these estimations
at the end of reporting period to ensure inventory is
shown at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
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31 Eratfliah XA B (4)

A EHAS W B PR 36 AR R ()

(i)

(iii)

KB (32M) AFE2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses for bad
and doubtful debts resulting from inability of the
customers to make the required payments. The
estimate is based on the ageing of the trade
receivable balance, customer creditworthiness,
and historical write-off experience. If the financial
conditions of the customers were to deteriorate,

actual write-offs would be higher than estimated.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of the
property, plant and equipment at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. When indication
of impairment is identified, management prepares
discounted future cashflow to assess the differences
between the carrying amount and value in use and
provided for impairment loss. Any change in the
assumptions adopted in the cash flow forecasts
would increase or decrease in the provision of the
impairment loss and affect the Group’s net asset

value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BBHEBI - UARETT25)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(iv) Income tax

v)

Determining income tax provisions involves
judgement on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislations. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for tax losses not yet used and
temporary deductible differences. As those deferred
tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the unused tax credits can be utilised,
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management's
assessment is constantly reviewed, and additional
deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Determining the lease term

As explained in policy note 3(c), the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term. In determining
the lease term at the commencement date for
leases that include renewal options exercisable by
the Group, the Group evaluates the likelihood of
exercising the renewal options taking into account
all relevant facts and circumstances that create
an economic incentive for the Group to exercise
the option, including favourable terms, leasehold
improvements undertaken and the importance of that
underlying asset to the Group's operation. The lease
term is reassessed when there is a significant event
or significant change in circumstance that is within
the Group’s control. Any increase or decrease in the
lease term would affect the amount of lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets recognised in future years.
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32 2 w] i A IR D 32 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
BasE —E-—F —E—F
Note 2022 2021
AR¥ETT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
IEREBEE Non-current assets
AT B A R B E Investments in subsidiaries 1,788,295 1,637,084
UL BT B A B FRIA Amounts due from subsidiaries 463,146 480,090
2,251,441 2,117,174
mEEE Current assets
Hth eI RIE Other receivables 385 198
JEL BaHS: 5 SRR Amounts due from related parties 6,928 3,889
ReERRSEEY Cash and cash equivalents 6,544 2,496
13,857 6,583
RBARG Current liabilities
E b T FRIE Other payables 6,031 7,004
ATEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 81,848 43,750
1S A 5 R E Amounts due to related parties 8,275 7,945
96,154 58,699
RBAFFE  Netcurrentliabilies ~  (82297) (62,116)
ARRERRBAM  Total assets less current liabilities = 2,169,144 2,065,058
E15 kD h=F Non-current liabilities
FFEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 120,557 222,512
FEAT BT 8 A kI8 Amount due to subsidiaries 140,604 140,320
___________________________________________________________ 261,161 362,832
BEFE Net assets 1,907,983 1,702,226
ERR G Capital and reserves 27(a)
%N Share capital 97,920 97,920
] Reserves 1,263,216 1,104,543
BIF & Retained profits 546,847 499,763
T AARE Total equity 1,907,983 1,702,226

266 A& (M) B2 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BBHEBI - UARETT25)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

At 31 December 2022, the immediate parent and ultimate
controlling party of the Group are Waverley Star Limited
and GWE respectively, which are incorporated in BVI and

the Republic of China respectively.

GWE, which is listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange,
produces consolidated financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the

Republic of China, which are available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
IASB has issued a number of new or amended standards,
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2022 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These developments include the following

which may be relevant to the Group.

ETHEHHHEE
BRI ST EIRI AR
Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

BIBRBA TS IR ELERIFE 175 - REEAAY

IFRS 17, Insurance contracts

BRI 15% (IBFTA)

B HRXES  RESRRBRELIFREEE

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements:

—E-=%—H—H
1 January 2023

—=%—H—H
1 January 2023

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current
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34 CHEfiHRRERE T4 34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

+ZH=+—HILEEAERN NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

&R ~ Pral e [ K 3% B 0 ¥ A ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR

w2 (%) THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
(continued)

ETHBEE

BRI S T EAR A X
Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

BIFR S RIS (BRI - A& 25 R BRI s EERE B A 5258 —E-=%—H—H
TELHEAH b - REZFTHE
Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements and IFRS Practice 1 January 2023
Statement 2, Making materiality judgements. Disclosure of accounting policies
REFERIESYE (BT A) @5tHER - Sathat EBNRER - i B2 EE —ZE=F—H—H
Amendments to IAS 8, Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and 1 January 2023
errors: Definition of accounting estimates
R@FHERIEI125E BRI - A - E —X GES 7 BEK B B0 2 FE IR —E=F—H—H
Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities 1 January 2023
arising from a single transaction
RERFAZFEAEFRYPER The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
HMTEHERNTE - 25 AEEER what the impact of these developments is expected to be
BERAZREERL DK A] gL 4R S B 75 in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
WMFTERERNTENER that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant

impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Five Years Financial Summary

BEt-A=1+-HLEFE
For the year ended 31 December
ZEoCf 2o 222 ZE-NF ZE)N\F

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
BElWAAREBET) Turnover (RMB million) 6,195 9,350 9,279 8,035 7,192
EFAREBET) Gross profit (RMB million) 681 819 1,026 982 760
(%) Gross profit margin (%) 11.0 8.8 11.1 122 10.6
FEREFH/ (1) Profit/(loss) for the year
(AE¥BET) (RMB million) 122 200 304 206 62
R/ (5) %= (%) Net profit/(loss) margin (%) 1.98 214 3.27 2.56 0.86
ARFHEE NEGRT/ () Profit/lloss) attributable to owners of
(AREBET) the Company (RMB million) 92 156 203 134 13
BREHN,/ (58) Earnings/(loss) per share
—ER(ARET) - basic (RMB) 0.09 0.15 0.20 0.13 0.01
-EE(ARET) - diluted (RMB) 0.09 0.15 0.20 0.13 0.01
Rt=R=+-H
At 31 December
“EC-CF ZE--F 2% ZE-NF ZE)N\F
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
ARBEER AREBEET AREEEBT ARKBET AREKRER
RMB million RMB million  RMB million  RMB million  RMB million
BEZE Net assets 2,323 2,270 2272 2,012 1,828
BEGE Total assets 3,571 3,441 4,329 4,048 3,903
s Non-controlling interest 252 272 431 377 337
BEGE Total liabilities 1,248 1,172 2,057 2,035 2,076

272  kE&® (TM) BR2AF DaChan Food (Asia) Limited



=
F

Z DX B



	封面
	目錄
	公司介紹
	財務摘要
	主席報告
	管理層討論與分析
	董事及高級管理人員履歷
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益表
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	財務報表附註
	公司資料
	五年財務摘要
	封底



